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B U S I N E S S  &

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

Size (in naira millions)

GROSS
EARNINGS
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3,450

8,558

3,010

PBT
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4,473
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182,383
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CHAIRMAN’S 
REVIEW

DEAR DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS,

I want to begin by thanking you and our esteemed customers on behalf 
of the bank and the Board of Directors, for your confidence in entrusting 
your investment to us. I am pleased to present the 2021 Annual Report 
of Titan Trust Bank which exhibits the significant strides the bank has 
taken in the 2021 financial year.

We have no doubt, witnessed big upheavals in our sector, nevertheless, 
your bank was well-positioned to take advantage of the opportunities that 
surfaced. With the stewardship of the Board of Directors, Management 
and staff, the bank delivered an impressive financial performance in 
2021 with compliance, integrity, and good governance being the top 
priorities. Our commitment to building a ‘future proof’ bank reiterates 
our promise to you – “You can trust in Us”

The past year turned out to be better than most people had anticipated. 
While that helped in the performance of the Bank, it underlines 
the unpredictability of the future. The fundamental strengths of our 
business model have continued to form the bedrock on which we 
create sustainable value for our stakeholders. As an organization, we 
have been constantly evolving, challenging ourselves to raise the bar 
on innovation and work towards our goal to deliver a distinctive world-
class customer experience through an optimal mix of human touch and 
technology.

In 2021, we continued to strengthen the core pillars of our strategy for 
driving excellence people, products, and technology. We bolstered our 
leadership team significantly by expanding the scope of responsibility 
of our existing leaders, while bringing in new talents with a proven depth 
of experience to match our aspirations.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In the context of continued business momentum and balance sheet 
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growth, the bank has delivered a solid financial 
performance with a profit after tax of N4.5bn, 
significantly higher than the achievement of the 
preceding year. The bank grew total assets year-
on-year by 81%. Deposit from customers was up by 
112% as advances to customers went up by 63%. 
Liquidity and capital adequacy stood at 67% and 
35% in 2021 respectively from 77% and 43% in 
2020.

The bank’s books remain free of any non-performing 
loans in its 27 months of operation, reflecting 
prudent lending practices. Gross earnings rose by 
59.2% year-on-year, with the cost-to-income ratio 
improving further to 50.5% in 2021 from 53.4% in 
the preceding year, while net profit before tax rose 
by 52.6% year-on-year. These impressive results 
could not come at a better time than now as it lends 
credence to the fact that Titan Trust Bank is well-
positioned to weather economic challenges and in 
turn, support its customers, shareholders, and all 
other stakeholders.

STRATEGY OUTLOOK

Your bank has grown rapidly from inception in a little 
over two years of operation, ensuring a strategic 
position in the Nigerian financial ecosystem. We 
have managed our bank for long-term resilience 
by focusing on customer acquisition, deepening 
existing customer relationships, and optimizing fee 
income while ensuring efficient cost management.

As we continue to deliver positive operating results 
while simultaneously managing risks, liquidity, and 
capital, we remain deliberate in our investment 
in infrastructure, products, markets, employees, 
and brand value. We have taken off and are ready 
to fly to the top with an array of the latest financial 
solutions, superior customer services, and a pool 
of highly skilled and motivated employees along 
with efficient and friendly work culture. Our overall 
plan is to accelerate healthy growth to ensure better 
returns for shareholders and be part of the enviable 
socio-economic progression of the country.

We recognize that changing customer behavior, 
the popularity of mobile financial services, and 
escalating competition, are fundamentally changing 
the way the banking sector engages with customers 
and we are fully prepared for that. Our recent 
acquisition of Union Bank Nigeria PLC has placed 

your bank in that strategic position to provide even 
more tailored solutions to meet the demands of 
our growing valued customers. Titan Trust Bank’s 
future-focused strategy has taken a rocket boost 
towards our vision of being Africa’s most trusted 
financial institution.

OUR PEOPLE

The Board firmly believes in our human resources. 
We shall continue to inspire them by creating a 
conducive environment while also investing in 
the individuals to keep them apace with emerging 
trends. It is the Board’s vision to turn Titan Trust 
Bank into one of the most preferred places to work 
in Nigeria. Over and above providing stimulating 
work assignments and competitive remuneration; 
the Board is keen on ensuring that physical and 
mental wellness are monitored and managed.

REFLECTING ON 2 YEARS OF 
TOGETHERNESS AND MOVING 
FORWARD

We have remained strong and consistent since 
our launch in 2019. I would like to seize this 
opportunity to welcome our new Non-executive 
Director Dr. Remi oni and to thank my colleagues 
on the Board for their cooperation, commitment, 
and conscientious stewardship. I would also like 
to express my gratitude to our Managing Director 
& CEO, the Executive Director, as well as the entire 
management team for their relentless and selfless 
efforts in keeping the promise of ‘Trust’ to our 
stakeholders despite economic downturns, for 
the tenacity and dedication with which they have 
helped your bank to attain a new level of excellence 
and dynamism. To our valued customers, for the 
trust and confidence, you have placed in the Titan 
brand for the last 2 years, you remain the reason 
we are driven to innovate, succeed and grow. My 
sincere gratitude also goes to our shareholders - 
your support over the years has been a source of 
immense strength for the bank and I look forward to 
your continued support and partnership with Titan 
Trust Bank in its long-term growth journey. We will 
continue to challenge ourselves and strive toward 
building a distinctive future forward Bank.
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MANAGING 
DIRECTOR / CEO’S 
REVIEW

Opening a world of opportunity draws heavily on the bank’s past, 
but it also encapsulates what we need to focus on to succeed now 
and in the future. Opportunities have always come in many shapes 
and forms, some of which have required us to change and evolve 
to make the most of them. We need to keep challenging ourselves 
to find and capture these opportunities. This is how we will help our 
customers to grow and succeed over the long term.

The bank began its journey with a promise of “Trust” which has both 
a literal and metaphorical meaning. Apart from being a corporate 
body, it is also an institution that highly values transparency and 
accountability with a view to building and retaining public trust and 
confidence. Throughout the journey of two highly rewarding years 
of operation, we have broken boundaries and surged, we have been 
resurgent, we have managed to shine and now we are all invigorated 
towards powering the future. Personally, it is an honour for me to steer 
the bank riding on the trust and confidence of our valued customers, 
the guidance of a progressive Board of Directors and the dedication 
and talents of our committed staff. We have forged ahead by repaying 
the trust with better business performance through achieving our 
strategic goals.

We made excellent progress in 2021 on all our strategic goals. Our 
task was not easy. We navigated volatile market conditions without 
any credit loss and without compromising growth. To this end, I must 
offer my deep thanks to my colleagues, who have exemplified our 
values in supporting our customers and each other, all the while 
continuing to deal with the pandemic themselves.

PERFORMANCE:

We continued to deepen and broaden relationships with stakeholders 
through enhanced customer experience and improved shareholder 
value, effectively and consistently sustaining the Bank on a path of 
growth and profitability. This was on the back of substantial headway 
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on the digital transformation journey and concerted 
efforts to drive sustainability as a core feature of a 
new business norm.

Customer acquisition has grown by 196% in the 
period under review, while mobile subscription 
increased by 154% year-on-year. Subscribers to 
the bank’s Unstructured Supplementary Service 
Data (USSD) platform saw a jump of 156% in 2021 
financial year while corporate internet banking users 
increased by 357%, indicating the bank’s focus on 
providing user friendly digital platforms to serve the 
needs of the various segments of our customers. 
The bank’s financial performance also followed the 
same trajectory. The bank grew its topline by 59% 
while profit before tax recorded 53% growth. Total 
asset grew 81%, Deposits and loans by 112% and 
63% respectively.

Our overall growth story has seen the bank 
transcend in the Nigerian market. In 2021, Titan trust 
bank emerged as the best new commercial banking 
brand and the fastest growing digital banking 
brand in Nigeria. Our expertise in the provision of 
trade related services coupled with numerous 
testimonials from clients landed us the prestigious 
award for the best trade finance provider in Nigeria, 
second year in a row, by new York’s Global finance 
magazine.

UNION BANK ACQUISITION: ENRICHING 
OUR BANKING HERITAGE

The strong and responsible organic growth of 24 
months reinforced confidence in the management 
by shareholders, board members and customers. 
On the back of this trust, we took a bold step of 
bidding for Union Bank. This acquisition will provide 
us a larger platform to assist our customers in 
expanding their businesses. Union Bank has been 
in existence for over 100 years, have strong brand 
loyalty and possesses all modern banking tools. 
The merged entity will be a formidable force in the 

banking space and will make us highly relevant with 
our customers.

2022 OUTLOOK

We have built great momentum coming into 2022. 
We have started the year as a young bank but 
will end the year into a different league. The year 
2022 is going to be another historic year in our 
journey. Our task is not easy i.e., completion of the 
acquisition transaction, integration of operations, 
teams, IT platforms etc. We must do all this without 
disrupting business and without any disruption 
to our customers. Given the extra ordinary 
support from our board members and unwavering 
commitment from our team, I have no doubt we will 
once again pass with flying colors. I would like to 
take this opportunity to thank all our stakeholders 
for standing with the Bank in 2021.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like 
to thank the entire management and staff of the 
bank. Throughout our journey, from inception in 
Oct 2019 to UBN acquisition, our people have 
always demonstrated absolute professionalism, 
dedication, and commitment. Together with the 
staff and management, I am grateful and proud of 
our customers. They trusted us even when we were 
new to the market with small size and developing 
systems & operations. As we are moving into a next 
league, we will ensure our customers grow with us.

Last but not the least, sincere thanks to our very 
professional and erudite Board of Directors who 
have individually and collectively brought their 
wealth of experience in various spheres of business 
to bear on the strategic directions of the bank in the 
past two years and to our shareholders in trusting 
us and committing fresh investment despite volatile 
market conditions.
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The easing of restrictions in year 2021 led to an 
increase in business and interactions as well as 
an uptick in the utilisations of our products and 
services. As a financial institution that listens to 
our customers, we introduced products aimed at 
improving the management of personal finances, 
providing appropriate financial assistance on need 
basis, and developing entrepreneur activities. 

The products and services rolled out in the year 
under review were to achieve the following

 • Creating financially inclusive products.

 • Promoting responsible use of credit

 • Organising seminars on the benefits of 
investments and savings.

 • Creating a marketplace and meeting points for 
business owners or entrepreneurs.

 • Providing business support via our Social Media 
publicity.

In response to emerging market opportunities, we 
introduced new products to address customers’ 
needs.

 • Titan Diaspora Banking Product

 • Titan Expatriate Account

 • Titan Entrepreneur Account

 • Tier 1 Dom Account for recipients of USD 
remittance / Inflows

 • Implementation of Diaspora Remittance 
Reporting Service

Also, in the year under review, we implemented 

a Customer Management Tool to strengthen our 
interactions with customers and improve the 
customer experience. Local language translation 
for our products and propositions was put in place 
as we expanded our customer reach with opening 
of new locations in Kano and Abuja.

Our Principal Membership Project with Mastercard 
was completed during the year which increased our 
product offerings and capabilities as an independent 
financial services provider.

We deepened our strategy for MSMEs banking with 
specialized product designs based on specific 
credit assessment methods including good credit 
history and proper records of business activities. 

Credit schemes were provided to distributors 
and suppliers of anchor companies and major 
corporates we serve as a way of banking the 
value chain, supporting the downlines and 
backward integrations. The immediate impact was 
enhancement of cashflow and working capital for 
a profitable business operation for the corporates. 
Related to this is the rollout of our Titan Teleco 
Operators Trade Partner Finance Scheme aimed 
at supporting players in the telecommunications 
industry.

Continuing the tradition of capacity building and 
creating access to market for MSMEs, we partnered 
with IFC during the year to educate MSMEs on how 
to market their business online. Also, in the year 
under review, we embarked on a campaign, issuing 
out POS paper rolls and Machine Till paper rolls to 
SME merchants in a bid to assist them to save cost 
and manage the business better.

PRODUCTS AND 
PROPOSITIONS
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Our product deployment strategy laid more 
emphasis on digital marketing and product sales 
online which was supported with cluster marketing, 
storms, and engagements.

Though our deployment of online retail credit was 
not concluded in the period under review, we were 
able to deploy cashflow lending scheme to small 
and emerging businesses with observed traits and 
track record of performance. Our cashflow lending 
laid more emphasis on character and proven 
business expertise and performance other than 
tangible collateral which was a huge relief to small 
and medium scale businesses.

During the year, we implemented several product 
enhancements/process improvements to enrich 
our customer experience. These include Titan 
Regular Collection Account and Titan Product Class 
Account for companies operating in the Free Trade 
Zones.

We continue to partner with Fintechs and other 
service providers to improve our propositions to 
customers on the digital space. During the year, we 
received regulatory approvals for our collaborative 
products in this direction. These are Paystack - Titan 
Product Rollout (Collection) and Secured Managed 
Accounts for Paystack Merchants

For the salaried employees, during the year, we 
implemented products enhancements and created 
Handset Device scheme and asset finance as part 
of the employees’ loan Scheme in addition to school 
fees support, advances, and mortgage. 

Our collaborative engagements with regulators and 
aggregators witnessed participation in the following 
industry driven product deployment namely, CBN 
e-Naira project, NIBSS Quick Response (QR) Code 

and NIBSS Mcash, among others.

In 2022 Financial Year, the outlook and business 
opportunities are bright and huge. We envisaged 
an enlarged platform with enhanced capacity to 
be more creative and solution provider on a wide 
range of products and services. These include the 
automation of our trade finance platform, partnership 
with credit guarantee scheme provider aimed at 
derisking our lending to MSMEs, partnership and 
collaboration service provider in Disruptive Business 
space especially in supply chains and logistics.

We will conduct a formal launch / rollout of 
regulatory approved partnership product “Paystack 
- Titan Product” to improve our product offerings. 
We will seek to deepen our financial inclusion drive 
by securing further mandate from agency/donor 
programs such as the National Social Safety Net 
Payment. This will also be complemented by our 
Agency Banking and Wallet services as part of the 
enlarged platform.

We will continue with financial literacy programs 
to the young and upcoming stars. This will be 
complemented by the launch of bespoke card 
scheme products that addresses the needs of the 
youth segments.





TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 17

D E P A R T M E N T S  &
B U S I N E S S  O V E R V I E W
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
The marketing department continues to play an 
important role in attaining the bank’s short and long-
term strategic goals. The team is focused on all 
market categories, including corporate, commercial, 
small, and medium-sized organizations, retail, and 
government. The team works in areas where Titan 
Trust Bank has a physical presence. At the moment, 
there are three geographical locations (Southwest, 
Southeast, and North).

REVIEW OF THE YEAR 2021
We have continued to capitalize on market 
possibilities and gaps after 27 months in the market 
to deliver flexible and accessible financial solutions 
to both existing and new consumers. As markets 
and businesses reopened following the pandemic, 
greater opportunities arose in all sectors of the 
economy. With the onboarding of distributors, 
vendors, and staff, our value chain marketing 
methodology has continued to produce results.

In the Corporate Segment, we deepened and 
expanded the wallet share of existing relationships 
while also expanding with many major corporates 
across various sectors of the Nigerian economy. We 
are poised to strategically grow our market share of 
their business and consolidate on previous year’s 
successes.

We have continued to use the value chain strategy 
to enroll customers under the Commercial Segment 
through the provision of finance solutions to vital 
industries such as manufacturing, real estate, oil 
and gas, general commerce, and agriculture. The 
bank has continued to contribute to economic 
development.

Recognizing the importance of small and medium-
sized businesses to economic development, we 
targeted players in the sector with sector-specific 
value-added products.

Our retail business is on an upward trajectory with 
the creation of numerous retail products targeted 
at employees of corporates on our books. A lot 
more offerings will be deployed in the current year 
given the expanding middle-class segment of the 
economy.

In 2021, a Fintech business-focused group was 
formed to capitalize on the prospects in this area 
through collaboration with important Fintech players 
in the industry, which resulted in onboarding key 
relationships with upscale opportunities.

In the public sector, we continue to gain traction. 
While we have been added to the revenue collecting 
platform for Lagos and Rivers states, processing for 
the rest of the states and the federal inland revenue 
is still underway. As part of our service portfolio, 
we now offer revenue collection services to both 
customers and non-customers. We also understand 
the financing limitations faced by the various levels 
of government and have tailored solutions to meet 
those needs.

While we continue to lend to help stimulate the 
economy, we collaborated with the Central Bank of 
Nigeria to finance segments of the economy expand 
through the disbursement of various intervention 
monies.

As we begin our third full financial year, our two-

MARKETING
ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT
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pronged strategy is to: 
1. Increase our wallet share of existing customers 

by providing services that match their needs, 
being available to listen, and providing timely and 
relevant value propositions.

2. Business diversification throughout all segments.

We will continue to mobilize low-cost, dependable 
deposit through the retail market, while also 
expanding our loan book through the acquisition 

of high-quality risk assets. We are positioned to 
cross-sell all the banks’ services and to provide new 
products and solutions in line with changing market 
conditions

The bank would also grow to new areas to broaden 
its reach while remaining committed to providing 
first-rate financial products and services to all 
our customers, especially the underserved and 
unbanked.
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ENTERPRISE RISK 
MANAGEMENT

One of the distinguishing features of firms in the 
Financial Services Industry is “the development 
of strong risk management systems”. Here, Risk 
Management is not only an approach to responding 
to negative stimuli from the environment but also 
an essential tool that helps the bank deliver on 
her promises to her esteemed stakeholders, 
most especially the customer. As a responsible 
organization, notwithstanding government 
regulations and oversight, we recognize that 
financial turmoil and asset bubbles will continue to 
develop. Therefore, our corporate executives act in 
the best interest of the public by actively managing 
the risk-reward trade-off offered to shareholders.  

The risk in the financial Service can take on many 
forms, including market, credit, and operational, 
hence, Titan Trust Bank through her Enterprise 
Risk Management Function institutionalizes 
the process for monitoring and managing the 
interactions among the various forms of risk with 
a view to increasing the value of the bank. Value 
is thus created by reducing exposures to credit 
losses, creating a cushion for market turmoil, 
reducing operational losses, and building resilience 
against disasters thereby ensuring the continuity of 
business to serve our esteemed customers.

The Enterprise Risk Management Division 
is structured to support the identification, 
measurement, monitoring, and controlling of risk 
throughout the Bank’s operations and in its various 
products and lines of business. Starting with the 
Board of Directors, senior management, all Heads 
of departments/business units to all staff members, 
there is a shared attitude and belief system which 
characterize the Bank, “we consider risk in all 

our undertakings, processes, procedures, and 
engagements to deliver sustainable value to all 
stakeholders of the bank”.

Our risk philosophy is evident in the board’s attitude, 
our human resource standards; ethical values; and 
in assigning authority and responsibilities. Titan 
Trust Bank has well-documented risk limits that 
cut across all parts of the Bank. Ranging from 
our products (inclusive of assets & liabilities) 
to services, the bank has clearly written policy 
statements that define its risk appetite. This is clearly 
communicated and understood by all responsible 
for risk management.

The Bank has adopted the 3 Lines risk management 
operating model. In this model, each business unit 
provides products/services to clients; manages 
associated risks as the first line. The second line 
has the Risk Management function to provide 
expertise, support, monitoring, and challenge on 
risk-related matters. The Internal Audit function as 
the third line provides independent and objective 
assurance and advice on all matters related to the 
achievement of set objectives. It is important to 
note that functions on the second and third lines 
have the value creation and protection mindset.

During the 2021 financial year, we achieved the 
following in respect of risk management:

 • Enhancement of the control environment,

 • Embedment of risk management culture across 
all functions

 • Implementation of Basel III framework and 
requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT
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 • Active monitoring and reporting of key risk 
areas.

 • Implementation of International Management 
Standards such as ISO22301, ISO20000, and 
ISO27001.

For the 2022 financial year, Enterprise Risk 
Management shall focus on:

 • Consolidating risk management frameworks and 
strengthening of risk management practices in 
the new merger between Titan Trust and Union 
Bank

 • integration of people, processes, and systems 
in the new merger.

 • Transformation of the Bank’s risk culture.
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INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY (IT)

ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT

Technology has been at the forefront of our 
business. We have leveraged technologies to 
deliver digital banking products and services in the 
past year.
In line with our strategic objectives for the year, the 
bank has rolled out digital products to meet various 
needs in the retail, corporate and commercial 
arms of our business. We have also partnered 
with leading Fintech institutions to create various 
business solutions.

NOTABLE IN THE YEAR ARE THE 
FOLLOWING:

 • Business process improvement and automation 
for various units (Operations, Digital Channels, 
Internal Audit, Risk Management) within the 
bank; NIP Inward Reconciliation Tool, Internet 
Banking Onboarding portal, ACL Robotics, 
Credit Risk Rating solution, Contact Centre 
CRM Implementation.

 • Implementation of regulatory services and 
products to align with the request from 
various regulatory bodies; CBN-TSA Solution, 
Notification to Customers on Dormant & Inactive 
Accounts, Suspicious Transaction Reporting 
Portal, CBN Harmonization Project, CBN 
Automated Information Sharing Service API, 
Notification on Expired Means of Identification, 
Forex Purchase service.

 • Payment services; NIBSS NQR payment service, 
Titan Trust Bank Mastercard Secure Code, and 
Automatic Billing Updater Implementation.

 • Continuous channels optimization to improve 
customer experience on our channels. In 
addition to ensuring customer safety, we 
implemented an Account block via USSD in 
the event the customer’s mobile device is 
compromised. 

 • In managing our business risk and ensuring 
standards across all our technology business, 
we have Information Technology standards 
leading to various certifications including ISO 
20000 and Business continuity management.

We will continue to leverage emerging technologies 
to create innovative products that enable seamless 
banking transactions and improve our internal 
processes, leading to higher levels of customer 
experience.

In 2022, we look forward to more innovation leading 
to the creation of unique banking products.
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DIGITAL CHANNELS
ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT

Titan Trust Bank has continued to grow since it first 
opened to customers in late 2019.

The bank’s Digital Channels have expanded to 
reflect this growth with transactions performed via 
Digital Channels now at over N3 billion monthly.

We recognize gaps and challenges most customers 
face and provide innovative solutions to serve their 
needs. 

As one of the foremost Digital Banks in Nigeria, we 
recognize the importance of new and emerging 
technologies and continuously invest to retain our 
advantage.

NETWORK EXPANSION
To ensure we continue delivering efficient and 
seamless service Titan Trust Bank increased the 
total number of ATM’s deployed within the year by 
12 which brings the total number of ATMs to 22 (on-
site and off-site).

All our ATMs are equipped with various functionalities 
to meet customers day to day transaction 
requirements, for example, cash withdrawals, 
cardless withdrawals, transfers, bill payments, and 
airtime top-ups.

We have deployed over 500 touchscreen POS 
machines equipped with the latest Android 
operating system, this ensures that transactions are 
processed within the shortest possible time and 
merchants are able to receive settlement within 24 
hours of the transaction.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS
Titan Trust Bank’s goal is to create value through 
enhanced technology by providing accessible 
solutions for all its customers. We are determined to 
offer best in class Digital Channel services including 
Funds Transfer at Points of Sale (POS) terminals, 
Debit Cards, Internet banking, Mobile banking, a 
New Quick Response (NQR) code for purchases, 
E-Naira for financial inclusion of the unbanked and 
underbanked and USSD Services.
 
The Bank has continually invested heavily in 
developing and adopting some of the most  
comprehensive and seamless digital platforms in 
the market. Our debit cards are accepted across 
all terminals and allow customers to pay for goods 
and services with ease, the newly launched NQR 
code has made payment by customers simple by 
just scanning the NQR code at merchant locations 
using their Mobile Banking application.

The Bank’s Digital Channels, i.e., Mobile Banking, 
Internet Banking, USSD and ATM terminals are best 
in class and give customers 24/7 access to funds 
in their accounts providing flexibility to enable our 
customers bank from anywhere at any time. 

Internet Banking: This channel has been set up to 
satisfy the need of all corporate account holders. 
The application guarantees a secure and convenient 
way for our corporate customers to access and 
transact on their accounts 24 hours a day, 7 days 
a week. 

Titan Mobile App: Our mobile application continues 
to be available on both Android and iOS devices 
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with new features/functionalities like NQR payment 
and E-Naira to make transacting seamless for our 
customers and merchants. The Titan Mobile App 
remains the best by providing instant electronic 
funds transfer and is configured to prevent 
fraudulent debits. 

USSD: Titan’s USSD channel *922# is constantly 
updated with fixes that allow uninterrupted access 
to customers from their mobile devices 24/7. 
Customers have continued to open accounts, 
transfer funds, request debit cards, and perform 
other self-service requests via this channel.

Debit Cards: For Individual and Corporate account 
holders, the bank offers Standard and Platinum 
Mastercard and Verve debit cards which allow all 
Titan cardholders perform transactions on ATMs, 
PoS, and on the Web. The Bank also makes use of 
instant card issuance which has reduced the wait 
time to get a debit card to less than 5 minutes

ATMs: Titan’s ATM network has grown within the 

past year and supports cash withdrawals, instant 
funds transfer, cardless withdrawal, and bills 
payment, allowing our customers to perform these 
functions on the go.

POS: Our state-of-the-art terminals enable 
merchants enjoy benefits such as fast transaction 
response time, 24-hour settlement, and online 
real-time access for transaction monitoring of 
transactions and reconciliation.

VISION FOR THE FUTURE
Issuance of the Bank’s World Elite Mastercard debit 
cards are high on the priority list for high and ultra-
high net worth individuals.

Titan’s Corporate Internet Banking platform will 
continue to be updated with additional features, 
access to credit facilities, Remita payments, Tax, 
and Duty payments, as well as Letter of Credit 
initiation and monitoring, among others.



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 25

HUMAN RESOURCES
ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT

PEOPLE FIRST, ALWAYS
2021 FY was an opportunity for Human Resources 
to consolidate and build on the new capabilities it 
developed in 2020, by retaining and standardizing 
the use of virtual platforms for recruitment, training, 
and counseling, whilst driving staff engagement 
through effective internal communication, 
maintaining mental health awareness and 
implementing innovative wellbeing initiatives. 

PARTNERING WITH BUSINESS
In 2021 Human Resources partnered with business 
to deliver new locations at Allen Avenue and Apapa 
in Lagos, as well as Kano and Abuja. The increase 
in business activities required expansion of existing 
business development, support, and operations 
teams to ensure continued optimal service delivery.
 
Though the Covid pandemic is still a global health 
challenge, the availability of the vaccines from 
March 2021 greatly enhanced the team’s ability 
to drive business whilst remaining safe. Human 
Resources facilitated and drove vaccination uptake 
by staff so that we were able to return to work safely 
on-site.

Effective Performance Management is 
indispensable for business success. In line 
with this, HR anchored the implementation of a 
scorecard system of measurement with function-
specific KPIs for all roles, which ensures the impact 
of every department to business success can be 
distilled and rewarded. 
Our focus on building technical skills in Titans birthed 
intensive training interventions on our core banking 

system and credit risk management for operations 
and business development teams respectively, and 
various function-specific training for other staff in 
the Bank. 

BIGGER AND BETTER 
We closed the year 2021 with 104 new hires and 
a total headcount of 182, an increase of about 
65.5% in headcount over the 2020 FY. Despite the 
increase in the number of staff, the focus on building 
technical skills across all departments of the Bank 
ensured that the percentage of staff trained in 2021 
was the same 97% achieved in 2020.

Our entry-level cadre grew by 96%, from 27 to 53, 
with a male to female ratio of 1.12:1 - highlighting 
our focus on diversity and equal opportunity. This 
increase is in line with our focus on organic growth 
and developing successors for all roles in the Bank, 
since purchasing talent from other organizations is 
expensive and dilutes our unique culture.

To forestall the negative impact of the high 
mobility of Technology talent, the Bank proactively 
commenced the Titan Technology Academy which 
aims to ensure adequate succession and continuity 
in our Technology team. This led to a 108% increase 
in the size of the team from 13 to 27 as at December 
31, 2021.

HARNESSING OUR COMPETITIVE 
ADVANTAGE 
The age demographic of Titan Trust Bank is 73% 
millennial, which confers the unique advantage of 
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having a workforce of digital natives who understand 
and can translate the desires and preferences of 
the youthful Nigerian population into market-leading 
digital products and services.

Our Titan culture is a unique blend and possibly 
confers a higher degree of business intelligence, 
agility, and synergy than the culture of any one of 
the Organizations our people were recruited from. 
Thus, entrenching our Titan values and culture 
remains a critical imperative as we move towards 
a higher maturity level as an organization. In 2022, 
we will invest more in training and rewards for 

high-performing Titans, to ensure their continued 
motivation and retention. Recruitment will remain 
an ongoing activity throughout the year, to provide 
the resources required to expand our frontiers and 
respond with agility to new developments in the 
local and international business environment.

Our goal in 2022 is to facilitate sustainable employee 
engagement by continuing to promote ethical work 
practices in the organization and improving synergy 
across all our teams and locations.



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 27

TREASURY
ANNUAL REPORT BY DEPARTMENT

2021 HIGHLIGHTS 
The Treasury Group was one of the pillars of the 
Bank’s successful performance in 2021. The team 
positioned the Bank strategically to thrive in the 
dynamic market environment of 2021 despite the 
stimulating operating environment, new government 
policies domestically and internationally, and its 
attendant impact on businesses. By providing 
innovative solutions to our customers, the Treasury 
Department was able to take advantage of 
opportunities in the market to generate a decent 
trading & sales revenue.
 
As the CBN continued to bolster the market and 
provide the necessary impetus to engender market 
confidence and stability, we developed a diversified 
portfolio of product offerings including Forwards, 
OTC Futures, and Swaps to enhance clients’ 
confidence with the bank’s FX generation abilities. 
Within the financial year, our derivatives volume 
more than doubled as we grew our volumes by 
onboarding more clients and delivering seamless 
service round the clock.

The Trade & Treasury team working very closely with 
the various business development teams were able 
to grow our share of the export business thereby 
increasing our share of Export proceeds from the 
previous year.

The Treasury unit provides services such as 
market-making, derivatives trading, Fixed income 
instruments, and foreign exchange, while also 
managing the Bank’s Correspondent Banking 
relationships. The unit works closely with the 
business development team as well as Corporate 

and Commercial Banking clients to deliver currency, 
money market, and fixed income solutions tailored 
specifically for their requirements. The unit focuses 
on creating wealth, whilst mitigating interest rate 
and foreign exchange risks for the bank and its 
customers.

At Titan Trust Bank, our Correspondent banking 
Unit works closely with the Trade services unit to 
enhance our ability to provide both plain vanilla & 
customized Trade Services Products – Letters of 
Credit, Bills for Collections, Structure financing, and 
Guarantees as well as Official Agency Supported 
Financing among other things.

TREASURY PRODUCTS:
Titan treasury products afford customers the 
opportunity for funds management and provide 
investment options in both local and foreign 
currency assets. These products include:

 • Our liquidity management products in local 
currency, foreign currency, and structured 
borrowings.

 • Investment options are provided in local 
currency assets such as fixed income (T-bills, 
Bonds, Promissory notes, Commercial papers) 
and Term deposits.

 • Our customers can raise funds via local 
corporate bond issuance, commercial paper 
issuance, and other instruments to generate 
funds.

 • Our foreign currency assets options include 
Euro bonds, and foreign currency term deposits. 
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 • We also provide structured transactions that 
include Futures Contract (NDFs), Engineered 
SWAPS with clients and CBN as well as 
hybrid REPO / SWAP trade without e-CCI and 
Forward receivable refinancing amongst other 
structures.

Titan treasury products are offered at competitive 
rates to deliver value to our customers in terms 
of the low cost of raising funds and maximizing 
returns on investment for the preferred options by 
our customers. We also ensure the safety of funds 
for our customers, keeping in mind that return of 
investment is crucial and more important than return 
on investment.

KEY MILESTONES DURING THE YEAR
Within the review period, our superior products 
offerings to corporate clients have delivered 
solutions to ease their business challenges, 
especially in the following areas:

 • Trade Finance - we have consistently 
demonstrated our capabilities and won Global 
Finance Award as Best Trade Finance Bank in 
Nigeria for the second time in a row 2022. We 
owe our award to our corporate clients that, 

despite our young history, have demonstrated 
confidence in our capabilities by entrusting us 
with their business especially trade and other 
related business activities.

 • Correspondent Banking - we increased the 
number of correspondent banking relationships 
within the year, closing with five correspondent 
banking relationships in our books for our trade 
transactions. Our clean lines grew by over 
150% within the financial year from some of our 
correspondent banking partners.

 • Within the period, the bank also commenced 
the process of a Receiving banking license 
with the SEC, a prerequisite for participating 
in capital market issuance for our numerous 
clients that want to tap into that space to raise 
funding.

THE YEAR AHEAD 
As we look to the new financial year, we are poised 
to deliver more bespoke treasury solutions and 
cutting-edge yield-enhancing products to our 
clients whilst also gaining market share in Nigeria.
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F I N A N C I A L S
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COMPLIANCE 
REPORT

Titan Trust Bank continues to make compliance with laws, rules, legislations, regulatory pronouncements, 
internal policies, best business practices, ethics and other standards an integral part of its risk management 
strategy. The Board of Directors, Executive Management and other Senior Management remain committed 
to entrenching sound compliance culture across the entire activities of the bank. Some of the compliance 
activities in the bank during the year are reported hereunder:

BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT
Board oversight on compliance activities in the year under review was very strong. The Board approved the 
revised AML/CFT and Proliferation policy, Compliance Program for the year and other revised policies. The 
Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee reviewed, discussed and recommended necessary action on 
issues raised in the quarterly regulatory compliance report to the Committee by the Executive Compliance 
Officer.  The recommendations of the committee were also reviewed and ratified by the directors at the Board 
meetings for necessary implementation within stipulated deadlines. 

ADOPTION OF RISK BASED APPROACH TO COMPLIANCE
The Bank adopted the risk-based approach to manage its compliance risks. The bank deployed two robust 
compliance solutions to strengthen its compliance risk management efforts. The solutions assisted in 
conducting compliance processes, identifying and assessing risks, implementing and monitoring controls, 
and mitigating/eliminating the gaps in the bank’s operations. The bank’s products and services, customers, 
counterparties, and business locations are profiled and assigned risk ratings. This approach allows compliance 
officers and/or managers to identify the most significant compliance risks, propose controls to mitigate those 
risks and focused more on the risks that could impact the bank significantly. The approach also provides an 
effective means to get management to understand and give appropriate attention to compliance priorities.

AML/CFT TRAINING 
AML/CFT training was an integral part of the approved compliance program for year 2021. Trainings were 
conducted for Board members, Executive management, and other staff during the year. The trainings were 
conducted in compliance with requirement of section 9 of the Money Laundering Prohibition act of 2011 (as 
amended), CBN AML/CFT regulations 2013 and CBN AML/CFT (Administrative Sanctions) Regulations 2018. 
Records relating to AML/CFT trainings were maintained, and appropriate returns were filed with the regulators. 
Most importantly, knowledge gained from the trainings impacted staff’s disposition to compliance positively, 
and further enhanced an understanding of their roles in implementing AML/CFT policy in the bank. 



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, ETHICAL CONDUCT AND WHISTLE BLOWING 
Compliance with the code of corporate governance, whistle blowing requirements and other ethical 
requirements are other compliance areas the bank focused during the year. The Chief Compliance Officer, 
in addition to his AML/CFT and other compliance responsibilities, monitored and reported to the Central 
Bank of Nigeria on the bank’s compliance with the CBN Code of Corporate Governance and Whistle Blowing 
Requirements for Financial Institutions in Nigeria. This is in addition to the independent review of the Bank’s 
compliance with the CBN code carried out by KPMG Professional Services and the independent appraisal of 
individual directors by EY Professional Services. The bank’s compliance with the code during period the was 
considered high and still very high till date.

In line with sections 3.3 and 3.4 of the Central Bank of Nigeria guidelines on Whistle Blowing for Banks and 
Other Financial Institutions in Nigeria, Titan Trust Bank Limited continues to give concerned individuals the 
opportunity to anonymously report any unethical issue discovered to the appropriate authorities within the 
bank and/or CBN through the bank’s whistle blowing channels for appropriate action. Such complaints, 
observations, feedbacks, and reports can be made by whistle blowers using any of the bank’s channels as 
shown below.

Website: www.titantrustbank.com
Email:  whistleblow@titantrustbank.com
Phone No: +234-1-2265114

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE FUNCTIONS
The compliance functions in the bank were independently reviewed by regulators and internal auditors at 
different times during the year. The bank recorded no major exception, while few areas suggested for 
improvement were adequately addressed.

SANCTIONS
The bank did not contravene any regulation during the period. Hence, there was no warning, sanction or 
penalty imposed on the bank by the regulators. We will continue to build on the milestone achieved in years 
ahead and efforts will be intensified to continually improve compliance culture in the bank.
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C O R P O R AT E
G O V E R N A N C E
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In thousands of naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Gross earnings 13,624,932 8,558,250

Profit before income tax 4,473,057 2,930,768

Income tax (68,820) (29,165)

Profit for the year 4,404,237 2,901,603

DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2021

In accordance with Section 377 of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act, 2020 (“CAMA”), the 
Directors present their report (the “Report”) on 
the affairs of Titan Trust Bank Limited (“the Bank”), 
together with the audited financial statements and 
auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 
2021.

The Bank recognizes that it is subject to the 
Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance 2018 
(the “Code”) and has taken steps to ensure that 
its corporate governance systems and processes, 
having regard to its current size and age, reflect 
the standards of the Code as well as international 
best practice in order to retain the confidence of 
its stakeholders.

a. Legal form
Titan Trust Bank Limited was incorporated in 
Nigeria as a private limited liability company on 
December 12, 2018 and commenced operations 

on October 4, 2019 after being issued its national 
commercial banking license by the Central Bank 
of Nigeria in April 2019.

b. Principal activity and business review
The Bank aims to serve retail, SME and corporate 
customers whilst providing value-oriented, 
technology-driven and customer-centric 
services in an efficient yet seamless manner. The 
operational activities of the Bank are undertaken 
from the Bank’s headquarters in Lagos State, the 
commercial hub of Nigeria.

c. Operating results
Highlights of the Bank’s operating results for the 
year under review are as follows:

d. Directors and their interests
In accordance with Section 275 of CAMA, 
Directors’ direct and indirect interests in the issued 
share capital of the Bank are recorded in the

Register of Members as at 31st December 2021 
and are contained in the Report.
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e. Directors’ interest in contracts

For the purpose of sections 301, 302 and 303 of 
the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria 
(CAMA 2020), none of the directors had direct or 
indirect interests in contracts with the Bank during 
the period.

f. Property and equipment

Information relating to changes in property and 
equipment is provided in Note 20 to the financial 
statements. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair 
value of the Bank’s property, plant and equipment 
is not less than the value shown in the financial 
statements.

g. Shareholding analysis

The shareholding pattern of the Bank as at 31 
December 2021 is as stated below:

Direct Shareholding
Number of ordinary 

shares held 31 December 
2021

Direct Shareholding
Number of ordinary 

shares held 31 December 
2020

Mr. Babatunde Lemo (Chairman) 529,970 529,970
Mr. Mudassir Amray (Managing Director) - -
Dr. (Mrs.) Adaeze Udensi - -
Mr. Andrew Chukwudi Ojei 529,970 529,970
Alhaji Abubakar Muhammed - -
Mr. Mackombo Omoile - -
Dr. Oyindasola Oluremi Oni** - -

In thousands of naira

Share Range
No of 

Shareholders

Percentage 
(%) of 

Shareholders
No. of 

Holdings
Percentage 

(%) of

1 - 1,000,000 2 33.34 1,060,000 1.82
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 2 33.33 7,419,600 12.70
10,000,001 - 30,000,000 2 33.33 49,930,400 85.48

TOTAL 6 100 58,410,000 100.00

In thousands of naira

Share Range
No of 

Shareholders

Percentage 
(%) of 

Shareholders
No. of 

Holdings
Percentage 

(%) of

1 - 1,000,000 2 33.34 1,060,000 1.82
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 2 33.33 7,419,600 12.70
10,000,001 - 30,000,000 2 33.33 49,930,400 85.48

TOTAL 6 100 58,410,000 100.00

** Appointed member of the Board of Directors on November 30, 2021.
Alhaji Aminu Bashari ceased to be a director effective January 1, 2021 because he is deceased.

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

The shareholding pattern of the Bank as at 31 December 2020 is as stated below:
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h. Substantial interest in shares

According to the register of members as at 31 

December 2021, no shareholder held more than 5% 
of the issued share capital of the Bank except
the following:

i. Charitable contributions

The Bank made contributions to charitable 

organizations amounting to N25.350 million during 
the year. The schedule of charitable donations is
shown below:

j. Significant Transactions

Titan Trust Bank, on December 18, 2021, executed 
a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) with 
the majority shareholders of Union Bank of Nigeria 
Plc to acquire 89.39% of the shares of Union Bank 
of Nigeria Plc subject to regulatory approvals. The 
Bank is currently seeking all necessary regulatory 
approvals to consummate the transaction, which 
will lead to a merger of the two financial institutions.
However, the bank has not applied the provisions 
of IFRS 3- Business Combination, as the date of 
completion and final acquisition value were still 
being finalised as at the year-end.

k. Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting date which 
could have a material effect on the financial position 
of the Bank as at 31 December 2021 which have not 

been adequately provided for or disclosed in these 
financial statements

l.  Human Resources

Employment of disabled persons
The Bank continues to maintain its policy of non-
discrimination in recruitment and selection when 
considering applications for employment, including 
those received from physically challenged persons. 
The Bank’s policy is that the most qualified and 
experienced persons are recruited for appropriate 
job levels, irrespective of an applicant’s state of 
origin, ethnicity, religion or physical condition.

In the event of any employee becoming disabled 
in the line of duty through industrial accident, the 
Bank ensures continuity of employment by
arranging suitable training for such employees who 
are subsequently redeployed to jobs compatible 

In thousands of naira

Share Range No. of Holdings
Percentage (%) of 

Holdings No. of Holdings
Percentage (%) 

of Holdings

Aminu Yaro 5,299,700 9.07 5,299,700 9.07
Luxis International DMCC 28,090,400 48.09 28,090,400 48.09
Magna International DMCC 21,840,000 37.39 21,840,000 37.39

In thousands of naira

INTRA Africa trade fair sponsorship 13,850 -

Annual Banking and Finance Conference sponsorship 7,000 -

Bankers’ retreat 4,500 -
Covid 19 Relief Fund - 50,000

Tunde Lemo Foundation - 250

25,350 50,250

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
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31 December 2021 31 December 2020Analysis of staff strength by gender

Analysis of top management positions by gender as at 31 December 2021

Analysis of top management positions by gender as at 31 December 2020

Analysis of executive and non executive Directors by gender as at 31 December 2021

Analysis of executive and non executive Directors by gender as at 31 December 2020

Description Number % of Total Staff Number % of Total Staff
Male 71 39 41 37
Female 111 61 69 63
Total 182 100 110 100

Grade Female Male Total
General Manager - - -
Deputy General Manager 1 1 2
Assistant General Manager - 3 3
Total 1 4 5

Percentage 20 80 100

Grade Female Male Total
Executive Director 1 - 1
Managing Director - 1 1
Non Executive Director - 3 3
Independent Non-Executive Director - 2 2
Total 1 6 7

Percentage 14 86 100

Grade Female Male Total
Executive Director 1 - 1
Managing Director - 1 1
Non Executive Director - 3 3
Independent Non-Executive Director - 2 2
Total 1 6 7

Percentage 14 86 100

Grade Female Male Total
General Manager - - -
Deputy General Manager 1 - 1
Assistant General Manager - 2 2
Total 1 3 3

Percentage 33 67 100

with their capability. Presently, the Bank does not 
have any physically challenged persons on its 
payroll.
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In thousands of naira

Number of cards

In thousands of naira

Number Amount Claimed Amount Refunded

31 December 2021 31 December 2021 31 December 2021

N’000 N’000 N’000
Received complaints 2,298 82,881 8,161
Resolved complaints (2,298) (82,881) (8,161)
Unresolved complaints pending end of the year - - -

Card Type 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Master Debit Cards 1,809 825
Verve Cards 6,769 3,042

Volume of transactions 134,816 39,272

Value of transactions (N) 1,162,423,440 278,541,558

Number Amount Claimed Amount Refunded

31 December 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2020

N’000 N’000 N’000
Received complaints 1,179 8,647 6,346
Resolved complaints (1,179) (8,647) (6,346)
Unresolved complaints pending end of the year - - -

m. Health, safety and welfare at work

The Bank gives priority attention to health, safety 
and welfare of its employees and hence maintains 
business premises designed to ensure the health 
and safety of its employees and customers alike. 
This has been achieved by adequately insuring 
employees against occupational hazards. Fire 
prevention and Fire-fighting equipment are installed 
in strategic locations within the Bank’s premises. 
All fire protection equipment are periodically 
maintained to ensure they are always fit for purpose 
in the event of an emergency situation while 
relevant personnel are continuously trained in the 
safe operation of these equipment.

The Bank encourages healthy living and mental 
wellness through periodic employee wellness 
programs, it also operates a contributory Pension 

Scheme and provides a comprehensive Health 
Insurance Plan for its employees and their 
dependents.

n. Employee involvement and training

The Bank is committed to providing employees 
information regarding issues that affect the Bank’s 
performance and plans as well as seeking their 
views, where practicable, on matters that affect their 
interests. The Bank places a high premium on the 
development of its manpower. Consequently, the 
Bank ensures that employees undergo on-the-job 
training to improve their efficiency and productivity 
levels. In addition, the Bank is poised to sponsor its 
employees for various training courses, both locally 
and overseas.

o.  Complaints

p.  Number of cards issued and transaction history
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q. Auditors

Messrs. KPMG Professional Services, having 
satisfied the relevant corporate rules on their tenure 
in the office have indicated their willingness to 

continue in the office. In accordance with section 
401 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 
2020 (CAMA 2020), therefore, the auditor will be 
re-appointed at the next annual general meeting of 
the Bank without any resolution being passed.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Ekene Louis Samuel
Company Secretary/Head, Legal
FRC/2020/002/00000022153
Plot 1680 Sanusi Fafunwa Street,
Victoria Island,
Lagos
18 March 2022
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Introduction

Corporate Governance is essential for ensuring 
accountability, fairness and transparency in a 
company’s relationship with all its stakeholders. 
Titan Trust Bank Limited (the “Bank”) maintains and 
complies with relevant and applicable corporate 
governance standards. The Bank undertakes 
frequent internal assessment of its compliance 
with the applicable laws, corporate governance 
codes, rules and regulations and submits periodic 
compliance reports to the Central Bank of Nigeria 
(“CBN”), its primary regulator, and the Nigeria 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“NDIC”). The Board 
of Directors of the Bank (the “Board”) is committed 
to ensuring sustainable long-term success for the 
Bank and is mindful that best corporate governance 
practices are essential for ensuring accountability, 
fairness and transparency. The Bank also aims to 
promote and sustain good relationship with all 
stakeholders.

The applicable corporate governance codes and 
rules govern a wide range of issues, including but 
not limited to Board and Management, Shareholders, 
Rights of other Stakeholders, Disclosure 
Requirements, Risk Management, Organizational 
Structure, Quality of Board Membership, Board 
Performance Appraisal, Reporting Relationship, 
Ethics and Professionalism, Conflict of Interest, 
Sustainability, Whistle-blowing, Code of Ethics, 
Complaints Management Processes and the 
Role of Auditors. These, in addition to the Bank’s 
Memorandum and Articles of Association, Board, 
Board Committees and Management Committee 
Charters, collectively constitute the bedrock of 
the Bank’s corporate governance framework. The 

Bank’s governance structure is hinged on its internal 
governance framework, which is executed through 
the following principal organs:

(a) The Board;
(b) Board Committees;
(c) General Meetings;
(d) Management Committees;

The Board

Board Size, Structure and Responsibilities Whilst 
the Bank’s operations are regulated by the CBN, it 
also complies with the provisions of the National 
Code of Corporate Governance, 2018 (as required) 
(the “NCCG”). The Bank has complied with the 
provisions of the NCCG. Total Board size during 
the year ended 31 December 2021 was seven (7), 
comprising two (2) Executive Directors, including 
the Managing Director/CEO, and five (5) Non-
Executive Directors.

The profiles of the members of the Board are as 
follows:

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 
REPORT
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Mr. Babatunde Lemo
Chairman

Babatunde Lemo has a First Class Honours degree in Accountancy 
from the university of Nigeria, Nsukka. He also attended an 
Advanced Management Programme (AMP) at the Wharton College, 
the University of Pennsylvania, USA as well as executive training 
programmes at Harvard University, INSEAD (Fontainebleau, France) 
and Brandeis University in Boston. Babatunde is a fellow of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria, Fellow Institute of 
Directors, as well as a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers 
of Nigeria. He has over 37 years of significant leadership and top 
management experience in the public and private sector. He served 
at the CBN as the Deputy Governor in charge of Operations and 
Deputy Governor in charge of Financial Systems Surveillance.

Whilst at the CBN, his contribution to public policy in the financial 
sector included modernization of the Nigerian payment system, rapid 
deployment of the electronic banking system, the implementation 
of the Banking Sector Consolidation, formulation, implementation 
and supervisory framework of the Microfinance policy—all under the 
supervision of the CBN Governor. He also led the restructuring of 
the Abuja Security and Commodities Exchange and Nigeria Export 
Bank (NEXIM) as Chairman of both institutions.

As Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Wema Bank 
Plc from 2000 to 2003, Mr. Lemo championed the transformation 
which led to a superlative performance that made the bank rank as 
one of the ten most profitable banks in Nigeria in 2003. He currently 
chairs the Boards of Federal Road Maintenance Agency (FERMA), 
Flutterwave Nigeria Ltd and Lambeth Capital Ltd. He is a holder of a 
National Honor of Officer of the Federal Republic of Nigeria (OFR).
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Mr. Mudassir Amray
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Mudassir is a seasoned banker with well-rounded exposure of over 
26 years in senior management roles with a proven track record of 
adaptability in six geographies (USA, Nigeria, Malaysia, Hong Kong, 
Singapore and Pakistan) Before moving to Titan Trust Bank, Mudassir 
was with Citibank New York. Throughout his career, Mudassir held 
various senior positions at Citibank and other foreign & local banks, 
including:

 • Managing Director / Head of Global Capital Management & 
Senior Credit Officer for LATAM region, Citibank New York.

 • Managing Director / Group Head of Global Corporate & 
Investment Banking & Senior Credit Officer for Citibank Nigeria 
and Ghana.

 • Head of Wholesale Banking at Al-Rajhi Bank in Malaysia.

 • Director, Global Network Capital Management at Citibank in 
Hong Kong.

 • Head of Islamic Banking for Asia Pacific region at Citibank in 
Singapore.

 • Director / Country Business Head & Senior Credit Officer at 
Citibank in Pakistan.

 • Regional Manager & Country Head Structured Finance for Bank 
Alfalah in Pakistan.

 • Corporate Bank Head at United Bank Limited in Pakistan.

Mudassir has strong focus on governance and processes and has a 
balanced approach towards risk and business. He exhibits courage 
in taking tough decisions and had developed and adopted smart 
business strategies in different environments.
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Dr. (Mrs.) Adaeze Udensi
Executive Director

Dr. (Mrs.) Adaeze Udensi, is currently the Executive Director 
(Business, Operations, IT and Services) and Executive Compliance 
Officer of Titan Trust Bank Limited. Prior to joining Titan Trust 
Bank in January 2019, she was in Heritage Bank Plc as Executive 
Director in charge of the South Region and Executive Compliance 
Officer. Up until January 2018, she was in charge of Retail, SME, 
E-Business, Collections and Private Banking across the entire 160 
branches following a recent restructuring to position the Bank to 
aggressively pursue a sustainable growth agenda. Prior to July 
2016, she oversaw the south Bank Directorate which covers all the 
branches of the bank in the South-South and South-East of Nigeria. 
Her distinguished banking career spans over 23 years, 16 of which 
were spent at Zenith Bank Plc where she rose to the level of General 
Manager Group Zonal Head overseeing Public Sector/Commercial 
Banking and Oil & Gas businesses in the Rivers/Bayelsa Zone. 
She graduated with a second-class upper division honours B.Sc. 
degree in Banking & Finance and an MBA in Business Administration 
from Rivers State University of Science and Technology. She has 
attended several Executive Management Programmes both locally 
and internationally notably Wharton Business School, Pennsylvania, 
Kellogg School of Management, Illinois, Harvard Business School, 
Boston and INSEAD Fontainebleau, France. Admitted to the degree 
of Master of Business Administration (MBA) in Chartered Banker 
with Merit by Bangor University in December 2017. She was also 
admitted as Doctor of Philosophy in Credit Management from 
International University, Panama in August 2019. Holds Certified 
Credit and Financial Examiner (CCFE) from London Postgraduate 
Credit Management College, UK. Holds Certified Credit and Financial 
Analysis Professional (CCFAP) with Upper Credit from Postgraduate 
School of Credit and Financial Management, Lagos. She possesses 
strong skills and deep knowledge of the market and business 
fundamentals relevant to the financial services industry and a top-
notch award-winning professional experience which spans Retail, 
Commercial, E-Business, Private Wealth Management, Credit & 
Marketing, Turnaround Management and Business Development. 
Her contributions to the business and financial services have earned 
her numerous awards some of which include: Member, Chartered 
Institute of Bankers, Scotland (MCIBS, Chartered Banker). Fellow, 

Institute of Credit Administration of 
Nigeria (FCIA). Honourary Senior 
Member, The Chartered Institute 
of Bankers of Nigeria. Associate 
(HCIB), The Chartered Institute of 
Bankers of Nigeria. Member (ACIB), 
The Institute of Directors of Nigeria 
(Member IoD). Emerged as “Credit 
Director of the Year” in 2016 – an 
award from the Institute of Credit 
Administration of Nigeria. Patron, 
Garden City Advancement Award 
(Rivers@50) and awarded “Role 
Model for the Female Child” in 2017. 
She is married with children.
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Mr Andrew Chukwudi Ojei
Non – Executive Director

Mr Andy Ojei is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nigeria as well as a Fellow and Council Member of The Institute of 
Credit Administration of Nigeria and has over 28 years of experience 
in the financial sector. Mr Ojei was an Executive Director of Zenith 
Bank Plc (until 2013) in charge of Enterprise Risk Management. 
Prior to this, he set up the first offshore subsidiary for Zenith Bank 
in Ghana as Managing Director (winning bank of the year in 2008).

In addition, he pioneered the establishment of the bank’s branches 
in Ibadan and Abuja. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from 
the University of Lagos and an MBA from the Enugu State University 
of Science and Technology. Mr. Ojei has also attended courses at 
Wharton Philadelphia and San Francisco, Harvard Business School, 
Lagos Business School, Euromoney in London, and Advanced 
Management Program at INSEAD, France.

Mr Ojei is a seasoned businessman with interests in Real Estate and 
Information Technology. He served as a Council Member of Ritman 
University, Ikot Ekpene, Akwa Ibom State, Nigeria from 2015 to 2019.
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Alh. Abubakar Mohammed
Independent Non-Executive Director

Alhaji Mohammed is a seasoned entrepreneur with over 30 years of 
experience managing and leading businesses across the country. 
He is the Managing Director of Syndicated Investment limited, 
a construction firm. He has held this post for over 33 years. He 
has also been the Chairman/CEO of GB-Impex limited, a security, 
contracting and trading company, since 1993.
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Mr Mackombo Chukwudi Omoile
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mackombo Omoile founded Architekon, LLC. a U.S.A. based 
company in 2003. Architekon, LLC. is a design building, 
construction management and real estate development company. 
In 2016, he founded Architekon Energy Group, LLC. a renewable 
energy development company in Maryland, USA. Mackombo has 
over twenty-five years experience working on public and private 
projects in various capacities - design, construction, and community 
development. Mackombo in 2004 co-developed Collington Square, 
Baltimore City, a 7 million USD, 84 units, 4 storey apartments for rental 
under the Federal Government Housing and Urban Development Tax 
Credit and Gap funding programs.

He also worked on other Public funded projects like the 2.5 million 
USD, Justice Place townhouses in Penn North, Baltimore City 
and served as project administrator for the development of The 
Casade, a 74 unit 4 story senior apartment complex in Cumberland, 
Maryland. In 2009, following his return to Nigeria, Mackombo 
founded Architekon Nigeria Limited and has since been studying 
the real estate development market in Nigeria with keen interest. 
His notable projects in Nigeria include the Okija house in Anambra 
State, completed in 2009; the Water processing plant in Magboro, 
Ogun State, completed in 2010; the Dumies filling station along 
Lagos-Ibadan Expressway, Magboro, Ogun State. Mr Omoile earned 
his Master of Science degree in Real Estate Development (Finance 
Due-diligence and real estate portfolios) from Columbia University, 
in New York, New York; Master of Architecture in History, Design and 
Theory from from the university of Houston, Houston, Texas and 
a Bachelor of Architecture from University of Houston, Houston, 
Texas.
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Dr. (Mr) Oni Oyindasola Oluremi
Non-Executive Director

Dr Oluremi Oni is a seasoned banker with about 3 decades of cognate 
experience in Cooperate and Investment Banking, Corporate 
Finance, Credit Analysis, Commercial and Retail Banking. Dr Oni 
graduated from the prestigious Ahmadu Bello University, qualifying 
as a Doctor of Veterinary Medicine and receiving 3 different awards 
as the Best Graduating Student. In 1988, he obtained a Masters 
of Science (MSc) in Veterinary Public Health from Ahmadu Bello 
University. Oluremi also has an MBA in Finance from the University of 
Ilorin, Kwara State. Dr Oni’s Career spans the Banking and insurance 
industry. Following his spell in the Nigerian Agric Insurance Company 
between 1989 and 1992, he joined the then Chartered Bank, where 
he grew in the ranks as his career progressed, culminating in his 
appointment as Executive Director of Standard Chartered Bank 
Uganda Limited, in charge of the Origination and Client Coverage 
group of the bank. Thereafter, he was appointed Executive 
Director of Standard Chartered Bank Limited, Lagos, Nigeria, with 
the responsibility of overseeing Corporate and Institutional Client 
Services Group. Dr. Oni would later become the Head of Corporate 
& Institutional Banking and Head of International Corporates Group 
of Standard Chartered Bank, West Africa.

Dr Oni later joined First Bank of Nigeria Limited as the Executive 
Director in charge of Corporate Banking, a position he held till July 
2021. During his sojourn with First Bank of Nigeria Limited, he had 
a brief stint as the Acting Managing Director of FBN London UK. Dr. 
Oni possesses hands-on experience from his time on the Boards 
of various Financial Institutions and Corporates, as well as strong 
marketing and business strategy formation skills, strengthened by 
an in depth understanding of contemporary banking practices. An 
excellent team player and a good manager of people with a keen 
interest in people development. He has attended various training 
and development courses including the Pacific Institute Leadership 
Blueprint Coaching program, INSEAD Asia Campus, Singapore and 
Leadership Across Boundaries by Oxford University Said Business 
School.
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Training and Evaluation:

To further develop the skill level of the Board, 
members attend courses and training programmes 
suited to enhancing their functions. If the situation 
necessitates it, the Directors are entitled to seek 
independent professional advice on matters for 
which they require clarification. Titan Trust Bank 
has always emphasized on the performance of the 
Board as well as on the performance of individual 
members about their contributions to the Board and 
the Bank.

Functions of the Board:

The Board meets regularly (at least once every 
quarter) to perform its stewardship and oversight 
functions, primary among which are:

 • Review of the Bank’s goals as well as the 
strategy for achieving these goals.

 • Evaluation of present and future strengths, 
weaknesses and opportunities of the Bank. 
Comparisons with competitors, locally and 
internationally, and best practice.

 • Review and approval of the Bank’s financial 
objectives, plans and actions and significant 
allocation and expenditure.

 • Approval of the annual budget.

 • Approval of the annual and half-yearly financial 
statements, annual report and reports to 
shareholders.

 • Consideration and where appropriate, 
declaration or recommendation of the payment 
of dividends.

 • Reviewing the Bank’s audit requirements.

 • Reviewing the performance of, necessity for, 
and composition of Board Committees.

 • Approval of the remuneration of the Chairman, 
Non-Executive Directors and Management.

 • Reviewing risk management policies and 
controls, including compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements.

 • Reviewing the Bank’s code of conduct and 
ethical standards.

 • Reviewing shareholder and client relationships.

The Board also performs certain of its functions 
through various Board Committees and Management 

Committees. The delegation of these functions 
does not in any way derogate from the discharge by 
members of their duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board Governance, Nomination and 
Renumeration Committee

The Board Governance, Nomination and 
Renumeration Committee is made up of three 
(3) Non-Executive Directors. This Committee is 
responsible for the overall governance, nomination 
and renumeration responsibility of the Bank. This 
Committee’s terms of reference are as follows:

 • Review and continuously assess the size 
and composition of the Board and Board 
Committees, and recommend the appropriate 
Board structure and size, age, skills, 
competencies, composition, knowledge, 
experience and background of the directors in 
line with the needs of the Bank and diversity 
required to fully discharge the Board’s duties;

 • Establish a formal and transparent process for 
Board appointments, including establishing the 
criteria for appointment to the Board and Board 
committees, reviewing prospective candidates’ 
qualifications and any potential conflict of 
interest; assessing the contribution of current 
Directors against their re-nomination suitability, 
and making appropriate recommendations to 
the Board;

 • Recommendation of membership criteria for 
the Board, Board Committee.

 • Identification at the request of the Board of 
specific individuals for nomination to the 
Bank and making of recommendations on the 
appointment and election of New Directors 
(including the MD/CEO) to the Board, in line 
with the Bank’s approved Director selection 
criteria;

 • Review the effectiveness of the process for the 
selection and removal of Directors and making 
recommendations where appropriate;

 • Make recommendations to the Board annually 
with respect to the compensation and benefits 
for the executive directors;

 • Undertake the annual assessment of the 
independent status of each Independent 
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Directors;

 • Review and recommend for Board ratification, 
all terminal compensation arrangements for 
Directors and senior management.

 • Recommendation of appropriate compensation 
for Non-Executive Directors for Board and 
Annual General Meeting consideration;

 • Assessing the Bank’s financial and non-financial 
goals versus actual performance, evaluate the 
CEO in light of his performance, and recommend 
for approval of the independent members of 
the Board the CEO’s compensation level based 
on this evaluation;

 • Ensuring that there is an approved training policy 
for Directors, and monitoring of compliance 
with the policy;

 • Review and make recommendations on the 
Bank’s succession plan for the Chairman of 
the Board, Directors, Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer and all other Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors and 
other senior management staff to ensure 
leadership and continuity. The Succession 
planning is reviewed periodically with provision 
made for succession in emergency situations 
as well as long-term vacancies;

 • Regular monitoring of compliance with Bank’s 
code of ethics and business conduct for 
Directors and staff;

 • Review of the Corporate Governance report to 
be published in the Annual Report;

 • Review of the Bank’s organization structure 
and to make recommendations to the Board for 
approval;

 • Ensure annual review or appraisal of the 
performance of the Board and its committees 
is conducted. The review/appraisal cover all 
aspects of the Board’s structure, composition, 
responsibilities, individual competencies, Board 
operations, Board’s role in strategy setting, 
oversight over corporate culture, monitoring role 
and evaluation of management performance 
and stewardship towards shareholders;

 • Ensure the development and periodic review of 
Board charters, Board committee charters and 
other governance policies, such as the code of 
ethics, conflict of interest and whistleblowing 
policies among others;

The Board Finance and General Purpose 
Committee:

The Board Finance & General Purpose Committee 
has oversight responsibility for issues relating to 
the Bank’s budgetary process, procurements and 
strategic planning. The Committee considers large 
scale procurement by the Bank, as well as matters 
relating to staff welfare, discipline, staff remuneration 
and promotion. The Committee is made up of five 
(6) members: four (4) Non-Executive Directors 
and two (2) Executive Directors. It is chaired by a 
Non-Executive Director. This committee’s terms of 
reference are as follows:

Human Resources related:

 • To set and review the KPIs for the executive 
directors;

 • To review and make recommendation on all 
staff policy related matters.

 • To review and advise on major organizational 
changes and significant new human resources 
policies/programs or material changes to 
existing human resource policies and programs;

 • To review and monitor, on at least an annual 
basis, compensation and benefit programs and 
make recommendations thereon to the Board.

 • To periodically review the Bank’s human 
resources policies and make recommendations 
thereunto the Board;

 • To review and monitor the overall employment 
environment and consider any other human 
resource issues as it considers appropriate or 
as may be referred to it by the Board.

Finance related:

 • To review and recommend for approval the 
annual business plan of the bank with respect 
to profitability, liquidity and capital expenditure 
in

 • Order to assess the achievability of the Bank’s 
strategic, operational and merchandizing 
initiatives;

 • To review the profit, cash flow and capital 
expenditure forecasts as they are updated and 
analyzed throughout the fiscal year;
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 • To review and make recommendations to the 
Board on the Bank’s dividend policy, if any; and

 • To annually evaluate the committee’s 
performance as compared to the requirements 
of this Charter,

 • To review and make recommendations on 
branch expansion and/or closures to the Board.

 • To discharge any other duties or responsibilities 
delegated to the Committee by the Board.

The Board Credit Committee:

The primary function of this Committee is to 
consider all matters pertaining to the granting of 
credits by the Bank in accordance with approved 
policies and approval of credits in excess of 
the limits delegated to the Management Credit 
Committee, significant revisions to credit policies, 
and establish portfolio distribution guidelines in 
conformity with government regulations. The 
Committee is made up of five (5) members: two 
(3) Non-Executive Directors and two (2) Executive 
Directors. It is chaired by a non-executive Director. 
The committee’s terms of reference are as follows:

 • Reviewing the strategies of the Bank to develop 
and achieve the credit and lending goals of the 
Bank, and make appropriate recommendation 
to the Board;

 • Ensure that the Bank is in compliance with 
the minimum capital adequacy ratio as may be 
specified by the Central Bank of Nigeria from 
time to time;

 • Reviewing the Bank’s Credit Policy which is 
established to ensure the credit quality of the 
Bank and the Bank’s loan portfolio and maintain 
profitability. The Committee’s review also takes 
into account, changes in applicable laws or 
regulations as well as changing economic and/
or banking conditions. The Committee also 
makes recommendations appropriately to the 
Board for final approval;

 • Considering all Credits which are in excess of 
the limits delegated from time to time by the 
Board of Directors to the Management Credit 
Committee (MCC) and recommending same to 
the Board for approval;

 • Considering in line with necessary laws 
and regulations, all insider-related credit 
applications, including those of Directors and 
top Management staff and related parties, 

irrespective of the size and recommending 
same to the Board for approval;

 • Monitoring loan quality through the review of 
quarterly reports on ‘criticized’ facilities and 
potential loss forecasts;

 • Approving write-off of facilities, or part thereof, 
and recommending requests for write-offs 
above its limit to the Board for approval;

 • Reviewing the Bank’s compliance with 
regulatory requirements and internal policies 
applicable to Credit, including any legal and 
inhouse lending limit restrictions and insider 
loan transactions;

 • Working with Management to ensure the 
timely identification and management of 
problem credits; overseeing Management’s 
administration of the Bank’s credit risk portfolio, 
including Management’s responses to trends 
in credit risk, credit concentration and asset 
quality, and receiving and reviewing its reports 
thereon;

 • Reviewing fully-provisioned loans and loan 
recovery efforts from time to time;

 • Approving credit guidelines for strategic plans 
and projects;

 • Ensuring the adequacy of the Bank’s internal 
control procedures with respect to risk assets 
to safeguard their quality;

 • Notifying all Director-related loans to the Board;

 • Reviewing the risk assets of the Bank;

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee:

The Committee functions as a Standing Committee 
of the Board with responsibility for internal control 
over financial reporting, including internal and 
external audit. This committee also has oversight 
responsibility for the overall risk assessment 
of various areas of the Bank’s operations and 
compliance. The Committee is made up of three 
Non-Executive Directors.

The committee’s terms of reference include;

 • To receive, as and when appropriate from the 
Bank’s audit staff, the reports of the inspection/ 
audit reviews and assessments.
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 • To review the reports of financial services 
regulatory examinations relating to the Bank as 
applicable.

 • To obtain from management on an annual basis, 
reasonable assurance that the policies and 
controls designed to maintain compliance with 
those laws and regulations applicable to the 
Bank’s various business activities are being 
adhered to.

 • To review disclosure regarding risks contained 
in the Bank’s Annual Report and Quarterly 
Reports.

 • To align the Bank’s risk/ returns profile as well 
as recommend improvement options to the 
Board of Directors.

 • Review the Bank’s capital management options 
and strategies.

 • Monitor the Bank’s compliance with set out risk 
parameters and other risk related regulatory 
requirements.

 • Maintain oversight of the integrity of the Bank’s 
financial and non-financial reporting.

 • To preserve and oversee the independence 
of the external auditors by setting clear hiring 
polices for employees or former employees of 
external auditors.

 • To review the independence of the external 
auditor and ensure that where non audit 
services are provided by the external auditors, 
there is no conflict of interest;

 • To recommend the appointment, retention, 
compensation and oversight of external 
auditors’ work.

 • To recommend the appointment and removal 
of the Head of Internal Audit. In recommending 
the Head of Internal Audit, the Committee 
must take cognisance of the qualification and 
experience required of a Head of Internal Audit 
as provided by CBN’s Competency Framework 
for the Banking Industry.

 • To assist in the oversight of compliance with 
legal and other regulatory requirements, 
assessment of qualifications and independence 
of the external auditors and performance of the 
Bank’s internal audit function as well as that of 
the external auditors.

 • To review with external auditors, any audit 
scope limitations or problems encountered and 

management responses to them.

 • Review the bank’s code of conduct and ethics 
and ensure system is in place to enforce code.

 • Ensure adequate whistle blowing procedures 
are in place and that a summary of issues 
reported are presented to the Board.

 • Review and approve the mandate of the 
compliance function on a periodic basis; 
Assess the performance, independence and 
effectiveness of the compliance function;

 • Assess the Bank’s compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements and ensure the Bank’s 
internal policies and procedures (AML/CFT) are 
in line with the applicable laws and regulations;

 • Exercise oversight over management’s 
processes to ascertain the integrity of the 
Bank’s financial statements, compliance 
with all applicable legal and other regulatory 
requirements; and assess the qualifications and 
independence of the external auditors, and the 
performance of the

 • Bank’s internal audit function as well as that of 
the external auditors.

 • Oversee the process for the identification of 
fraud risks across the Bank and ensure that 
adequate prevention, detection and reporting 
mechanisms are in place.

 • Ensure the development of a Related 
Party Transactions policy and monitor 
its implementation by management. The 
Committee considers any related party 
transaction that may arise within the Bank.

 • To discharge any other duties or responsibilities 
delegated to the committee by the Board.

 • To review and discuss with the management 
the Bank’s risk governance structure, risk 
assessment and risk management practices 
and the guidelines, policies and processes 
for risk assessment and management with the 
exception of credit risk policies. Upon review, 
to recommend to the Board for approval the 
said guidelines, policies and processes.

 • Exercise oversight over the process for the 
identification and assessment of risks across 
the Bank and the adequacy of prevention, 
detection and reporting mechanisms;

 • Review and recommend for approval of the 
Board, at least annually, the Bank’s Information 
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Technology (IT) data governance framework 
to ensure that IT data risks are adequately 
mitigated, and relevant assets are managed 
effectively;

 • To review and recommend for Board approval 
the Bank’s risk appetite and strategy relating 
to key risk, including credit risk, liquidity and 
funding risk, market risk, product risk and 
reputational risk, as well as the guidelines, 
policies and processes for monitoring and 
mitigating such risks.

 • To discuss with the Bank’s Chief Risk Officer, the 
Bank’s risk assessment and risk management 
guidelines, policies and processes, as the case 
may be.

 • To receive, as and when appropriate from the 
Bank’s internal audit staff, the results of risk 
management reviews and assessments.

 • To review disclosure regarding risk contained 
in the Bank’s annual Report and half yearly 
Reports.

 • To review reports on selected risks topics as 
the Committee deems fit from time to time.

 • Review the adequacy and effectiveness of 
risk management and controls in the Bank and 
monitor the bank’s compliance with set out risk 
parameters and other risk related regulatory 
requirements.

General Meetings

The Bank recognizes that its Shareholders are key 
stakeholders in the enterprise and that General 
Meetings are the primary avenue for interaction 
between the Shareholders, Management and the 
Board. Since Shareholders collectively constitute 
the highest decision-making organ in the Company, 
the Bank complies strictly with regulatory 
requirements and is positioned to convene at least 
one General Meeting (the Annual General Meeting) 
in each financial year, to give all Shareholders 
the opportunity to participate in governance. 
The meeting will be convened and conducted 
in a transparent manner. The Board takes a keen 
interest in its responsibility to ensure that material 
developments (financial and non-financial) are 
promptly communicated to Shareholders. The 
Board is also conscious of regulatory reporting 
requirements and routinely discloses material 

information to all stakeholders. To achieve this, 
the Bank has developed formal structures for 
information dissemination via direct communication 
to all interested parties using electronic and print 
media as well as its website, www.titantrustbank.
com. The Bank’s Company Secretariat is well
equipped to handle enquiries from Shareholders 
in a timely manner. The Company Secretary also 
ensures that any concerns expressed by investors,
are communicated to Management and the Board 
as appropriate.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Executive Committee (EXCO):

The EXCO comprises the Managing Director (MD/
CEO) and the Executive Director. EXCO has the 
MD/CEO as its Chairman. EXCO is charged with 
overseeing the business of the Bank within agreed 
financial and other limits set by the Board from time 
to time. The Committee meets weekly (or such 
other times as business exigency may require) for 
the purposes of the following key objectives:

 • Ensure implementation of the Bank’s business 
plan and strategy upon approval of same by the 
Board;

 • Review budget presentations for each financial 
year ahead of presentation to the Board;

 • Evaluate the Bank’s strategy at quarterly 
intervals and update the Board on same;

 • Review the Bank’s budget performance at 
quarterly intervals and update the Board on 
same at bi-annual intervals;

 • Review the Bank’s Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Full 
Year financial statements ahead of presentation 
to the Board and the Regulators;

 • Review and approve proposals for capital 
expenditure and acquisitions within its approval 
limit;

 • Make recommendations to the Board on 
dividend and/or corporate actions for each 
financial year; and

 • Any other matter as the Board may direct.
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Management Committee (MANCO):

The Management Committee comprises the senior 
management of the Bank and has been established 
to identify, analyze, and make recommendations on 
risks arising from day to-day activities. They also 
ensure that risk limits as contained in the Board and 
Regulatory policies are complied with. Members of 
the management committee make contributions to 
the respective Board Committees and also ensure 
that recommendations of the Board Committees are 
effectively and efficiently implemented. They meet 
weekly and as frequently as the need arises. The 
primary responsibility of this Committee is to ensure 
the implementation of the Bank’s strategic and 
business plan as approved by the Board, efficient 
deployment and management of the Bank’s 
resources.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO):

The ALCO is responsible for the management of 
a variety of risks arising from the Bank’s business 
including market and liquidity risk management, 
loan to deposit ratio analysis, cost of funds analysis, 
establishing guidelines for pricing on deposit and 
credit facilities, exchange rate risks analysis, balance 
sheet structuring, regulatory considerations and 
monitoring of the status of implemented assets 
and liability strategies. The primary functions of 
this Committee are the creation of a balance sheet 
structure to allocate sources and utilization of 
funds in a manner that would improve the Bank’s 
financial performance; maximizing the value of 
capital overtime whilst controlling risk exposures; 
and managing the Bank’s liquidity with respect to
the composition of portfolio of liquid assets, control 
of cash flow, control of short- term borrowing 
capacity, monitoring of undrawn commitments, and 
contingency funding plans.

Management Credit Committee (MCC):

The primary purpose of the Committee is to advise 
the Board of Directors on its oversight responsibilities 
in relation to the Bank’s credit exposures and lending 
practices. The Committee also provides guidance 
on development of the Bank’s credit and lending 
objectives. The Management Credit Committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the Bank complies 
with the credit policy guide as established by the 

Board. The Committee also makes contributions to 
the Board Credit Committee.

The Committee can approve credit facilities to 
individual obligors not exceeding in aggregate a 
sum as pre-determined by the Board from time to 
time. The Committee is responsible for reviewing 
and approving extensions of credit, including one-
obligor commitments that exceed an amount as 
may be determined by the Board. The Committee 
reviews the entire credit portfolio of the Bank and 
conducts periodic assessment of the quality of risk 
assets in the Bank. It also ensures that adequate 
monitoring of performance is carried out. The 
secretary of the committee is the Head, Credit Risk 
Management Department. The Committee meets 
weekly or fortnightly depending on the number of 
credit applications to be considered. Primarily, the 
Management Credit Committee approves credits in 
line with the Bank’s credit policy. All credits exceeding 
the approval limit of the MCC are recommended 
to the Board Credit Committee for approval. The 
MCC also regularly assesses the Bank’s risk asset 
portfolio to determine the optimum mix; the amount 
of exposures per customer and related group of 
customers. The MCC meets regularly to review 
watch-listed/nonperforming accounts and approve 
specific provisions to be made on non-performing 
accounts.

Cost Management Committee:

The Committee periodically reviews the costs/
expenses of the Bank and recommends appropriate 
cost reduction/control measures; reviews and 
streamlines the acquisition of capital expenditure 
and bulk purchases of consumables with a view to 
reducing cost without compromising quality; and 
generally, reviews the procurement procedures of 
the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY:

The remuneration policy of Titan Trust Bank Limited 
is designed to establish a framework for defining 
and structuring the remuneration of executive and 
non-executive directors noting the Bank’s scope of 
operations, productivity and performance as well 
as shareholder value creation. The remuneration 
policy also takes cognizance of the relevant Codes 
of Corporate Governance in Nigeria with a view to 
ensuring adherence to the highest standards of 
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Corporate Governance.

Objectives of Remuneration Policy

The primary objectives of the Bank’s Remuneration 
Policy and practices are to:

 • Motivate directors to pursue and promote 
balance between the short term and long 
term growth of the Bank while maximising 
shareholders’ return;

 • Enable the Bank to attract and retain people 
of proven ability, experience and skills in the 
market in which it competes for talent;

 • Link rewards to the creation of value for 
shareholders;Ensure an appropriate balance 
between fixed and variable remuneration while 
reflecting the short and long term objectives of 
the Bank;

 • Encourage fairness and demonstrate a clear 
relationship between remuneration and 
performance based on set targets on individual 
and corporate performance;

 • Encourage behaviour consistent with Titan Trust 
Bank’s values, principles and Code of Business 
Conduct. This will lead to an appropriate 
balance in performance, governance, 
controls, risk management, customer service, 
people management, brand and reputation 
management;

 • Ensure that remuneration arrangements are 
equitable, transparent, well communicated and 
easily understood, aligned with the interest of 
shareholders and adequately disclosed;

 • Limit severance payments on termination to 
pre-approved contractual arrangements which 
does not commit the Bank to paying for non 
performance; and Comply with the relevant 
legal and regulatory requirements.

 • The system established to remunerate executive 
directors places a premium on their executive 
duties. It applies remuneration guide used by 
listed companies as well as best practice to pay 
their senior staff.

 • The Remuneration Policy for Executive 
Directors considers various elements, including 
the following:

 • Fixed remuneration, taking into account 
the level of responsibility, and ensuring this 
remuneration is competitive with remuneration 

paid for equivalent posts in banks of equivalent 
status both within and outside Nigeria.

 • Variable annual remuneration linked to the 
Bank’s financial results. The amount of this 
remuneration is subject to achieving specific 
quantifiable targets, aligned directly with 
shareholders’ interests.

The structure of executive-directors’ remuneration 
is in line with the general policy for senior-
management remuneration. The contracts signed 
with each director determine their respective 
remunerations and entitlements.

Composition of Remuneration Committee:

The remuneration packages of the Managing 
Director (MD) and the Executive Director are 
determined by the Board Governance, Nomination 
and Renumeration Committee and are subject to 
the Board’s approval. The compensation of the MD 
and the Executive Director shall include incentive
schemes to encourage continued improvement 
in performance against the criteria set and agreed 
by the Board. The Governance, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee sets operational targets 
consisting of a number of key performance 
indicators (KPIs) covering both financial and 
nonfinancial measures of performance for the 
executives at the beginning of each year.

Typical KPIs and assessment criteria include: 
Achieving pre-determined growth in the Bank’s 
turnover, profit after tax, return on asset etc; Meeting
strategic and operational objectives; and 
Assessment of personal effort and contribution 
Remuneration of the MD and the Executive Director 
consist of both fixed and variable remuneration 
components. The components of remuneration for 
Executive Director comprise base salary (a fixed 
sum payable monthly which is reviewed annually), 
benefits (including car allowances, medical 
allowance, etc.), an annual bonus, long term 
incentives and pension contributions.

The performance of the executive director is 
measured against these criteria at the end of 
the financial year and their evaluation result is 
used to determine the variable element of their 
remuneration.
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COMPLAINT 
MANAGEMENT 
POLICY & 
PROCEDURES

1. BACKGROUND

Titan Trust Bank is committed to delivering 
exceptional customer service to its customers at 
every touch point. To ensure this, the Bank has put 
in place a Customer Charter to serve as a reminder 
of this commitment to our customers.

The purpose of the document is to ensure all 
activities are performed in line with the bank’s 
service guidelines and create exceptional service 
regardless of the channel. This document describes 
the procedure for escalating and managing 
customer complaints arising from a service failure 
in a fair and transparent manner. It also includes 
the responsibilities of all involved in the resolution 
process. The CCP will be supported by an automated 
Customer Complaint Management System (CCMS) 
which is a web-based application deployed bank 
wide. For complaints not resolved to the customers 
satisfaction, this will be escalated to Internal Audit 
for resolution. The policies and procedures required 
for this system’s use are as detailed below.

2. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
(a) Complaints from customers can be received 
through any of the following means:

 • Telephone(Contact Centre numbers – 0700 
020 0200, 01-2265129, 01-2265100, or any of 
the Bank’s telephone numbers).

 • The contact E-mail box (contactcentre@
titantrustbank.com) / any other mailbox in the 

Bank).

 • The Customer Complaint form (paper-based 
form to be picked up in the banking hall).

 • Surface mail [addressed to the Customer 
Relations Unit (CRU), a branch/ unit within the 
bank or any staff].

 • Face-to-face interaction (verbally).

(b)   The complaint must be logged into the Customer 
Complaint Management System (CCMS) by the 
staff that received the complaint. The staff must 
also ensure that the contact details of the customer 
are included to enable direct communication with 
the customer upon resolution of the complaint 
by the resolver also known as case owner. The 
application shall auto-assign the complaint based 
on category & issue types to the respective case 
owners (Resolving Unit) factoring the SLA for that 
complaint type.

(c) CCMS shall automatically forward a notification 
to the customer stating that the complaint has 
been received and will be resolved within the CBN 
stipulated SLA. The case reference number and 
other complaint details shall be included in the 
notification.

(d) The staff responsible for the complaint (Resolver/
Case Owner) shall attend to the complaint and 
resolve it in line with the Service Level Agreements 
(SLA) defined by CBN for the complaint category 
and issue. Detailed update actions shall also be 
entered into the CCMS until
resolution is complete. A case owner is also 
responsible for ensuring that detailed resolution 
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actions are entered into a case before case closure.

(e) All complaints shall be resolved within the 
specified timeline (based on the SLA of the unit) 
from date of receipt. Complaints not resolved within
stipulated timelines shall be duly escalated based 
on the SLA. For complaints that cannot be resolved 
within SLA, the first update will be sent within the 
first 2 working days and subsequently every 3 
working days until resolved. However, complaints 
with immediate resolution/first contact resolution 
(FCR) shall be communicated to the customer 
same day of receipt, and logged as resolved on the 
CCMS.

(f) On satisfactory resolution of a complaint, the 
Resolver/Case Owner shall provide comprehensive 
resolution details which shall also include possible 
root causes of the complaint as well as attach 
supporting documents to back up the decision or 
action taken and then close the case. (An email 
notification shall be forwarded to the CRU to show 
that the case has been resolved).

(g) The Customer Service Unite (CSU) shall monitor 
the complaint resolution process via the CCMS. All 
complaints shall be reviewed by the contact centre 
upon successful resolution of the complaints by 
the Resolver/Case Owner. CRU staff shall notify the 
customer on the same day if received before close 
of business.

3. UNRESOLVED COMPLAINTS

1. Complaints not resolved to the customers’ 
satisfaction were referred to Internal Audit, who 
shall designate the task to any other officer 
in the unit. Customers are expected to send 
feedback to the Contact centre not later than 
14 days after receipt of resolution status.

2. Internal audit shall only accept complaints via 
email – telephone – 234-1-2265129 or a formal 
letter of complaint written to the office of the 
Bank.

3. Internal audit shall make rulings within the 
shortest possible time after the complaint has 
been received. Feedback on decisions taken 
shall

4. be forwarded to the customer and Contact 
centre.

4. REWARD AND PENALTY SCHEME FOR 
LOGGING OF COMPLAINTS
The Reward and Penalty Scheme for CCMS is 
designed to encourage staff to log complaints 
and also to boost staff confidence in the Bank’s 
Complaint Management process. This will in turn 
increase customer satisfaction and loyalty.

i Categories

The following categories exist under the scheme:

 • Staff that log the most complaints

 • Branches that log the most complaints

 • Regions that log the most complaints

ii Reward Structure

A target is set for every staff/branch and region 
in any of the categories mentioned above. The 
target is reviewed bi-annually by the Customer 
Experience Unit. The reward is to be determined 
and communicated by the Customer Experience 
Unit.

iii Penalty

Failure to log a complaint - This involves staff/
branch’s failure to log a complaint. This can be 
monitored if the duplicate copy of the complaint 
form (retained by the customer) is returned to the 
branch by the customer A caution letter will be sent 
to the indicted staff and depending on the weight 
of the complaint and its impact on the business, 
the Head of Internal Control and Human Resources 
will determine the sanction to be applied in line with 
the Bank’s disciplinary policy. Where a branch or 
region is indicted and depending on the weight of 
the complaint and its impact on the business, the 
Head of Internal Control and Human Resources will 
determine the sanction to be applied in line with the 
Bank’s disciplinary policy.

5 BENEFITS OF CUSTOMER 
COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
(CCMS)

i. Enables a fair and transparent treatment of all 
customer complaints.

ii. Assist the Bank to redesign services with the 
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customer as the focal point.

iii. The Bank will be in a better position to 
continuously re-assess customer’s needs.

iv. The CCMS will highlight where there is a need to 
change organisational practices to better serve 
the customer. Staff can be re-trained on service 
delivery based on number of complaints and 
resolution of said complaints.

v. The CCMS will enable the tracking of complaints.

Corporate Governance Principles

Titan Trust Bank ensures compliance with the 
corporate governance principles established by the 
Code of Corporate Governance for Banks and
Discount Houses in Nigeria, issued by the Central 
Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance (NCCG) issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council (FRC). In the quest 
to adopt best practices in the industry, the Bank 
established a Corporate Governance Framework 
which sets out a top-level framework for corporate 

governance in the Bank, This is revised from time to 
time to keep it in line with International best practices 
on good governance, Corporate governance and 
Extant regulations, codes and laws.

Financial Reporting and Accounting

The audit for the period under review was conducted 
by the firm of KPMG Professional Services which 
is independent of the Bank. In keeping with the 
provisions of section 404 subsections (2) & (4) 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) 
2020, the report of the Auditors is submitted to the 
Audit Committee which examines the report and 
makes recommendations to the shareholders at 
each Annual General Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE AT 
BOARD COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor�s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going 
concern.  

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.  

From the matters communicated with Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor�s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 5 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), 2020 

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from
our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have
been received from branches not visited by us.

iii. The Bank�s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

Compliance with Section 26 (3) of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, 2020 and Central Bank 
of Nigeria circular BSD/1/2004  
i. The Bank did not pay penalties in respect of contraventions of the Banks and Other Financial

Institutions Act during the year ended 31 December 2021.
ii. Related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements in

compliance with the Central Bank of Nigeria circular BSD/1/2004.

Kabir O. Okunlola, FCA 
FRC/2012/ICAN/00000000428  
For: KPMG Professional Services 
Chartered Accountants  
2  April, 2022. 
Lagos, Nigeria 
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In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Gross earnings 13,624,932 8,558,250
Interest income 6 9,372,682 4,947,152
Interest expense 7 (3,961,691) (1,498,404)

Net interest income 5,410,991 3,448,748

Net impairment loss on financial assets 8 (212,679) (335,592)
Net interest income after impairment loss on financial assets 5,198,312 3,113,156

Fees and commission income 9 2,394,550 1,026,086
Fees and commissions expense 9(a) (193,771) (51,775)

Net fee and commission income 2,200,779 974,311

Net trading income 10 1,857,700 2,585,012

Net operating income 9,256,791 6,672,479

Personnel expense 11 (1,329,080) (1,050,800)
Depreciation 29,21 (555,361) (393,866)
Amortisation 22 (264,341) (253,462)
Other operating expense 12 (2,634,952) (2,043,583)

Total expenses (4,783,734) (3,741,711)

Profit before income tax 4,473,057 2,930,768

Income tax 13 (68,820) (29,165)

Profit 4,404,237 2,901,603

Other comprehensive income net of income tax:
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value (loss)/gain on FVOCI investments 19c (954,018) 109,059
Tax on other comprehensive income                     - -
Total other comprehensive income (954,018) 109,059

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,450,219 3,010,662

Earnings per share
Earnings per share (Basic/Diluted) (kobo) 30(a) 7.54 4.97

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 14 28,031,201 25,508,748
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 1,916,091 2,200,240
Derivative assets 15 14,678 10,037
Assets pledged as collateral 16 16,262,048 10,609,415
Loans to banks 17 61,130,408 25,627,834
Loans and advances to customers 18 63,065,564 38,742,372
Investment securities
- Fair value through other comprehensive income 19(a) 34,130,539 20,533,452
- Amortised cost 19(b) 14,719,847 3,381,547
Property and equipment 20 3,001,926 2,370,588
Right of use assets 21 541,895 506,411
Intangible assets 22 876,371 1,026,821
Deferred tax Asset 23 50,472 50,472
Other assets 24 22,494,602 5 775 134

Total assets 246,235,642 136,343,071

Liabilities
Deposits from customers 25 182,382,857 85,970,588
Current income tax liability 13 68,996 29,195
Derivative Liabilities 29 97,054 -
Other liabilities 26 27,266,884 11,025,349
Lease liability 27 30,096 347,582
Borrowings 28 - 6,030,822

Total liabilities 209,845,887 103,403,536

Equity

Share capital 30 29,204,987 29,204,987
Share Premium 31 - -
Retained earnings 31 4,868,868 2,062,751
Other reserves
- Statutory reserve 31 2,385,147 1,063,874
- Regulatory risk reserve 31 696,469 419,621
- Fair value reserve 31 {765,716} 188,302

Total shareholders equity 36,389,755 32,939,535

Total equity and liabilities 246,235,642 136,343,071

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March, 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Babatunde Lerno
Chairman
FRC/2016/ICAN/00000014753

Mr. Mark Oguh
Chief Financial Officer
FRC/20 l 3/ICAN/0000000 I 563

Mr. Mudassir Amray
Managing Director/CEO
FRC/2020/002/00000020256
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In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Profit after tax 4,404,237 2,901,603
Add:
Income tax 13 68,820 29,165
Profit before tax 4,473,057 2,930,768

Adjustments for:
Depreciation 20,21 555,361 393,866
Amortization 22 264,341 253,462
Impairment charge on loans and advances 8 156,214 209,546
Impairment charge/(write back) on investment securities 8 92,381 (16,438)
Impairment charge on loans to banks 8 27,602 6,038
Impairment charge/(write back) on assets pledged as collateral 8 26,326 (855)
Impairment charge on off balance sheet items 8 (89,844) 137,301
Interest income 6 (9,372,682) (4,947,152)
Interest expense 7 3,961,691 1,498,404
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets FVTPL 10 589,151 58,233
Foreign exchange gains 10 (1,014,512) (482,350)

(330,914) 40,823

Change in financial assets FVTPL 32(i) 1,088,121 (2,026,704)
Change in assets pledged as collateral 32(iv) (4,660,343) (8,649,937)
Change in mandatory reserve deposits 32(vii) (3,594,235) (22,357,209)
Change in derivative assets 32(ix) (4,641) -
Change in loans and advances to customers 32(ii) (24,049,993) (35,386,464)
Change in other assets 32(iii) (15,829,147) (5,379,702)
Change in deposits from customers 32(iv) 96,195,670 76,185,269
Proceeds / (Repayment) from borrowing 29 (6,000,000) 6,000,000
Change in derivative liabilities 32(xii) 97,054 -
Change in lease liability 32(xiii) (330,355) -
Change in other liabilities 32(viii) 16,268,626 10,845,650

58,849,843 19,271,726

Interest received 3,919,224 3,766,995
Interest paid on customer deposits 32(iv) (1,804,187) (878,201)
Interest paid on borrowings 32(x) (1,825,842) (65,229)
Income tax paid 13 (29,019) (5,942)
VAT paid 32(viii) (70,263) (33,749)

Net cash flow generated from operating activities 59,039,756 22,055,600

Investing activities
Net sale/(purchase) of investment securities 32(v) (23,351,502) 3,270,397
Payment for Right-of-Use asset 32(ix) (187,315) (86,030)
Purchase of property and equipment 20 (1,034,924) (1,717,979)
Purchase of intangible asset 22 (113,890) (99,468)

Net cash used in investing activities (24,687,631) 1,366,920

Financing activities - -

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 34,352,125 23,414,091

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held 78,667 86,829

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 28,614,877 5,113,957

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 33 63,045,669 28,614,877

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY
Titan Trust Bank Limited (the Bank) is a Company 
domiciled in Nigeria. It was incorporated in Nigeria 
as a private limited liability company on 12 December 
2018. The address of its corporate office is Plot 
1680, Sanusi Fafunwa Street, Victoria Island, Lagos. 
The principal activity of the Bank is the provision 
of banking and other financial services to corporate 
and individual customers. Titan Trust Bank Limited 
provides a full range of financial services including 
investment, commercial and retail banking, 
securities dealing and payment services. The 
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 
31 December 2021 were authorised for issue on 18 
March 2022 by the Board of Directors of Titan Trust 
Bank Ltd.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Significant accounting policies

The following standards and amendments became 
effective from 1 January 2021.

Interest rate benchmark reform

Interest Rate Benchmark reform - Phase 2 
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16). The 
Phase 2 amendments provide practical relief from 
certain requirements in the standards. These reliefs 
relate to modifications of financial instruments, 
lease contracts or hedging relationships when a 
benchmark interest rate in a contract is replaced 
with a new alternative benchmark rate. When the 
basis for determining the contractual cash flows 
of a financial instrument is changed as a direct 
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform and 

is made on an economically equivalent basis, the 
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient 
to update the effective interest rate of a financial 
instrument before applying the existing requirements 
in the standards. The amendments also provide an 
exception to use a revised discount rate that reflects 
the change in interest rate when remeasuring a 
lease liability because of a lease modification that is 
required by interest rate benchmark reform. Finally, 
the Phase 2 amendments provide a series of reliefs 
from certain hedge accounting requirements when 
a change required by interest rate benchmark reform 
occurs to a hedged item and/or hedging instrument 
and consequently the hedge relationship can be 
continued without any interruption.

The Phase 2 amendments provide practical relief 
from certain requirements in the standards. These 
reliefs relate to modifications of financial instruments, 
lease contracts or hedging relationships when a 
benchmark interest rate in a contract is replaced 
with a new alternative benchmark rate.

For financial instruments measured using amortised 
cost measurement (that is, financial instruments 
classified as amortised cost and debt financial 
assets classified as FVOCI), changes to the 
basis for determining the contractual cash flows 
required by interest rate benchmark reform are 
reflected by adjusting their effective interest rate. 
No immediate gain or loss is recognised. A similar 
practical expedient exists for lease liabilities. These 
expedients are only applicable to changes that are 
required by interest rate benchmark reform, which 
is the case if, and only if, the change is necessary 
as a direct consequence of interest rate benchmark 
reform and the new basis for determining the 
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contractual cash flows is economically equivalent 
to the previous basis (that is, the basis immediately 
preceding the change).

Where some or all of a change in the basis for 
determining the contractual cash flows of a 
financial asset and liability does not meet the 
above criteria, the above practical expedient is 
first applied to the changes required by interest 
rate benchmark reform, including updating the 
instrument’s effective interest rate. Any additional 
changes are accounted for in the normal way (that 
is, assessed for modification or derecognition, with 
the resulting modification gain or loss recognised 
immediately in profit or loss where the instrument is 
not derecognised).

For lease liabilities where there is a change to the 
basis for determining the contractual cash flows, as 
a practical expedient the lease liability is remeasured 
by discounting the revised lease payments using a 
discount rate that reflects the change in the interest 
rate where the change is required by IBOR reform. 
If lease modifications are made in addition to those 
required by IBOR reform, the normal requirements of 
IFRS 16 are applied to the entire lease modification, 
including those changes required by IBOR reform.

Finally, the Phase 2 amendments provide a series of 
reliefs from certain hedge accounting requirements 
when a change required by interest rate benchmark 
reform occurs to a hedged item and/or hedging 
instrument and consequently the hedge relationship 
can be continued without any interruption. None 
of the other reliefs relating to leases or hedging 
accounting requirements are applicable to the 
Bank. The Bank had no transactions for which 
the benchmark rate had been replaced with an 
alternative benchmark rate as at 31 December 2021.

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 
June 2021 – Amendment to IFRS 16 Leasing.

Amendment providing lessees with an exemption 
from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent 
concession (a ren t concession that reduces lease 
payments due on or before 30 June 2022) is a 
lease modification. This amendment did not have 
any major impact on the Bank.

2.2 Standards and interpretations yet to be 
effective

(a) IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
Effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2022

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 
Intended Use: The amendments prohibit an entity 
from deducting from the cost of an item of property, 
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items 
produced while bringing that asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. 
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from 
selling such items, and the cost of producing those 
items, in profit or loss The Bank is yet to adopt 
the amendment. However, this amendment is not 
expected to have any major impact on the Bank, 
as the Bank does not sell its assets under work-in-
progress.

(b) Other standard issued but not yet effective 
are:
The following new and amended standards are not 
effective and are not expected to have a significant 
impact on the Bank’s financial statements:

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 
2020, effective 1 January 2022

Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 
(Amendments to IAS 37), effective 1 January 2022

Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments 
to IFRS 3), effective 1 January 2022

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
(Amendments to IAS 1), effective 1 January 2023

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, effective 1 January 
2023

Sale of Contribution of Assets between an Investor 
and its Associate of Joint Venture (amendments to 
IFRS 10 and IAS 28), Available for optional adoption 
and effective date has been deferred indefinitely.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies(Amendment to 
IAS 1 and IFRS Practise statement 2), effective 1 
January 2023

Definition of Accounting estimates (Amendments to 



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 78

IAS 8), effective 1 January 2023

Deferred Tax Related Assets and liability arising from 
single transaction (Amendment to IAS 12) effective 
1 January 2023

2.3 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2021 have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS). The financial statements comply with the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAMA 2020, 
Banks and other Financial Institutions Act 2020, 
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act 2011 
and the relevant Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
guidelines and circulars.

(b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Naira, 
which is the Bank’s functional currency. Except 
where indicated, financial information presented in 
Naira has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(c) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for the following 
items

 • FVOCI financial assets which are measured at 
fair value.

 • FVTPL financial assets which are measured at 
fair value

 • Financial assets which are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate.

 • Loans and advances to customers and loans to 
banks which are measured at amortized cost 
using effective interest rate.

 • Other financial liabilities that are not classified 
as at fair value through profit or loss which are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method.

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with the IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management 
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 
the Bank’s accounting policies. Changes in 
assumptions may have a significant impact on the 

financial statements in the period the assumptions 
changed. Management believes that the underlying 
assumptions are appropriate and that the Bank’s 
financial statements therefore present the financial 
position and results fairly. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4 - 
(critical accounting judgments).

(e) Going Concern Assumption
The financial statements have been prepared on 
the basis of accounting policies applicable to a 
going concern.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Foreign transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions (i.e. transactions 
denominated, or that require settlement, in a 
currency other than the functional currency) 
are translated into the functional currency using 
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions or valuation where items are 
remeasured (i.e. spot exchange rate).

The local currency (Nigerian Naira) is the functional 
and presentation currency for the Bank’s financial 
statements, thus foreign currency balances are 
translated using the spot exchange rate at the 
reporting date. The translation rate applied by the 
Bank is the rate per the Nigerian Inter- bank Foreign 
exchange market (NAFEX) as published by the 
FMDQ OTC. The translation rates for third currencies 
are derived by multiplying the interbank rate (i.e. 
the USDollar/Naira) with applicable cross rates of 
those currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting 
date are translated into the functional currency at 
the spot exchange rate at that date. The foreign 
currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 
difference between the carrying amount of the 
asset or liability in the functional currency at the 
beginning of the year, adjusted for any movements 
during the year due to effective interests, payments,
additions, fair value changes etc. and the carrying 
amount in the foreign currency translated at the 
spot exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into functional currency at the spot 
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exchange rate at the date on which the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
based on historical cost denominated in a foreign 
currency are translated with the spot exchange rate 
as at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation 
are generally recognised in profit or loss. However, 
foreign currency differences arising from the 
translation of FVOCI financial instruments are 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Financial assets and liabilities

The Bank’s financial assets comprises:

 • - Treasury bills;

 • - Federal government bonds

 • - Corporate bonds

 • - Derivative Assets

 • - Loans to Banks

 • - Cash and cash equivalent

 • - Loans and advances to customers

(a) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when 
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. A financial asset or 
financial liability is measured initially at fair value 
plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or 
issue. The fair value of a financial instrument at 
initial recognition is generally its transaction price. 
Financial assets are recognised or derecognised on 
the date the Bank commits to purchase or sell the 
instruments (trade day accounting).

(b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement, financial 
instruments are measured either at amortised cost 
or fair value through other comprehensive income 
or fair value through profit or loss depending on 
their classification category

(c) Classification

(i) Financial assets
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets 
of the Bank are measured at:

 • amortised cost

 • fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI); or

 • fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Bank’s financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost if they meet both of 
the following criteria and are not designated as at 
FVTPL:

 • ‘Hold to collect’ business model test - The 
asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the financial asset in other 
to collect contractual cash flows; and

 • ‘SPPI’ contractual cash flow characteristics test 
- The contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding on a specified date.

Interest in this context is the consideration for 
the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time.

Debt instruments are measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) by the Bank 
if they meet both of the following criteria and are 
not designated as FVTPL:

 • . ‘Hold to collect and sell’ business model 
test: The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both holding 
the financial asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial asset; and

 • ‘SPPI’ contractual cash flow characteristics test: 
The contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income.

A financial asset is classified and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) by the Bank if 
the financial asset is:

 • A debt instrument that does not qualify to be 
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI;

 • An equity investment which the Bank has not 
irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI and 
present subsequent changes in fair value in 
OCI;

 • A financial asset where the Bank has elected to 
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measure the asset at FVTPL under the fair value 
option.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective 
of the business model in which a financial asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects 
the way the business is managed and information 
is provided to management. The information 
considered includes:

 • the stated policies and objectives for the 
portfolio and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management’s 
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest 
income, maintaining a particular interest rate 
profile, matching the duration of the financial 
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or 
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows 
through the sale of the assets;

 • how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated 
and reported to the Bank’s management;

 • the risks that affect the performance of the 
business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those 
risks are managed;

 • how managers of the business are compensated 
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or the contractual 
cash flows collected; and

 • the frequency, volume and timing of sales of 
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for 
such sales and expectations about future sales 
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in 
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition 
are not considered sales for this purpose, 
consistent with the Bank’s continuing recognition 
of the assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are 
solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ 
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset 
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as 
consideration for the time value of money and for 
the credit risk associated with the principal amount 
outstanding during a particular period of time and 
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity 
risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit 

margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are 
solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. 
This includes assessing whether the financial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the 
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such 
that it would not meet this condition. In making this 
assessment, the Bank considers:

 • contingent events that would change the 
amount or timing of cash flows;

 • terms that may adjust the contractual coupon 
rate, including variable-rate features;

 • prepayment and extension features; and

 • terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows 
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse 
features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely 
payments of principal and interest criterion if 
the prepayment amount substantially represents 
unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, which may include 
reasonable additional compensation for early 
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a 
financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to 
its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or 
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially 
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued 
(but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also 
include reasonable additional compensation for 
early termination) is treated as consistent with this 
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature 
is insignificant at initial recognition

(ii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are either classified by the Bank 
as:

 • Financial liabilities at amortised cost; or at 
FVTPL Financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost by the Bank unless either:

 • The financial liability is held for trading and is 
therefore required to be measured at FVTPL, or

 • The Bank elects to measure the financial liability 
at FVTPL (using the fair value option).

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts and loan 
commitments
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that 
requires the Bank (issuer)to make specified 
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payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when due in accordance with the original or 
modified terms of a debt instrument. Loan 
commitments’ are firm commitments to provide 
credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 
Financial guarantees issued or commitments to 
provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are 
initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they 
are measured at the higher of the loss allowance 
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the 
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, 
the cumulative amount of income recognised in 
accordance with the principles of IFRS 15.

The Bank has issued no loan commitments that are 
measured at FVTPL.

The Bank conducts business involving commitments 
to customers. The majority of these facilities are set-
off by corresponding obligations of third parties. 

Contingent liabilities and commitments comprise 
usance lines and letters of credit.

Usance and letters of credit are agreements to 
lend to a customer in the future subject to certain 
conditions. An acceptance is an undertaking by a 
bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer.
Letters of credit are given as security to support the 
performance of a customer to third parties. As the 
Bank will only be required to meet these obligations 
in the event of the Customer’s default, the cash 
requirements of these instruments are expected to 
be considerably below their nominal amounts.

Contingent liabilities and commitments are initially 
recognized at fair value which is also generally 
equal to the fees received and amortized over the 
life of the commitment. The carrying amount of 
contingent liabilities are subsequently measured 
at the higher of the present value of any expected 
payment when a payment under the contingent 
liability has become probable and the unamortised 
fee.

(d) Derecognition
(i) Financial assets
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire (see also (e)), or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in 
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks 

and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership and it does not retain control of the 
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset 
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less 
any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative 
gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is 
recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in 
respect of equity investment securities designated 
as at FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on 
derecognition of such securities. Any interest 
in transferred financial assets that qualify for 
derecognition that is created or retained by the 
Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Bank sometimes enters into transactions 
whereby it transfers assets recognised on its 
statement of financial position, but retains either all 
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets or a portion of them. In such 
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are securities lending 
and sale-and repurchase transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a 
concurrent total rate of return swap on the 
transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for 
as a secured financing transaction similar to sale-
and-repurchase transactions, because the Bank 
retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor 
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control 
over the asset, the Bank continues to recognise the 
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, 
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Bank retains the 
obligation to service the transferred financial asset 
for a fee. The transferred asset is derecognised if it
meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or 
liability is recognised for the servicing contract if 
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the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or 
is less than adequate (liability) for performing the 
servicing.
(ii) Financial liabilities
The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire.

(e) Modifications of financial assets and financial 
liabilities
Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then 
the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the 
modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the 
contractual rights to cash flows from the original 
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this 
case, the original financial asset is derecognized 
(see (d)) and a new financial asset is recognised 
at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. 
Any fees received as part of the modification are 
accounted for as follows: - fees that are considered 
in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees 
that represent reimbursement of eligible transaction 
costs are included in the initial measurement of the 
asset; and - other fees are included in profit or loss 
as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is 
in financial difficulties, then the objective of the 
modification is usually to maximize recovery of the 
original contractual terms rather than to originate a 
new asset with substantially different terms. If the 
Bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way that 
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first 
considers whether a portion of the asset should be 
written off before the modification takes place (see 
below for write off policy). This approach impacts 
the result of the quantitative evaluation and means 
that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in 
such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured 
at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in 
derecognition of the financial asset, then the Bank
first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset using the original effective interest 
rate of the asset and recognises the resulting 
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit 
or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the 
original effective interest rate used to calculate 
the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect 

current market terms at the time of the modification. 
Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part 
of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount 
of the modified financial asset and are amortised 
over the remaining term of the modified financial 
asset.

Financial liabilities
The Bank derecognises a financial liability when 
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the 
modified liability are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and consideration paid is 
recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid 
includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, 
and the assumption of liabilities, including the new 
modified financial liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not 
accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised 
cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the 
modified cash flows at the original effective interest 
rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. For floatingrate financial liabilities, 
the original effective interest rate used to calculate 
the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect 
current market terms at the time of the modification. 
Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and 
amortised over the remaining term of the modified 
financial liability by re-computing the effective 
interest rate on the instrument

(f) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount reported in the statement 
of financial position when, and only when, the 
Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis 
only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and 
loss arising from a group of similar transactions such 
as in the Bank’s trading activity.

(g) Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability is the amount at which the financial asset or 
financial liability is measured at initial recognition, 
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minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 
method of any difference between the initial 
amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus 
any reduction for impairment.

(h) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, 
the most advantageous market to which the Bank 
has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of 
an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded 
as active if transactions for the asset or liability 
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to 
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then 
the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise 
the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors 
that market participants would take into account in 
pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial 
instrument at initial recognition is normally 
the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the 
consideration given or received. If the Bank 
determines that the fair value at initial recognition 
differs from the transaction price and the fair value 
is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability nor based 
on a valuation technique that uses only data from 
observable markets, then the financial instrument 
is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer 
the difference between the fair value at initial 
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, 
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an 
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but 
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported 
by observable market data or the transaction is 
closed out.

If an asset or liability measured at fair value has a 
bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measures 
the assets and long positions at a bid price and 
liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities 
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that 
are managed by the Bank on the basis of a price 
that would be received to sell a net long position (or 
paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular 
risk exposure. Those portfoliolevel adjustments are 
allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of 
the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than 
the amount payable on demand, discounted from 
the first date on which the amount could be required 
to be paid.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of 
the fair value hierachy as of the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.

(i) Pledge of assets as collateral
Financial assets transferred to external parties that 
do not qualify for de-recognition are reclassified in 
the statement of financial position from investment 
securities to assets pledged as collateral, if the 
transferee has received the right to sell or re-pledge 
them in the event of default from agreed terms.

Initial recognition of assets pledged as collateral 
is at fair value, whilst subsequent measurement is 
based on the classification of the financial asset. 
Assets pledged as collateral are either designated 
at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Where assets 
pledged as collateral are designated as FVOCI, 
subsequent measurement is at fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

2.6 Impairment

2.6.1 Recognition of ECL
The Bank recognises loss allowances for expected 
credit loss (ECL) on the following financial 
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

 • Financial assets that are debt instruments;

 • Lease receivables;

 • Financial guarantee contracts issued; and

 • Loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity 
investments.
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The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for 
which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

 • Debt investment securities that are determined 
to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

 • Other financial instruments on which credit risk 
has not increased significantly since their initial 
recognition

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are 
possible within the 12 months after the reporting 
date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month 
ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘stage 1 financial 
instruments’.

Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all 
possible default events over the expected life of 
the financial instrument. Financial instruments for 
which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which are not 
credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial 
instruments’.

The Bank considers debt investment securities 
to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating 
is equivalent to the globally understood definition 
of ‘investment grade’ or it is a sovereign debt 
instrument issued in the local currency.

2.6.2 Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit 
losses. They are measured as follows:

 • Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at 
the reporting date: as the present value of all 
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the 
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with 
the contract and the cash flows that the Bank 
expects to receive);

 • Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the 
reporting date: as the difference between the 
gross carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows;

 • Undrawn loan commitments: as the present 
value of the difference between the contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Bank if the 
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows 
that the Bank expects to receive; and

 • Financial guarantee contracts: the expected 
payments to reimburse the holder less any 

amount that the Bank expects to recover.
When discounting future cash flows, the following 
discount rates are used:

 • financial assets other than purchased or 
originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial 
assets and lease receivables: the original 
effective interest rate or an approximation 
thereof;

 • POCI assets: a credit-adjusted effective interest 
rate;

 • lease receivables: the discount rate used in 
measuring the lease receivable;

 • undrawn loan commitments: the effective 
interest rate, or an approximation thereof, that 
will be applied to the financial asset resulting 
from the loan commitment; and

 • financial guarantee contracts issued: the rate 
that reflects the current market assessment of 
the time value of money and the risks that are 
specific to the cash flows.

2.6.3 Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether 
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘creditimpaired’ when 
one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired 
includes the following observable data:

 • Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer;

 • A breach of contract such as a default or past 
due event;

 • The restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider 
otherwise;

 • It is becoming probable that the borrower 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation; or

 • The disappearance of an active market for a 
security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a 
deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually 
considered to be credit impaired unless there is 
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual 
cash flows has reduced significantly and there 
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are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, 
a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is 
considered impaired. In making an assessment of 
whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-
impaired, the Bank considers the following factors.
• The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as 
reflected in the bond yields.
• The rating agencies’ assessments of 
creditworthiness.
• The country’s ability to access the capital markets 
for new debt issuance.
• The probability of debt being restructured, resulting 
in holders suffering losses through voluntary or 
mandatory debt forgiveness.
• The international support mechanisms in place 
to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of 
last resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, 
reflected in public statements, of governments and 
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes 
an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms 
and, irrespective of the political intent, whether 
there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

2.6.4 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the 
statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the 
statement of financial position as follows:

 • Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 
as a deduction from the gross carrying amount 
of the assets;

 • Loan commitments and financial guarantee 
contracts: generally, as a provision;

 • Where a financial instrument includes both 
a drawn and an undrawn component, and 
the Bank cannot identify the ECL on the loan 
commitment component separately from those 
on the drawn component: the Bank presents a 
combined loss allowance for both components. 
The combined amount is presented as a 
deduction from the gross carrying amount of 
the drawn component. Any excess of the loss 
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn 
component is presented as a provision.

 • Debt instruments measured at FVOCI, no loss 
allowance is recognised in the statement of 
financial position because the carrying amount 
of the asset is their fair value. However, the loss 
allowance is disclosed and recognised in the 
fair value reserve.

2.7 Write-off

The Bank shall write-off an impaired financial asset 
(and the related impairment allowance), either 
partially or in full, where there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. After a full evaluation of 
a non-performing exposure, if at least one of the 
following conditions apply:

 • Continued contact with the obligor is 
impossible;

 • Recovery cost is expected to be higher than 
the outstanding debt;

 • The bank’s recovery method is foreclosing 
collateral and the value of the collateral is such 
that there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the balance in full.

All credit facility write-offs shall require the approval 
of the Board of Directors. A write-off constitutes a 
derecognition event. However, financial assets that 
are written off could still be subject to enforcement 
activities. Whenever amounts are recovered on 
previously written off credit exposures, such 
amount recovered shall be recognized as income 
on a cash basis only.

2.8 Reclassification of financial instruments

Financial assets are required to be reclassified in 
certain rare circumstances among the amortised 
cost, FVOCI and FVTPL categories. When the Bank 
changes its business model for managing financial 
assets, the Bank reclassifies all affected financial 
assets in accordance with the new model. The 
reclassification is applied prospectively from the 
reclassification date. Accordingly, any previously 
recognised gains, losses or interest are not to be 
reinstated. Changes in the business model for 
managing financial assets are expected to be very 
infrequent.

2.9 Restructuring of financial instruments

Financial instruments are restructured when the 
contractual terms are renegotiated or modified or 
when an existing financial instrument is replaced 
with a new one due to financial diffculties of the 
borrower. Restructured loans represent loans whose 
repayment periods have been extended due to 
changes in the business dynamics of the borrowers. 
For such loans, the borrowers are expected to 
pay the principal amounts in full within extended 
repayment period and all interest, including interest 
for the original and extended terms.
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If the terms of a financial asset is restructured due 
to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an 
assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognized:

 • If the expected restructuring will not result in 
derecognition of the existing asset, then the 
expected cash flows arising from the modified 
financial asset is included in calculating the 
cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

 • If the expected restructuring will result in 
derecognition of the existing asset, then the 
expected fair value of the new asset is treated 
as the final cash flow from the existing financial 
asset at the time of derecognition. This amount 
is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from 
the existing financial asset that is discounted 
from the expected date of derecognition to 
the reporting date using the original effective 
interest rate of the existing financial asset.

2.10 Collateral

The Bank obtains collateral where appropriate, from 
customers to manage their credit risk exposure to 
the customers. The collateral normally takes the 
form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives 
the Bank a claim on these assets for customers in 
the event that the customer defaults.

Collateral received in the form of securities is not 
recorded on the statement of financial position. 
Collateral received in the form of cash is recorded 
on the statement of financial position with a 
corresponding liability see note 3.2(b)(i).

2.11 Revenue recognition

(i) Interest income and expense
Effective interest rate
Interest income and expense are recognised in 
profit or loss using the effective interest method. 
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to:

 • the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; 
or

 • the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate 
for financial instruments other than purchased 
or originated credit-impaired assets, the Bank 

estimates future cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but 
not ECL. For purchased or originated credit impaired 
financial assets, a credit adjusted effective interest 
rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows 
including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate 
includes transaction costs and fees and points paid 
or received that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount
The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial 
liability is the amount at which the financial asset or 
financial liability is measured on initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 
method of any difference between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial 
assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss 
allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ 
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before 
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense
The effective interest rate of a financial asset or 
financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of 
a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating 
interest income and expense, the effective interest 
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the 
asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or 
to the amortised cost of the liability. The effective 
interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-
estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments 
to reflect movements in market rate of interest.

However, for financial assets that have become 
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, 
interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of 
the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit 
impaired, then the calculation of interest income 
reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on 
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by 
applying the credit adjusted effective interest rate 
to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation 
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of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, 
even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-
impaired, see Note 2.6.3.

Presentation

Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method and presented in the statement of 
profit or loss and OCI includes interest on financial 
assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income and at amortized cost.

Interest expense presented in the statement of 
profit or loss and OCI includes only interest on 
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Fees and commission income and expense
Fee and commission income and expense that are 
integral to the effective interest rate on a financial 
asset or financial liability are included in the effective 
interest rate.

Other fee and commission income – including 
account servicing fees, fees on electronic products, 
sales commission, placement fees and syndication 
fees – is recognised as the related services are 
performed. If a loan commitment is not expected to 
result in the draw-down of a loan, then the related 
loan commitment fee is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the commitment period.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to 
transaction and service fees, which are expensed 
as the services are received.

(iii) Income from performance bonds, financial 
guarantees and letters of credit
Income from performance bonds or financial 
guarantees and letters of credit are initially 
measured at fair value and subsequently recognised 
on a straight line basis over the life of the bond or 
guarantee.

(iv) Net trading income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses 
related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes 
all realised and unrealised fair value changes, 
dividends and foreign exchange differences.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the carrying amount of non-

financial assets are reviewed to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. Additionally, assets that 
have an indefinite useful life and are not subject to 
amortisation are tested annually for impairment.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. Value-in-use is based on the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are 
assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

‘Cash and cash equivalents’ include notes and coins 
on hand, unrestricted balances held with central 
banks and highly liquid financial assets with original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank 
in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised 
cost in the statement of financial position.

2.13.1 Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows shows the changes in 
cash and cash equivalents arising during the period 
from operating activities, investing activities and 
financing activities.

The cash flows from operating activities are 
determined using the indirect method. Profit for the 
period is therefore adjusted by income/expense 
and non-cash items, such as measurement gains or 
losses, changes in impairment allowances, as well 
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as changes from operating assets. In addition, all 
income and expenses from cash transactions that 
are attributable to investing or financing activities 
are eliminated.

The Bank’s assignment of the cash flows to operating, 
investing and financing category depends on the 
Bank’s business model (management approach). 
Interest and dividends received on investment 
securities, loans and advances to customers are 
classified as operating activities; interest paid on 
customer deposits are classified as operating cash 
flows, while dividends paid to shareholders are 
included in financing activities.

2.14 Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property and equipment is 
initially recognized by the Bank if and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Bank; and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All property 
and equipment used by the Bank is stated at 
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the items. If significant parts 
of a property and equipment have different useful 
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property and equipment.

(ii) Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are charged to ‘other operating 
expenses’ during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of items of 
property and equipment is calculated using the 
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as 
follows:

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods 
and useful lives are reviewed at each annual 
reporting date, and adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Derecognition
An item of property and equipment is derecognised 
on disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain 
or loss arising on de-recognition of the assets 
(calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period the 
asset is recognised.

(v) Capital Work-In-Progress
Construction cost and improvements in respect of 
offices are carried at cost as capital work in progress. 
On completion of construction or improvements, the 
related amounts are transferred to the appropriate 
category of property and equipment. Payments in 
advance for items of property and equipment are 
included as prepayments in “other assets” and 
upon delivery are reclassified as additions in the 
appropriate category of property and equipment. 
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.

2.15 Intangible assets

The cost of an intangible asset is initially recognized 
by the Bank if and only if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Bank; and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Subsequent measurement is as 
detailed below:

Software
Software acquired by the Bank is measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

Costs associated with maintaining computer 
software programmes are recognised as an expense 

Land Not depreciated

Leaseholds 
improvements

over the shorter of the useful life 
of the item and the lease term.

Buildings 50 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer 4 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years
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when incurred. Development costs that are directly 
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable 
and unique software products controlled by the 
Bank, are recognised as intangible assets when the 
following criteria are met:

 • it is technically feasible to complete the 
software product so that it will be available for 
use;

 • management intends to complete the software 
product and use or sell it;

 • there is an ability to use or sell the software 
product;

 • it can be demonstrated how the software 
product will generate probable future economic 
benefits;

 • adequate technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and to 
use or sell the software product are available; 
and

 • the expenditure attributable to the software 
product during its development can be reliably 
measured.

Subsequent expenditure on computer software 
is capitalised only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates and the cost can be measured 
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed when 
incurred.

Software is amortised on a straight line in profit or 
loss over its estimated useful life, from the date on 
which it is available for use. The estimated useful 
life of software is between three to five years.

Software under development which are not available 
for use are tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate

An intangible asset shall be derecognized by the 
Bank on disposal; or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any 
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assets 
(calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period the 
asset is recognised.

2.16 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses 
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A contract 
is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for 
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset, the Bank uses 
the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

(a) As a lessee
At commencement or on modification of a contract 
that contains a lease component, the Bank 
allocates consideration in the contract to each lease 
component on the basis of its relative standalone 
prices. On initial recognition, the carrying value of 
the lease liability also includes:

 • Amounts expected to be payable under any 
residual value guarantee;

 • The exercise price of any purchase option 
granted in favour of the Group, should it be 
reasonably certain that this option will be 
exercised;

 • Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, 
should the term of the lease be estimated 
on the basis of this termination option being 
exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, lease liabilities 
increase as a result of interest charged at a constant 
rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for 
lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets:
The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset at the 
lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset 
is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and 
remove any improvements made to branches or 
office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term. 
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted 
for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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Lease Liability
The Bank recognises a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The lease liability is initially 
measured at the present value of the lease payments 
that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, 
the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, 
the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the 
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of 
the lease liability comprise the following:

 • fixed payments, including in-substance fixed 
payments;

 • variable lease payments that depend on an 
index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date;

 • amounts expected to be payable under a 
residual value guarantee; and

 • the exercise price under a purchase option that 
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, 
lease payments in an optional renewal period 
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise 
an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the Group is 
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments 
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Bank’s estimate of the amount 
expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, if the Bank changes its assessment 
of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension 
or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in 
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

(b) As a lessor
At inception or on modification of a contract that 
contains a lease component, the Bank allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease 
component on the basis of their relative stand-

alone selling prices. When the Bank acts as a lessor, 
it determines at lease inception whether the lease 
is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Bank makes an overall 
assessment of whether the lease transfers 
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the 
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it 
is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the 
Bank considers certain indicators such as whether 
the lease is for the major part of the economic life 
of the asset.

The Bank applies the derecognition and impairment 
requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the 
lease. The Bank further regularly reviews estimated 
unguaranteed residual values used in calculating 
the gross investment in the lease.

2.17 Income taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax 
(company income tax, tertiary education tax, police 
trust fund levy and National Information Technology 
Development Agency levy) and deferred tax. 
It is recognised in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to a business combination, 
or items recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

The Bank had determined that interest and penalties 
relating to income taxes, including uncertain tax 
treatments, do not meet the definition of income 
taxes, and therefore are accounted for under IAS 
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets.

(a) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or 
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years.

The amount of current tax payable or receivable is 
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be 
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to 
income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date and is assessed as follows:

 • Company income tax is computed on taxable 
profits
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 • Tertiary education tax is computed on 
assessable profits

 • National Information Technology Development 
Agency levy is computed on profit before tax

 • Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy is computed on 
net profit (i.e. profit after deducting all expenses 
and taxes from revenue earned by the company 
during the year).

Total amount of tax payable under CITA is determined 
based on the higher of two components namely 
Company Income Tax (based on taxable income (or 
loss) for the year); and minimum tax. Taxes based on 
profit for the period.

Minimum tax
Minimum tax which is based on a gross amount is 
outside the scope of IAS 12 and therefore, are not 
presented as part of income tax expense in the 
profit or loss.

In line with the Finance Act 2020, minimum tax if 
applicable will be determined based on 0.25% of 
gross turnover, less franked investment income, 
provided the Company earned gross turnover up 
to N25 million in the relevant year of assessment. 
There was no update to this in the Finance Act 2021.
Where the minimum tax charge is higher than the 
Company Income Tax (CIT), a hybrid tax situation 
exists. In this situation, the CIT is recognised in the 
income tax expense line in the profit or loss and the 
excess amount is presented above the income tax 
line as minimum tax.

Finance Act 2021
The Finance Act was signed into law on 31 
December 2021 and took effect from 1 January 
2022. It introduces changes to the Capital gains 
tax, education tax and an introduction of a science 
and engineering levy of 0.25% of Profit before 
tax. It also introduces an imposition of excise duty 
at N10 per litre on No-alcoholic, carbonated and 
sweetened beverages.

The Finance Act, 2021 clarifies the application of 
the amendment of the minimum tax rate from 0.5% 
to 0.25% of company turnover which was earlier 
introduced in the finance act 2020. The reduction 
will apply to any two accounting periods between 
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2021 as may 
be chosen by the taxpayer, and companies with 
turnover of less than NGN25 million in a year of 

assessment will be exempted from the minimum 
tax. Also, in the latest amendment of the Act, there 
was a reduction of the timeline for payment of 
Tertiary Education Tax (TET) from 60 to 30 days and 
an increase in the rate from 2% to 2.5%.

(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

 • temporary differences on the initial recognition 
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects

 • neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

 • taxable temporary differences arising on the 
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which they 
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined 
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary 
differences.

If the amount of taxable temporary differences is 
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, 
then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals 
of existing temporary differences, are considered, 
based on the business plans of the Company. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realised; such reductions are reversed when 
the probability of future taxable profits improves. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be 
used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and 
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the Company expects, at the reporting 
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
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its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution scheme
Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution plans are expensed as the related 
service is provided and recognised as personnel 
expenses in profit or loss. Prepaid contributions 
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a 
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is 
available. The Bank contributes 10% of basic salary, 
rent and transport allowances, with the employee 
contributing a further 8% in line with the provisions 
of the Pension Reforms Act 2014. The Bank has no 
further payment obligations once the contributions 
have been paid. The contributions are recognised 
as employee benefit expenses when they are due. 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available.

(b) Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the 
related service is provided. A liability is recognised 
for the amount expected to be paid if the Bank has 
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by 
the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably.

(c) Other employee benefits
Other employee benefits are expensed when they 
are incurred. Other personnel expenses relate to 
one-off discretionary payments and other benefits 
paid to staff of the Bank. There are no other 
constructive or contractual obligations on the Bank 
aside from the actual amount incurred.

2.19 Operating Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits 
during the accounting period in the form of 
outflows, depletion of assets or incurrence of 
liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than 
those relating to distributions to equity participants.
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis 
regardless of the time of spending cash. Expenses 
are recognized in the income statement when a 
decrease in future economic benefit related to a 
decrease in an assets or an increase of a liability has 
arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses are 

measured at historical cost.

Only the portion of cost of a previous period that is 
related to the income earned during the reporting 
period is recognized as an expense. Expenses that 
are not related to the income earned during the 
reporting period, but expected to generate future 
economic benefits, are recorded in the financial 
statement as assets. The portion of assets which is 
intended for earning income in the future periods 
shall be recognized as an expense when the 
associated income is earned.

Expenses are recognized in the same reporting 
period when they are incurred in cases when it is 
not probable to directly relate them to particular 
income earned during the current reporting period 
and when they are not expected to generate any 
income during the coming years.

2.20 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past 
event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized 
as finance cost.

(a) Levies
A provision for levies is recognised when the 
condition that triggers the payment of the levy is 
met. If a levy obligation is subject to a minimum 
activity threshold so that the obligating event is 
reaching a minimum activity, then a provision is 
recognised when that minimum activity threshold is 
reached.

2.21 Share capital

(a) Share issue costs
Incremental costs that are directly attributable to 
the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from 
the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

(b) Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in 
equity in the period in which they are approved by 
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the Bank’s shareholders.

Dividends for the period that are declared after 
the date of the statement of financial position are 
disclosed in the subsequent events note.

Dividends proposed by the Directors but not yet 
approved by members are disclosed in the financial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of 
the Company and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria.

2.22 Statutory reserve

The Nigerian Banking industry regulations require 
banks to make an annual appropriation to a statutory 
reserve. An appropriation of 30% of profit after tax 
is made if the statutory reserve is less than paid-
up share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the 
statutory reserve is greater than the paid up share 
capital.

2.23 Regulatory risk reserve

The regulatory risk reserve represents a reserve 
created when credit impairment on loans and 
advances as accounted for under IFRS using 
the expected credit loss model differs from the 
prudential provisioning requirements set by the 
Central Bank of Nigeria

2.24 Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve warehouses cumulative fair 
value gains/losses on financial assets classified as 
fair value through other comprehensive income. 
Fair value gains on financial assets (excluding 
equity investments) are reclassified to profit or loss 
account on disposal of the assets.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Introduction and overview

This note presents information about the Bank’s 
exposure to financial risks and the Bank’s 
management of capital.

Enterprise risk review
The underlying premise of Enterprise Risk 
Management is that every entity exists to provide 
value for its stakeholders. All organizations face
uncertainty, uncertainty presents both risks and 

opportunities, with the potential to erode or 
enhance value.

In recent years, managing an enterprise’s risk in 
a consistent, efficient and sustainable manner 
has become a critical priority, as the business 
environment faces unprecedented levels of 
complexity, changing geopolitical threats, new 
regulations and increasing shareholders’ demand.
Titan Trust Bank seeks to achieve an appropriate 
balance between risk and reward in its business 
strategy, and continues to build and enhance 
the risk management capabilities that will assist 
it in delivering its growth plans in a controlled 
environment.

The Bank’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 
framework addresses specific risk areas such as 
credit, market, liquidity, operational, strategic and 
reputational risks.

Full implementation of the requirements of the 
ERM Framework is on-going under the oversight 
of the following committees which are tasked with 
monitoring the implementation on behalf of the 
Board:

 • Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
(BARCC)

 • Board Credit Committee (BCC)

 • Board Finance and General-Purpose Committee

 • Board Governance, Nomination and 
Renumeration Committee

The Bank’s ERM Framework ensures risks are 
managed using a structured and disciplined 
approach that aligns strategy, processes, people, 
technology and knowledge with the purpose of 
evaluating and managing the opportunities and 
threats faced. The Bank’s “Enterprise-wide” Risk 
Management methodology ensures the removal 
of functional, divisional, departmental or cultural 
barriers to managing risks.

The main benefits and objectives to the Bank of the 
ERM implementation include the following:

 • It provides a platform for the Board and 
Management to confidently make informed 
decisions regarding the trade-off between risk 
and reward;

 • It aligns business decisions at the operating 
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level to the Bank’s appetite for risk;

 • It balances operational control with the 
achievement of strategic objectives;

 • It enables Executives to systematically identify 
and manage significant risks on an aggregate 
basis;

 • It enables the evaluation of new and existing 
investments on both a standalone and portfolio 
basis; and

 • It minimizes operational surprises and related 
costs or losses.

Risk Management governance structure

The following management committees, 
comprising of senior management staff, support 
the Executive Committee in performing its risk 
management roles:

(i) Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) 
is responsible for market and liquidity risk 
management. It is primarily concerned with the 
setting of limits on portfolio mix and the liquidity 
management of the Bank. The Committee is further 
responsible for the supervision of pricing or spread 
on earning assets and liabilities.

(ii) Management Credit Committee (MCC)
The Management Credit Committee (MCC) is 
responsible for managing credit risks in the Bank. 
The Committee focuses on management of the 
Bank’s credit risk exposures. The MCC deliberates 
on issues concerning credit risk relating to credit 
approval, restructure and recommendation of write 
offs.

Business units

Business Units and their staff, as primary risk 
owners/managers, are responsible for the day-to-
day identification, mitigation, management and 
monitoring of risks within their respective functions.
Business Units and their staff are also responsible 
for the following:

 • Implementing the Bank’s risk management 
strategies;

 • Managing day-to-day risk exposures by using 
appropriate procedures and controls in line 
with the Bank’s risk management framework;

 • Identifying risk issues and implementing 
remedial action to address these issues; and

 • Reporting and escalating material risks and 
associated issues to appropriate authorities.

Units and functions with primary responsibility 
for independent risk oversight and monitoring
These units and functions include the following:

 • Enterprise Risk Management Division;

 • Legal Department;

 • Corporate Communications Department

 • Human Resource Department and

 • Compliance Department

Internal Audit Department (i.e. Corporate Audit 
function), is the unit responsible for evaluating and 
providing independent assurance.

3.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the possibility of a loss resulting 
from a counter party’s failure to meet contractual 
obligations. Traditionally, it refers to the risk that 
a lender may not receive the owed principal and 
interest, which results in an interruption of cash 
flows and increased costs of collection. Although 
it is impossible to know exactly who will default 
on obligations, properly assessing and managing 
credit risk can lessen the severity of loss. Interest 
payments from the borrower or issuer of a debt 
obligation are a lender’s or investor’s reward for 
assuming credit risk.

Titan Trust Bank has a credit risk management policy 
approved by its Board. The credit risk management 
objectives are:

1. To provide a clear and consistent direction 
for the Bank for creating and managing credit 
exposures;

2. To maintain a high quality risk assets portfolio 
and minimize credit losses arising from errors 
of judgement.

3. To achieve the lowest non-performing loans in 
the industry while maximizing returns on assets 
created;

4. To maximize stakeholder value;

5. To develop a strong credit risk culture where all 
staff actively participate in the risk management 
process.
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The credit risk appetite of the bank is defined by its 
expression or willingness to accept risk up to a level 
that minimizes erosion of earnings or capital due to 
avoidable losses from credit activities. The Bank’s 
Credit Risk Management Strategy is driven by its 
objectives and includes adoption of the following 
strategies for the management of credit risk;

i. A selective and disciplined approach to credit 
origination and focus on customers that will 
create attractive value for the Bank;

ii. Adherence by all to the Bank’s credit risk policy, 
developed to enable staff identify, measure and 
manage credit risk exposures;

iii. The Board and Senior Management set the 
tone for the right risk culture in the Bank;

iv. Adequate pricing for the risks taken by the 
Bank;

v. Establishment and enforcement of the Bank’s 
exposure and provisioning policy in accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting 
standards and other regulatory requirements; 
and

vi. Broadening of the knowledge and skills of all 
credit personnel through training and capacity 
building programmes.

(a) Credit risk measurement

(i) Loans and advances
In measuring credit risk in loans and advances to 
customers and banks at a counterparty level, the 
Bank reflects the following components:

i. the client or counterparty’s character and 
capacity to pay off its contractual obligations;

ii. current exposures to the counterparty and its 
likely future development;

iii. credit history of the counterparty; and

iv. the likely recovery ratio in case of default 
obligations - value of collateral and other ways 
out.

The Bank’s rating scale methodology reflects the 
range of default probabilities defined for each rating 
class. This means that, in principle, exposures 
migrate between classes as the assessment of 
their probability of default changes. The rating tools 
are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. 
The Bank regularly validates the performance of 
the rating and their predictive power with regard to 
default events.

Methodology for risk rating
When lending to Large Corporates & SMEs, the Bank 
considers five factors: Character, Capacity, Capital, 
Collateral and Conditions.
Analysing a borrower’s position using the 5Cs of 
credit, can ensure the Bank has a holistic view of 

Grade Rating Description Grade

1 AAA Highest quality, with minimal credit risk Investment grade

2 AA High quality subject to very low credit risk Investment grade

3 A Considered upper-medium and may possess certain speculative characteristics Investment grade

4 BBB Considered medium-grade and may possess certain speculative characteristics Investment grade

5 BB Considered to have speculative elements and are subject to substantial credit risk Standard grade

6 B Considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk Standard grade

7 CCC Considered to be of poor standing and are subject to very high credit risk Non-Investment grade

8 CC In or near default, with possibility of recovery Non-Investment grade

9 C In default with little chance of recovery Default grade

10 D In default with no chance of recovery Default grade
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the overall credit risk incident on their business.

Consideration is also given to covenants, collateral 
and credit rationing to controlling credit losses 
for the Bank. Frequent contact with borrowers, 
monitoring the flow of borrower’s business through 
their bank account, regular reviews of borrower’s 
reports and site visits, and periodically updating the 
borrowers ratings.

(ii) Debt securities and other bills
For credit risk associated with debt securities, 
ratings assessments by external agencies such as 
Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, Agusto & Co and Fitch 
are taken into consideration. In addition to this, 
limits have been put in place to monitor credit risk 
exposures per issue, issuer and sector.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages limits and controls concentrations 
of credit risk wherever they are identified - in 
particular, to individual counterparties and groups, 
and to industries and countries. The Bank operates 
a centralized credit approval process where all 
credits irrespective of amount shall be considered 
by the MCC. Sequel to the recommendation of the 
BCC, the Board of Directors delegated the credit 
approval authority to the MCC up to a given limit. All
credits above this limit is approved by the Board. 

Some other specific control and mitigation 
measures are outlined below.

(i) Collateral
The Bank employs a range of policies and practices 
to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these 
is the taking of security for funds advances, which is 
common practice. The Bank implements guidelines 
on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral 
or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral 
types for loans and advances are:

 • Mortgages over residential properties;

 • Charges over business assets such as premises, 
inventory and accounts receivable;

 • Charges over financial instruments such as debt 
securities and equities.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other 
than loans and advances is determined by the 
nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury 

and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, 
with the exception of asset-backed securities and 
similiar instruments, which are secured by portfolios 
of financial instruments.

The guiding principles behind collateral acceptability 
are adequacy and realizability. The Management 
Credit Committee (MCC) approves the guidelines for 
acceptability of collateral/security. The Committee 
also provides a clear articulation of:

 • Acceptable collateral in respect of each 
credit product including description, location 
restrictions in respect of landed property, 
guidelines in respect of minimum realizable 
value of such collateral;

 • Required documentation/perfection of 
collateral;

 • Conditions for waivers of collateral requirement 
and guidelines for approval of collateral waiver;

 • Acceptability of cash and other forms of 
collateral denominated in foreign currency.

All items pledged as security for credit facilities 
are usually registered in the name of the Bank. 
Additional criteria including insurance cover as may 
be defined in the Bank’s risk management policy. 
Collateral as security in respect of approved credit 
exposures include mortgage on landed property, 
quoted stocks/shares of actively traded blue chip 
companies only, charge on assets (fixed and/
or floating), guarantees issued by other banks 
acceptable to Titan Trust Bank, lien on asset being 
financed and others.

Collateral must be appreciating or at least stable. 
Estimates of the value of the collateral item(s) 
should be adequate to ensure full recovery of the 
Bank’s principal credit exposure.

The fair values of collaterals are based upon the 
latest valuation undertaken by independent valuers 
on behalf of the Bank. The valuation techniques 
adopted for properties are based upon fair values 
of similar properties in the neighborhood taking 
into cognizance the advantages and disadvantages 
of the comparatives over the subject property 
and any other factor which can have effect on the 
valuation e.g. subsequent movements in property 
prices, after making allowance for dilapidations. 
The fair values of non- property collaterals (such as 
equities, bond, treasury bills, etc.) are determined 
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with reference to market quoted prices or market 
values of similar instrument and other acceptable 
valuation methodologies.

The same fair value approach is used in determining 
the collaterals value in the course of sale or 
realization. The Bank does not take physical 
possession of properties or other assets held as 
collateral and uses external agents to realize the 
value as soon as practicable, generally at auction, to 
settle indebtedness. Any surplus funds are returned 
to the borrower.

(c) Credit-related commitments
The primary purpose of these instruments is to 
ensure that funds are available to a customer as 
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit 
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary 
and commercial letters of credit - which are written 
undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer 

authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Bank 
up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and 
conditions - are collateralised by the underlying 
shipments of goods to which they relate and 
therefore carry less risk than a direct loan..

3.2.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk before 
collateral held or other credit enhancements

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 
December 2021, is represented by the net carrying 
amounts of the financial assets set out in Note 5 
below, with the exception of financial guarantees 
issued by the Bank for which the maximum exposure 
to credit risk is represented by the maximum amount 
the Bank would have to pay if the guarantees are 
called (refer to Note 34 Contingent Liabilities and 
Commitments).

31 December 2021
In thousands of Naira

Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

12 months ECL 57,833,539 5,521,452 76,551 63,431,542
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Gross loans and advances 57,833,539 5,521,452 76,551 63,431,542

Less allowance for impairment
12 - months ECL (see note18(a)) (288,005) (72,253) (5,720) (365,978)
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Total allowance for impairment (288,005) (72,253) (5,720) (365,978)

Net loans and advances 57,545,534 5,449,199 70,831 63,065,564

Loans and Advances to customers
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31 December 2020
In thousands of Naira

Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total

12 months ECL 34,748,419 4,176,204 27,513 38,952,136
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Gross loans and advances 34,748,419 4,176,204 27,513 38,952,136

Less allowance for impairment
12 - months ECL (see note18(a)) (111,584) (97,017) (1,163) (209,764)
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Total allowance for impairment (111,584) (97,017) (1,163) (209,764)

Net loans and advances 34,636,835 4,079,187 26,350 38,742,372

31 December 2021
In thousands of Naira

Cash and balances 
with central banks 

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial
assets at

FVTPL

Assets pledged
as collateral

Loans to
banks

Investment
securities

Other
financial

assets

12 months ECL 1,915,261 1,930,769 16,288,374 61,166,425 48,864,873 22,055,663
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Gross amount 1,915,261 1,930,769 16,288,374 61,166,425 48,864,873 22,055,663

ECL - impairment - - (26,326) (36,017) (14,487) -

Carrying amount 1,915,261 1,930,769 16,262,048 61,130,408 48,850,386 22,055,663

31 December 2020
In thousands of Naira

Cash and balances 
with central banks 

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial
assets at

FVTPL

Assets pledged
as collateral

Loans to
banks

Investment
securities

Other
financial

assets

12 months ECL 2,987,043 2,210,227 10,609,415 25,636,249 23,915,717 5,635,019
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired - - - -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired - - - -

Gross amount 2,987,043 2,210,227 10,609,415 25,636,249 23,915,717 5,635,019

ECL - impairment - - - (8,415) (718) -

Carrying amount 2,987,043 2,210,227 10,609,415 25,627,834 23,914,999 5,635,019

Loans and Advances to customers

Credit rating - 12 month ECL: All financial assest excluding loans and advances

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets excluding loans and 
advances to customers.



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 99

31 December 2021
In thousands of Naira

Staging Investment
Grade (AAA-

BBB)

Standard
Grade (BB-B)

Non-Investment
Grade (CCC, CC)

Default Grade 
(C,D)

Total

Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN Stage 1 1,915,261 - - - 1,915,261

Financial assets at FVTPL Stage 1 - 1,916,091 - - 1,916,091

Assets pledged as collateral Stage 1 16,288,374 - - - 16,288,374

Loans and advances to customers Stage 1 19,937,560 43,115,772 - 12,232 63,065,564

Loans to banks Stage 1 2,000,247 59,130,161 - - 61,130,408

Investment securities Stage 1 48,850,386 - - - 48,850,386

Other financial assets Stage 1 22,055,663 - - - 22,055,663

31 December 2020
In thousands of Naira

Staging Investment
Grade (AAA-

BBB)

Standard
Grade (BB-B)

Non-Investment
Grade (CCC, CC)

Default Grade 
(C,D)

Total

Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN Stage 1 2,987,043 - - - 2,987,043

Financial assets at FVTPL Stage 1 10,037 2,200,240 - - 2,210,277

Assets pledged as collateral Stage 1 10,609,415 - - - 10,609,415

Loans and advances to customers Stage 1 5,941,164 32,801,190 - - 38,742,354

Loans to banks Stage 1 2,000,242 23,627,592 - - 25,627,834

Investment securities Stage 1 23,914,999 - - - 23,914,999

Other financial assets Stage 1 - 5,635,019 - - 5,635,019

Financial assets exposure: grade versus staging

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.2.2 Credit concentrations

The Bank monitors concentration of credit risk by 
sector and by geographic location. An analysis 
of concentration of credit risk from loans and 
advances, loan commitments, financial guarantees 
and investment securities is shown below:

(a) Geographical sectors
The following table breaks down the Bank’s 
main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, 
as categorised by geographical region as of 31 
December 2021. For this table, the Bank has
allocated exposures to regions based on the region 
of domicile of the counterparties.

31 December 2021
In thousands of 
Naira

Cash and balances 
with Central Bank 

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial 
assets

at FVTPL

Assets 
pledged as

collateral

Loans
to Banks

Loans &
Advances to

Customers

Investment
securities

Other assets Total

In Nigeria:
Lagos 1,915,261 1,916,091 16,262,048 7,703,605 43,379,839 48,850,386 22,494,602 142,521,832
Abuja - - - - 8,218,662 - - 8,218,662
North East - - - - - - - -
North Central - - - - - - - -
South East - - - - 515 - - 515
South South - - - - 6,321,614 - - 6,321,614
South West - - - - 5,144,934 - - 5,144,934

Outside Africa - - - 53,426,803 - - - 53,426,803

Total 1,915,261 1,916,091 16,262,048 61,130,408 63,065,564 48,850,386 22,494,602 215,634,360

31 December 2020
In thousands of 
Naira

Cash and balances 
with Central Bank 

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial 
assets

at FVTPL

Assets 
pledged as

collateral

Loans
to Banks

Loans &
Advances to

Customers

Investment
securities

Other assets Total

In Nigeria:
Lagos 2,987,043 2,210,277 10,609,415 21,875,859 29,052,289 23,915,717 5,635,019 96,285,619
Abuja - - - - 4,397,027 - - 4,397,027
North East - - - - - - - -
North Central - - - - - - - -
South East - - - - - - - -
South South - - - - 3,700,649 - - 3,700,649
South West - - - - 1,802,172 - - 1,802,172

Outside Africa - - - 3,760,390 - - - 3,760,390

Total 2,987,043 2,210,277 10,609,415 25,636,249 38,952,137 23,915,717 5,635,019 109,945,857
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(b) Industry sectors

31 December 2021
In thousands of Naira

Cash and balances
with Central Bank

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial
assets at

FVTPL

Assets 
pledged

as collateral

Loans
to Banks

Loans &
Advances to

Customers

Investment
securities

Other assets Total

Agriculture - - - - 128,862 - - 128,862
Manufacturing - - - - 35,394,792 - - 35,394,792
Finance and Insurance - 1,916,091 - 59,130,161 60,810 - 22,494,602 83,601,664
General commerce - - - - 9,879,499 - - 9,879,499
Government 1,915,261 - 16,262,048 2,000,247 19,506 48,850,386 - 69,047,448
General (retail) - - - - 354,828 - - 354,828
Oil and gas - - - - 5,503,631 - - 5,503,631
Construction - - - - 1,551,673 - - 1,551,673
Real estate - - - - 2,495,122 - - 2,495,122
Other - - - - - - - -
Information and 
Communication - - - - - - - -
Mining and quarry - - - - 1,061,261 - - 1,061,261
Professional scientific 
and technical activities - - - - 3,614,767 - - 3,614,767
Human health and social 
work activities - - - - 1,931,711 - - 1,931,711
Education - - - - - - - -
Transportation and 
storage - - - - 1,069,102 - - 1,069,102

Total 1,915,261 1,916,091 16,262,048 61,130,408 63,065,564 48,850,386 22,494,602 215,634,360

31 December 2020
In thousands of Naira

Cash and balances
with Central Bank

excluding mandatory 
deposits with CBN

Financial
assets at

FVTPL

Assets 
pledged

as collateral

Loans
to Banks

Loans &
Advances to

Customers

Investment
securities

Other assets Total

Agriculture - - - - 90,381 - - 90,381
Manufacturing - - - - 27,648,899 - - 27,648,899
Finance and Insurance 2,987,043 - - 25,636,249 - 762,667 5,635,019 35,020,978
General commerce - - - - 2,628,082 - - 2,628,082
Government - 2,210,227 10,609,415 - - 23,153,050 - 35,972,692
General (retail) - - - - 191,636 - - 191,636
Oil and gas - - - - 3,507,308 - - 3,507,308
Construction - - - - - - - -
Real estate - - - - 2,507,514 - - 2,507,514
Other - - - - 2,378,317 - - 2,378,317

Total 2,987,043 2,210,227 10,609,415 25,636,249 38,952,137 23,915,717 5,635,019 109,945,807
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3.2.3 Collateral held and other credit 
enhancements, and their financial assets

The Bank holds collateral and other credit 
enhancements against certain of its credit 

exposures. The table below sets out the principal 
types of collateral held against loans and advances 
to customers.

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realisation 
of the collateral in an orderly manner and dispose 
these assets as soon as possible in line with
the legal framework surrounding the possession of 
collaterals.

3.2.4 Amount arising from ECL

For inputs, assumptions arising and techniques 
used for estimating impairment see accounting 
policy in note 2.6

In thousands of Naira Loans and advances 
to customers 31
December 2021

Loans and advances 
to customers 31
December 2020

Stage 1 38,249,927 23,164,631
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 - -

Total 38,249,927 23,164,631

Corporate exposures Retail exposures All exposures

– Information obtained during periodic review
of customer files – e.g. audited financial 
statements, management accounts, budgets 
and projections. Examples of areas of particular 
focus are: gross profit margins, financial leverage 
ratios, debt service coverage, compliance 
with covenants, quality of management, senior 
management changes

– Data from credit reference agencies, press 
articles, changes in external credit ratings

– Quoted bond and credit default swap (CDS) 
prices for the borrower where available

– Actual and expected significant changes in the 
political, regulatory and technological environment 
of the borrower or in its business activities

– Internally collected data on customer 
behaviour – e.g. utilisation of credit card 
facilities

– Affordability metrics

– External data from credit reference 
agencies, including industry-standard 
credit scores

– Payment record – this 
includes overdue status as well 
as a range of variables about 
payment ratios

– Utilisation of the granted limit

– Requests for and granting of 
forbearance

– Existing and forecast changes 
in business, financial and 
economic conditions

In thousands of Naira Loans and advances 
to customers 31
December 2021

Loans and advances 
to customers 31

December 2020

Real estate property 5,898,974 4,037,806
Bank guarantees - -
Cash 19,055,596 8,006,600
Debenture 9,423,891 5,255,346
Insurance Bond 365,000 -
Lien on Asset Financed 1,320,000 -
Government Debt Instruments - -
Pledged Goods and Receivables 2,186,466 4,774,679
Others - -

Total 38,249,927 23,164,631
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The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk 
grade based on a variety of data that is determined 
to be predictive of the risk of default and applying 
experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades 
are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors 
that are indicative of risk of default. These factors 
vary depending on the nature of the exposure and 
the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated 
such that the risk of default occurring increases 
exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for
example, the difference in risk of default between 
credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the 
difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at 
initial recognition based on available information 
about the borrower. Exposures are subject to 
ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure 
being moved to a different credit risk grade.

3.2.5 Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the 
determination of the term structure of PD for 
exposures. The Bank does not have sufficient 
default experiences to model the probability of 
default therefore the Bank has employed sovereign 
and corporate S & P’s probability of default rates as 
it deems it to be a reliable and suitable data for the 
Bank’s current portfolio.

In determining the ECL for other assets, the Bank 
applies the simplified model to estimate ECLs, 
adopting a provision matrix to determine the lifetime 
ECLs. The provision matrix estimates ECLs on the 
basis of historical default rates, adjusted for current 
and future economic conditions (expected changes 
in default rates) without undue cost and effort.

3.2.6 Significant increase in credit risk

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has 
increased significantly vary by portfolio and include 
quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, 
including a backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed 
to have increased significantly since initial 
recognition if, based on the Bank’s quantitative 

modelling, the remaining lifetime PD is determined 
to have increased by more than a predetermined 
percentage/range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where 
possible, relevant historical experience, the Bank 
may determine that an exposure has undergone a 
significant increase in credit risk based on particular 
qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative 
of such and whose effect may not otherwise be 
fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely 
basis.

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant 
increase in credit risk occurs no later than when 
an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past 
due are determined by counting the number of 
days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect 
of which full payment has not been received. Due 
dates are determined based on the terms of the 
contract.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, 
then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to 
being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative 
indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as 
delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of 
an increased risk of default that persists after the 
indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, 
the Bank determines a probation period during 
which the financial asset is required to demonstrate 
good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit
risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual 
terms of a loan have been modified, evidence 
that the criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no 
longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment 
performance against the modified contractual 
terms.

The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria 
used to identify significant increases in credit risk 
by regular reviews to confirm that:

 • the criteria are capable of identifying significant 
increases in credit risk before an exposure is in 
default;

 • the criteria do not align with the point in time 
when an asset becomes 30 days past due; and

 • there is no unwarranted volatility in loss 
allowance from transfers between 12-month PD 
(stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).
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The contractual terms of a loan may be modified 
for a number of reasons, including changing market 
conditions, customer retention and other factors not 
related to a current or potential credit deterioration 
of the customer. An existing loan whose terms 
have been modified may be derecognised and the 
renegotiated loan recognised as a new loan at fair 
value in accordance with the accounting policy.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and 
the modification does not result in derecognition, 
the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk 
has increased significantly reflects comparison of:

 • its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date 
based on the modified terms; with

 • the remaining lifetime PD estimated based 
on data at initial recognition and the original 
contractual terms.

3.2.7 Definition of default

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default 
when:

 • the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit 
obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse 
by the Bank to actions such as realising security 
(if any is held); or

 • the borrower is past due more than 90 days 
on any material credit obligation to the Bank. 
Overdrafts are considered as being past due 
once the customer has breached an advised 
limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the 
current amount outstanding.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the 
Bank considers indicators that are:

 • qualitative - e.g. breaches of covenant;

 • quantitative - e.g. overdue status and non-
payment on another obligation of the same 
issuer to the Bank; and

 • based on data developed internally and 
obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial 
instrument is in default and their significance may 
vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.
The definition of default largely aligns with that 
applied by the Bank for regulatory capital purposes, 
except where there is regulatory waiver on 
specifically identified loans and advances.

3.2.8 Incorporating forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information 
into both its assessment of whether the credit 
risk of an instrument has increased significantly 
since its initial recognition and its measurement 
of ECL. Based on advice from the Bank Risk 
Management Committee and economic experts 
and consideration of a variety of external actual 
and forecast information, the Bank formulates a 
‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant 
economic variables as well as a representative 
range of other possible forecast scenarios. This 
process involves developing two or more additional 
economic scenarios and considering the relative 
probabilities of each outcome. External information
includes economic data and forecasts published 
by governmental bodies and local monetary 
authorities, supranational organisations such as 
the OECD and the International Monetary Fund, and 
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The base case represents a most-likely outcome 
and is aligned with information used by the Bank 
for other purposes such as strategic planning 
and budgeting. The other scenarios represent 
more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. 
Periodically, the Bank carries out stress testing of 
more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination 
of these other representative scenarios.

The Bank has identified and documented key drivers 
of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio 
of financial instruments and, using an analysis of 
historical data, has estimated relationships between 
macro-economic variables and credit risk and 
credit losses. The key drivers for credit risk are: 
Inflation rate, GDP growth rate, exchange rate and 
unemployment rate.

These parameters are generally derived from 
internally developed statistical models and other 
historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-
looking information as described above. IFRS 9 
requires the calculation of probability-weighted 
ECL impairments. Three ECL figures are calculated 
for each account (optimistic, bestestimate and 
downturn ECLs) and probability-weighted to arrive 
at a single ECL impairment for each account. The 
likelihood of the bestestimate, downturn and 
optimistic scenarios are determined by Titan Trust 
Bank’s management.

The likelihood of the base case, upturn and downturn 
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scenarios are calculated using the confidence 
interval estimation technique. Possible outcomes 
for the different scenarios (base case, upturn and 
downturn) are influenced by the macro-economic 
variable considered by management – Real GDP 
growth rate. The Z-score is used to calculate the 
probability of having the base, upturn and downturn 
scenarios by comparing Nigeria’s GDP and inflation 
historical experience from 1961 – 2016. The three 
scenarios used in the calculation of ECL are;

1. The Base case scenario – which captures TTB’s 
view of the most likely economic future

2. The upturn scenario – which presents possible 
favourable future economic developments

3. The downturn scenario – which presents 
possible adverse future economic 
developments.

3.2.9 Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the 
term structure of the following variables:

 • probability of default (PD);

 • loss given default (LGD)

 • exposure at default (EAD)

Stage 1
Account-level ECL figures are calculated projecting 
monthly expected losses for 12 months of each 
account. The forward-looking, macroadjusted 
monthly PDs are applied to the applicable LGD 
estimate and EAD or the collateral adjusted EAD (if 
secured) at the start of each month.

Stage 2
Account-level ECL figures are calculated projecting 
monthly expected losses for the remaining lifetime 
of each account. The forward-looking, macro-
adjusted monthly PDs are applied to the applicable 
LGD estimate and the EAD or collateral adjusted EAD 
(if secured) at the start of each month

Stage 3
Account-level ECL figures are calculated by applying 
the applicable LGD estimate to the balance as at the 
reporting date. A PD of 1 is assumed.
These parameters are generally derived from 
internally developed statistical models and other 
historical data and they are adjusted to reflect 
forward-looking information as described above.

Probability of Default (PD)
Probability of Default is the likelihood of a the 
counter-party to a financial asset defaulting over a 
given time period. This input varies with the time 
period involved The Bank does not have sufficient 
default experiences to model the probability of 
default therefore the Bank has employed sovereign 
and corporate S & P’s probability of default rates as 
it deems it to be a reliable and suitable data for the 
Bank’s current portfolio.

The 12-month PD estimates were used to form the 
basis of the lifetime PD curves, which are required to 
calculate lifetime expected credit losses for Stage 2 
accounts. In addition, macro-economic adjustment 
is applied to account for differences in the current 
economic conditions and those underlying the PDs.

Exposure at Default (EAD)
Exposure at default (EAD) is the expected exposure 
in the event of a default. In order to calculate IFRS 9 
ECLs, assumptions are made about how exposures 
will run-off over their lifetime. For the financial assets, 
the assumed contractual payments, based on the 
original balance, interest/coupon rate and term, 
are calculated and applied to derive the expected 
lifetime exposure at default for any given month. For 
loans and staff loans, the corresponding expected 
monthly lifetime collateral value is deducted to 
obtain an unsecured EAD structure, which is used in
the final ECL calculations. All Titan Trust Bank’s 
investment securities are unsecured, so no lifetime 
collateral is deducted.

For off-balance sheet exposures, the bank applies 
the loan equivalent factor in estimating EAD for off-
balance sheet exposures.

Loss Given Default
Loss given default is the magnitude of likely loss 
if there is a default. For the loans and staff loans, 
the LGD is applied on the unsecured portion of the 
exposure for a given facility. For secured loans, a 
forecasted lifetime collateral schedule matching the 
EAD schedule of the loan was created. The point-
in-time value of the collateral was used to reduce 
the exposure amount to the unsecured amount. 
The unsecured LGD becomes a function of the 
unsecured recovery rate, such that Unsecured 
LGD = 1 – Recovery Rate. Titan Trust Bank relied on 
Moodys’ recovery data for the unsecured LGD for 
the loans, while the bank derived recovery rates 
for the staff loans by averaging the subsequent 
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recoveries of exited staff.

The complement of this rate was used as the 
unsecured LGD, which is assumed to be constant 
over the lifetime of the loans. As described above, 
and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD 
for financial assets for which credit risk has not 
significantly increased, the Bank measures ECL 
considering the risk of default over the maximum 
contractual period (including any borrower’s 
extension options) over which it is exposed to 
credit risk, even if, for risk management purposes, 
the Bank considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which 
the Bank has the right to require repayment of 
an advance or terminate a loan commitment or 
guarantee.

However, for overdrafts and revolving facilities that 
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment 
component, the Bank measures ECL over a period 
longer than the maximum contractual period if the 
Bank’s contractual ability to demand repayment and 
cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the 
Bank’s exposure to credit losses to the contractual 
notice period.These facilities do not have a fixed 
term or repayment structure and are managed on 
a collective basis. The Bank can cancel them with 
immediate effect but this contractual right is not 
enforced in the normal day-to-day management, 
but only when the Bank becomes aware of an 
increase in credit risk at the facility level. This longer 
period is estimated taking into account the credit 
risk management actions that the Bank expects to 

take and that serve to mitigate ECL. These include 
a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/
or turning the outstanding balance into a loan with 
fixed repayment terms.

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on 
a collective basis, the financial instruments are 
grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics 
that include:

 • instrument type

 • credit risk gradings

 • collateral type

 • Past due information

 • date of initial recognition

 • remaining term to maturity

 • industry

 • geographic location of the borrower

The groupings are subject to regular review to 
ensure that exposures within a particular group 
remain appropriately homogeneous.

3.2.10 Loss allowance

Measurement basis under IFRS 9
The following tables show reconciliations from the 
opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance 
by class of financial instrument.

Loans to banks 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL not-
creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January (8,415) - - (8,415) (2,377) - - (2,377)
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) (27,602) - - (27,602) (6,038) - - (6,038)

Closing balance (36,017) - - (36,017) (8,415) - - (8,415)

Gross amount 61,166,425 - - 61,166,425 25,636,249 - - 25,636,249

31 December 2021 31 December 2020In thousands of Naira
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Assets pledged as 
collateral
at amortised cost

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL not-
creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January - - - - (855) - - (855)
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) (26,326) - - (26,326) 855 - - 855

Closing balance (26,326) - - (26,326) - - - -

Gross amount 16,288,374 - - 16,288,374 10,609,415 - - -

Loans and advances to
customers at amortised 
cost

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January (209,764) - - (209,764) (218) - - (218)
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) (156,214) - - (156,214) (209,546) - - (209,546)

Closing balance (365,978) - - (365,978) (209,764) - - (209,764)

Gross amount 63,431,542 - - 63,431,542 38,952,136 - - 38,952,136

Investment securities at
amortised cost

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January (718) - - (718) (1,257) - - (1,257)
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) (13,770) - - (13,770) 539 - - 539

Closing balance (14,488) - - (14,488) (718) - - (718)

Gross amount 14,734,334 - - 14,734,334 3,382,265 - - 3,382,265

Cash and balances with 
central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with 
CBN

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL not-
creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
creditimpaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January - - - - - - - -
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) - - - - - - - -

Closing balance - - - - - - - -

Gross amount 1,915,261 - - 1,915,261 2,987,043 - - 2,987,043

31 December 2021

31 December 2021

31 December 2021

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

31 December 2020

31 December 2020

31 December 2020

In thousands of Naira

In thousands of Naira

In thousands of Naira

In thousands of Naira
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Investment securities at
FVOCI

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not-credit 

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit 

impaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not-credit 

impaired

Lifetime ECL 
credit impaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January (4,053) - - (4,053) (19,952) - - (19,952)
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) (78,611) - - (78,611) 15,899 - - 15,899

Closing balance (82,664) - - (82,664) (4,053) - - (4,053)

Gross amount 34,130,539 - - 34,130,539 20,533,452 - - 20,533,452

Other financial assets 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not-credit 

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit 

impaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime 
ECL not-

creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL 
credit impaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January - - - - - - - -
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) - - - - - - - -

Closing balance - - - - - - - -

Gross amount 22,055,663 - - 22,055,663 5,635,019 - - 5,635,019

Off-balance sheet 
exposure

12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL not-
credit impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit 

impaired

Total 12 - month
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not-credit 

impaired

Lifetime ECL 
credit impaired

Total

Balance as at 1 January (137,303) - - (137,303) - - - -
Net measurement of loss
allowances (see note 8) 89,844 - - 89,844 (137,303) - - (137,303)

Closing balance (47,459) - - (47,459) (137,303) - - (137,303)

Gross amount 25,475,751 - - 25,475,751 29,553,215 - - 29,553,215

31 December 2021

31 December 2021

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

31 December 2020

31 December 2020

In thousands of Naira

In thousands of Naira

In thousands of Naira
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3.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to 
meet its payment obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace 
funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence 
may be the failure to meet obligations to repay 
depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

Liquidity risk management process
The Bank’s liquidity management process is primarily 
the responsibility of the Assets and Liabilities 
Commitee (ALCO). Treasury is the executory arm of 
ALCO and its functions include:

 • Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring 
future cash flows to ensure that requirements 
can be met. This includes replenishment 
of funds as they mature or are borrowed by 
customers. The Bank maintains an active 
presence in money markets to enable this to 
happen;

 • Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable 
assets that can easily be liquidated as 
protection against any unforeseen interruption 
to cash flows

 • Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios 
against internal and regulatory requirements (in 
conjunction with financial control unit); and

 • Managing the concentration and profile of debt 
maturities.

Funding approach
Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by 
Treasury to maintain a wide diversification by 
currency, geography, provider, product and term.

3.3.1 Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to the Bank 
arising from either its inability to meet its obligations 
or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without 
incurring unacceptable cost or losses. Liquidity risk 
arises when the cushion provided by liquid assets is 
not sufficient to meet outstanding obligations. The 
Bank has liquidity and funding risk management 
process that ensures that all foreseeable funding 
commitments can be met when due and that 
access to wholesale market is coordinated and cost 
effective. Treasury department manages liquidity 
on a daily basis while ALCO tracks and reviews the 
liquidity situation every week.

 • Ensure that an adequate liquidity cushion is 

maintained to meet all maturing obligations on 
an on-going basis.

 • Control the Bank’s dependence on high cost 
of funds by building an effective contingency 
funding plan.

 • Set and comply with liquidity risk limits.

 • Monitor the gap profile structure and the 
funding sources.

 • Ensure a sufficient liquidity reserve of 
unencumbered liquid assets and the efficient 
usage of it.

 • Ensure availability of timely information for 
liquidity management decisions.

 • Ensure compliance with regulatory liquidity 
management and reporting requirements.

Liquidity Risk management processes
The Bank has methodology and procedures for 
the identification, assessment, measurement, 
monitoring, controlling and reporting of liquidity 
risks within the Bank. Titan Trust Bank adopts both 
qualitative and quantitative approaches to identify 
and measure liquidity risk, which include:

1. Funding and liquidity plan

Titan Trust Bank maintains a robust liquidity 
management plan inclusive of placement and 
takings lines with counterparty banks in order 
to ensure appropriate monitoring, planning and 
provision of funds in order to meet the bank’s 
obligations at every given time.

2. Ratio analysis (Indicators)

The Bank uses liquidity ratios to indicate its ability to 
meet short term obligations with liquid assets, reveal 
mismatches between tenured funding sources and 
uses, review the ability of the Bank to fund loans 
through customer deposits and allow management 
to monitor changes in liquidity.

3. Liquidity Gap analysis

Liquidity gap analysis is used to monitor the current 
liquidity position of the Bank. It quantifies the 
cumulative gap in the Bank’s business- asusual 
environment. The gap for any given tenor bucket 
represents the borrowings from or placements 
to the markets required to replace maturing 
liabilities or assets. The underlying assumptions are 
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documented and used consistently.

4. Concentration in sources and application of 
funds

The Bank monitors concentration in the sources 
and application of funds to ensure that the funding 
bases are stable and diversified. A well diversified 
funding base makes the Bank less vulnerable to 
adverse changes in the perception of a group of 
depositors/investors, whose actions or inactions 
could significantly affect the Bank.

5. Liquidity risk monitoring

Trigger points in the form of targets and limits on 
liquidity positions are monitored and deviations 
from “normal” ranges of operation reported to 
management. Trigger points and early warning 
indicators are based on internal limits and have 
been caliberated into different trigger levels 
requiring different management actions at the 
respective levels. These internal limits are set with 
respect to industry standards. The Bank’s liquidity 
management policies and procedures highlight and 
escalate exceptions promptly.

6. Liquidity Risk Reporting

Liquidity risks are communicated to the applicable 
business units, senior management and the 
Board. The Market Risk Department maintains 
an independent liquidity risk reporting which 
effectively and consistently communicate liquidity 
risk information to ALCO for appropriate decision 
making.

7. Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the Bank for managing 
liquidity risk is the ratio of net liquid assets to 
deposits from customers. For this purpose, net liquid 
assets are considered as including cash and cash 
equivalents and investment grade debt securities 
for which there is an active and liquid market less 
any deposits from banks, debt securities issued, 
other borrowings and commitments maturing within 
the next month. A similar calculation is used to 
measure the Bank’s compliance with the liquidity 
limit established by the Bank’s lead regulator (The 
Central Bank of Nigeria).

Details of the reported Bank ratio of net liquid assets 
to deposits from customers at the reporting date 
and during the reporting year were as

follows;

3.3.2 Maturity analysis

(a) Contractual maturity of financial assets and 
liabilities relevant time bands, groupings based on 
the remaining period to the contractual maturity as at 
the reporting date. The table includes both principal 

and interest cash flows. Contractual maturities do 
not necessarily reflect actual

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of 
the undiscounted cash flows of the Bank’s financial 
assets and liabilities into repayments or cash flow

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

At the end of the year 67.26% 77.00%

Average for the year 131.19% 270.50%
Maximum for the year 204.85% 791.47%
Minimum for the year 67.26% 77.00%
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The Bank’s expected cash flows on some 
financial assets and liabilities vary significantly 
from the contractual cash flows. For example, 
demand deposits from customers are expected to 
remain stable or increase and unrecognised loan 
commitments are not all expected to be drawn 
down immediately.

As part of the management of liquidity risk arising 
from financial liabilities, the Bank holds liquid assets 
comprising cash and cash equivalents, and debt 
securities issued by Federal Government, which 
can be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements. 
In addition, the Bank maintains agreed lines of credit 
with other banks and holds unencumbered assets 
eligible for use as collateral with central banks. 

3.4 Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which 
is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows 
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices such as interest 
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and 
commodity.

3.4.1 Management of market risk

Market risk is the risk that movements in market 
factors, including foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices, 
will reduce the Bank’s income or the value of its 
portfolios.

The objectives of the Bank’s market risk 
management are to protect the Bank’s capital and 
earnings from fluctuations caused by currency rates

and interest rate movements, manage and control 
market risk exposures in order to optimize return 
while complying with existing regulatory guidelines.

Market risk management and measurement 
process

The Bank has robust methodology and procedures 
for the identification, assessment, measurement, 
control, monitoring and reporting of market risks 
within the Bank’s trading portfolio and the rest of the 
Bank’s balance sheet. The Market Risk Management 
Department is responsible for measuring market 
risk exposures in accordance with the policies 
defined by the Board, monitoring and reporting the 
exposures against the prescribed limits.

Titan Trust Bank will use a range of tools for 
managing market risk which include:

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is used to determine the 
impact of changes in risk factors such as interest 
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices on 
the earnings or portfolio values. Market risk 
management compares the potential impact of 
changes in the risk factors on the Bank’s net income 
and equity against the levels it deems necessary 
to maintain profitability, remain solvent and comply 
with banking regulations.

Interest rate gap analysis

The Bank manages the impact of interest rate 
changes within self-imposed parameters set after 
careful consideration of a range of possible rate 
environments and business scenarios. These 
parameters in combination define the Bank’s market 

The Bank expects that not all of the contingent 
liabilities or commitments will be drawn before 

expiry of the commitments The amounts in the 
tables above have been compiled as follows:

Type of financial instrument Basis on which amounts are compiled

Financial assets and financial liabilities Undiscounted cash flows, which include estimated interest payments

Issued financial guarantee contracts, and unrecognized loan 
commitments

Earliest possible contract maturity. For issued financial guarantee contracts, the 
maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated to the earliest period in which the 
guarantee could be called
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risk tolerance.

Limits are used to control the Bank’s interest rate 
risk exposure within its risk tolerance. Risk limits 
are set by product and risk types. They are usually 
approved by ALCO and endorsed by the Board. 
Limits are sets for position taken, value at risk, stop 
loss and profit take as well as counter party risks. The 
overall risk appetite of the Bank, size, complexity 
and capital adequacy of the Bank, profitability of 
business/product areas, complexity of products, 
liquidity of specific markets and volatility of markets 
are considered while setting the limits.

The market risk is managed by the market risk 
management function under the Risk management 
department. The monitoring includes establishment 
and monitoring of treasury limit, rendering market 
intelligent reports and mark to market valuation of 
the Bank’s trading position.

Duration Gap analysis

Duration Gap Analysis compares the price sensitivity 
of the Bank’s total assets with the price sensitivity 
of its total liabilities to assess whether the market 
value of assets or liabilities changes more when 
rates change. Titan Trust Bank uses duration gap 
(DGAP) for managing its value of equity, recognizing 
the timing of all cash flows for every security on the 
statement of financial

Monitoring exposure limits and triggers

The Bank manages the impact of changes in market 
factors – equity prices, interest rates and currency 
rates within self-imposed limits and triggers set 
after careful consideration of a range of possible 
rate environments and business scenarios. These 
limits are used to control the Bank’s market risk 
exposures within its risk tolerance.

Risk Reporting

Market Risk Management Department ensures 
that the Bank maintains an accurate risk reporting 
framework that effectively and consistently 
communicate market risk information across the 
Bank. Market Risk Management use independently 
sourced data to generate reports, which provides 
the Board and Senior management with clear, 
concise and timely recommendations and 
supporting information needed to make decisions.

3.4.2 Exposure to market risk between trading 
and non-trading portfolios

The table below sets out the allocation of assets 
and liabilities subject to market risk between trading 
and non-trading portfolios.

31 December 2021
In thousands of Naira

Note Carrying amount Trading portfolios Non-trading portfolios

Assets subject to market risk
Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN 14 1,915,261 - 1,915,261
Financial assets at FVTPL 15 1,930,769 1,916,091 14,678
Assets pledged as collateral 16 16,262,048 - 16,262,048
Loans to banks 17 61,130,408 - 61,130,408
Loans and advances to customers 18 63,065,564 - 63,065,564
Investments securities 19 48,850,386 - 48,850,386
Other assets 24 22,494,602 - 22,494,602

215,649,038 1,916,091 213,732,947

Liabilities subject to market risk
Deposits from customers 25 182,382,857 - 182,382,857
Capitalized lease liability 27 30,096 - 30,096
Derivative Liability 29 97,054 - 97,054
Other Liabilities 26 27,266,884 - 27,266,884

209,776,891 209,776,891

Market risk measure
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3.4.3 Measurement of market risk

The Bank’s major measurement technique used to 
measure and control market risk is outlined below.

Non-trading book: Earnings at Risk

Market risk in the non-trading book emanates 
mainly from adverse movement in future net interest 
income, resulting from changes in interest rates. 
Analysis of this risk involves the breaking down of 
Rate Sensitive Assets (RSA) and Rate Sensitive 
Liabilities (RSL) into time buckets to determine 
the possible impact on Net Interest income if rates 
drop or increase. Interest rate risk in non- trading 
portfolios is measured with maturity/repricing gap 
analysis, Earnings At Risk and ratios analysis. The 
sensitivity of earnings to specified upward and 
downward instantaneous parallel 100 basis point 
shift in the yield curve, over one-year horizons 
under business-as-usual conditions assuming static 
portfolio indicates the potential risk.

3.4.4 Foreign exchange (FX) risk

Foreign exchange exposures arise because of 
balance sheet mismatches between foreign 
currency assets and foreign currency liabilities. 
These are mainly foreign currency loans and 
deposits, balances with foreign banks, customers’ 
FX transactions, and borrowings in foreign 
currencies. FX trading exposures are discretionary 
(intentional) and typically short term FX exposures 
resulting from treasury trades to profit from currency 

movements. They contribute to the Bank’s overall 
trading risk and are managed under the trading risk 
management framework.

The Bank’s foreign currency exposure is managed by 
ALCO. The primary objectives of the Bank’s foreign 
exchange risk management are to protect the Bank’s 
capital base and earnings from fluctuations caused 
by currency rates movements in excess of approved 
limits, and to ensure that our open position limit is 
managed within existing regulatory guidelines. The 
Central Bank of Nigeria assign NOP limits to banks 
as a percentage of their shareholders’ funds. These 
limits change from time to time based on how the 
regulator wants to affect the market. However, the 
Bank has an internal policy to further constraint 
the CBN assigned NOP limit by allowing traders an 
aggregate open position of 90% of the CBN limit.

The Bank trades and closes each day with either 
long or short positions within the approved internal 
limit. If for any reason the Bank anticipates that the 
net open limit might be breached, an anticipatory 
approval must be sought and obtained from the 
Managing Director and Executive Director with 
appropriate justification. Under no circumstance, 
however, shall the CBN limit be breached.

For the purpose of financial reporting, the Bank 
adopts NAFEX rates in translating its foreign 
currency denominated assets and liabilities as that 
is the most probable rate at which the assets and 
liabilities are expected to be realized and settled 
respectively.

The following shows the Bank’s structural foreign 
currency exposures for the period.

31 December 2020
In thousands of Naira

Note Carrying amount Trading portfolios Non-trading portfolios

Assets subject to market risk
Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN 14 2,987,043 - 2,987,043
Financial assets at FVTPL 15 2,210,277 2,200,240 10,037
Assets pledged as collateral 16 10,609,415 - 10,609,415
Loans to banks 17 25,627,834 - 25,627,834
Loans and advances to customers 18 38,742,372 - 38,742,372
Investments securities 19 23,914,999 - 23,914,999
Other assets 24 5,635,019 - 5,635,019

109,726,959 2,200,240 107,526,719

Liabilities subject to market risk
Deposits from customers 25 85,970,588 - 85,970,588
Capitalized lease liability 27 347,582 - 347,582
Other Liabilities 26 11,025,349 - 11,025,349
Borrowings 28 6,030,822 - 6,030,822

103,374,341 - 103,374,341
 

Market risk measure
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In thousands of Naira
NGN USD GBP EUR

Financial Assests
Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN 1,682,458 213,184 18,608 1,011
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,916,091 - - -
Assets pledged as collateral 16,262,048 - - -
Loans to banks 10,215,649 50,914,759 - -
Loans and advances to customers 27,867,292 35,193,663 - -
Investments securities 38,022,934 10,827,452 - -
Other assets 19,825,365 2,669,237 - -

Total 115,791,837 99,818,295 18,608 1,011

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 89,807,726 92,554,385 18,606 2,141
Capitalized lease liability 30,096 - - -
Other Liabilities 19,402,397 7,859,857 - 22
Derivative Liabilities 97,054 - - -

Total 109,337,273 100,414,242 18,606 2,163

Net Open Position 6,454,564 (595,947) 2 (1,152)

In thousands of Naira
NGN USD GBP EUR

Financial Assests
Cash and balances with central banks excluding 
mandatory deposit with CBN 2,899,925 181 25 2
Financial assets at FVTPL 2,210,277 - - -
Assets pledged as collateral 10,609,415 - - -
Loans to banks 10,675,552 39,078 - -
Loans and advances to customers 29,166,914 24,443 - -
Investments securities 19,195,108 11,790 - -
Other assets 5,629,616 2,072 - -

Total 80,386,807 77,564 25 2

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 51,679,675 85,620 25 2
Capitalized lease liability 347,582 - - -
Other Liabilities 13,469,249 3,136 - -

Total 65,496,506 88,756 25 2

Net Open Position 14,890,301 (11,192) - -

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

3.4.5 Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis

Due to the Bank’s foreign currency exposures, the 
Bank may be exposed to further losses in the event 
of a significant decline in the value of the Bank’s 
local currency (Nigerian Naira). This may occur in 
the event of a devaluation of the exchange rate of 
the Naira to the US Dollars in the official exchange 

market by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN). This 
will have a direct impact on the Nigerian Inter-bank 
Foreign exchange market (NAFEX), the market 
where the Bank obtains its translation rates for the 
US Dollar.

The losses which are likely to occur in the event 
of devaluation of the Naira will affect the reported 
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Foreign exchange risk sensitive analysis - 31 December 2020
Impact of percentage changes in foreign currency rates

Currency in thousands In Naira In USD
$1= N424.11

10% decrease in the 
value of Naira

$1= N382

20% decrease in 
the value of Naira

$1= N339

US Dollars (595,947) (1,405) 59,595 119,189
Pounds Sterling 2 - - -
Euros (1,152) (3) 115 230

(597,097) (1,408) 59,710 119,419
 

Currency in thousands In Naira In USD
$1= N424.11

10% decrease in the 
value of Naira

$1= N467

20% decrease in 
the value of Naira

$1= N509

US Dollars (595,947) (1,405) (59,595) (119,189)
Pounds Sterling 2 - - -
Euros (1,152) (3) (115) (230)

(597,097) (1,408) (59,710) (119,419)
 

Net Gain/(Loss) on decline 
of the value of Naira

Net Gain/(Loss) on decline 
of the value of Naira

Net Open Position

Net Open Position

equity in the following ways:

 • Retained earnings - increase or decrease in 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities held 
by Bank from changes in the value of the Naira 
(excluding financial assets measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI)) reported in the profit or loss

 • Fair value reserves - increase or decrease in the 
carrying amount of financial assets measured at 
FVOCI from changes in the value of the Naira 
reported directly in equity.

The table below sets out the impact on the Bank’s net 
open position as at 31 December 2021 in USDollars, 
Pounds Sterling, Euros and other currencies in the 
event of a 10% and 20% devaluation of the Naira in 
relation to other currencies.

Foreign exchange risk sensitive analysis - 31 
December 2021

Impact of percentage changes in foreign currency 
rates

Currency in thousands In Naira In USD
$1= 

10% decrease in the 
valueo f Naira

20%d ecrease in 
thev alue of Naira

US Dollars (11,192) (28) 1,119 2,238

(11,192) (28)

Currency in thousands In Naira In USD
$1= 

10% decrease in the 
valueo f Naira

20%d ecrease in 
thev alue of Naira

US Dollars (11,192) (28) (1,119 2,238)

(11,192) (28) (1,119 2,238)

NetG ain/(Loss) on decline 
of thev alue of Naira

NetG ain/(Loss) on decline 
of thev alue of Naira

NetO pen Position

NetO pen Position

1,119

)

)

(

(

2,238
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3.4.7 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The table below sets out the impact on net interest 
income of a 100 basis points parallel fall or rise in 
all yields. A parallel increase in yields by 100 basis 
points would lead to an increase in net interest 
income while a parallel falls in yields by 100 basis 
points would lead to a decline in net interest 
income. The interest rate sensitivities are based 
on simplified scenarios and assumptions, including 
that all positions will be retained and rolled over 
upon maturity. The figures represent the effect of 
movements in net interest income based on the 

100 basis point shift in interest rate and subject to 
the current interest rate exposures. However, the 
effect has not taken into account the possible risk 
management measures undertaken by the Bank to 
mitigate interest rate risk. In practice, ALCO seeks 
proactively to change the interest rate risk profile to
minimize losses and optimise net revenues. The 
projections also assume that interest rates on 
various maturities will move within similar ranges, 
and therefore do not reflect any potential effect on 
net interest income in the event that some interest 
rates may change and others remain unchanged.

Interest sensitivity analysis -
Impact of 100 basis points changes in rates over 
a one year period on profit or loss and equity

Time Band
In thousands of Naira

Size of Gap 100 basis points
decline in rates

100 basis points
increase in rates

<1 month (32,963,298) 316,086 (316,086)
1-3 months 13,227,393 (110,349) 110,349
3-12 months (28,009,621) 105,132 (105,132)

(47,745,526) 310,869 (310,869)
 

Time Band
In thousands of Naira

Size of Gap 100 basis points
decline in rates

100 basis points
increase in rates

<1 month 24,398,963 (233,963) 233,963
1-3 months 7,001,202 (58,407) 58,407
3-12 months (18,751,088) 70,381 (70,381)

12,649,077 (221,989) (221,989)
 

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Interest rate movements affect reported equity in 
the following ways:

 • Retained earnings - increases or decreases in 
net interest income and fair values of derivatives 
reported in profit or loss

 • Fair value reserves - inceases or decreases 
in fair values of FVOCI financial instruments 
reported directly in equity.

The table below sets out information on the 
exposure to fixed and variable interest instruments.
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3.4.8 Price sensitivity analysis on bonds and 
treasury bills

The table below shows the impact of likely movement 
in yields on the value of bonds and treasury bills. 
This relates to the positions of financial instruments 
measured at FVPTL and FVOCI. Since an increase 
in yields would lead to decline in market values of 

bonds and treasury bills, the analysis was carried 
out to show the likely impact of 100 basis points 
increase/(decrease) in market yields. The impact 
of financial instruments measured at FVTPL is on 
the income statement while the impact of financial 
instruments measured at FVOCI is on the statement
of other comprehensive income.

Exposure to fixed and variable interest rate risk

In thousands of Naira
Fixed Floating Total

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 
excluding mandatory deposit with CBN 1,915,261 - 1,915,261
Financial assets at FVTPL 2,410,476 - 2,410,476
Assets pledged as collateral 38,959,900 - 38,959,900
Loans to banks 61,130,408 - 61,130,408
Loans and advances to customers 63,431,542 - 63,431,542
Investments securities 105,697,671 - 105,697,671
Other assets (less prepayments) 22,232,975 - 22,232,975

295,778,233 - 295,778,233

Liabilities
Deposits from customers 182,382,857 - 182,382,857
Derivative Liabilities 97,054 - 97,054
Other Liabilities (Excluding ECL on financial 
guarantee contracts) 27,219,425 - 27,219,425

209,699,336 - 209,699,336
 

In thousands of Naira
Fixed Floating Total

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 
excluding mandatory deposit with CBN 2,987,043 - 2,987,043
Financial assets at FVTPL 10,037 2,204,317 2,214,354
Assets pledged as collateral 10,609,415 - 10,609,415
Loans to banks 25,627,834 - 25,627,834
Loans and advances to customers 38,952,136 - 38,952,136
Investments securities 23,915,717 - 23,915,717
Other assets (less prepayments) 5,667,251 - 5,667,251

107,769,433 2,204,317 109,973,750

Liabilities
Deposits from customers 50,668,267 35,732,243 86,400,510
Borrowings 6,045,925 - 6,045,925

56,714,192 35,732,243 92,446,435
 

31 December 2021

31 December 2020
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3.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value
IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques 
based on whether the inputs to those valuation 
techniques are observable or unobservable. 
Observable input reflect market data obtained 
from independent sources; unobservable inputs 
reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. These two 
types of inputs have created the following fair value 
hierarchy:

 • Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This 
level includes listed equity securities and debt 
instruments on exchanges.

 • Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices). This category includes instruments 
valued using: quoted market prices in active 
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices 

for identical or similar instruments in markets 
that are considered less than active; or other 
valuation techniques in which all significant 
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from 
market data.

 • Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that 
are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs), This level includes 
equity investments and debt instruments with 
significant unobservable components.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market 
data when available. The Bank considers relevant 
and observable market prices in its
valuations where possible.

The table below shows the analysis financial 
instruments measured at fair value at the end of 
each reporting period, by the level in the fair value 
hierachy into which the fair value measurement is 
categorised:

31 December 2021 Carrying Value Impact of 100 basis points 
decrease in yields

Impact of 100 basis points 
increase in yields

Financial assets at FVTPL 1,930,769 242 (313)
Financial assets at FVOCI 34,130,539 258,757 (127,565)

36,061,308 258,999 (127,878)
 

31 December 2020 Carrying Value Impact of 100 basis points 
decrease in yields

Impact of 100 basis points 
increase in yields

Financial assets at FVTPL 2,210,277 - -
Financial assets at FVOCI 20,533,452 199,628 (122,288)

22,743,729 199,628 (122,288)
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(b) Fair valuation methods and assumptions

In thousands of Naira
31 December 2021

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL - Debt 
securities 15 1,916,091 - - 1,916,091
Financial assets at FVOCI
- Investment securities - debt 19 34,130,539 - - 34,130,539

Total assets 36,046,630 - - 36,046,630
 

In thousands of Naira
31 December 2020

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL - Debt 
securities 15 2,210,277 - - 2,210,277
Financial assets at FVOCI
- Investment securities - debt 19 20,533,452 - - 20,533,452

Total assets 22,743,729 - - 22,743,729
 

Methodology Key assumptions

Trading securities
Treasury bills and 
Government Bonds

Trading securities as well as Investment securities measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income(FVOCI) are measured at fair value 
using the following methods:

Level 1
For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of 
fair values is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. 
This includes quoted debt instruments on major exchanges (for example 
NSE) and broker quotes from the Nigerian Financial Markets Dealer 
Association. These are classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierachy.

Level 2
Market Comparison/Discounted Cash flow: The fair value is estimated 
considering:

(i) current or recent quoted prices for identical securities in markets that 
are not active

(ii) a net present value calculated using discount rates derived from 
quoted yields of securities with similar maturity and credit rating that are 
traded in active markets, adjusted by an illiquidity factor.

The prices quoted on the major
exchanges are representative of 
an active market and represent 
actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on an arm’s 
length basis.
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(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair 
value
The following table summarises the carrying 

amounts and fair values of those financial assets and 
liabilities not presented on the Bank’s statement of 
financial position at their fair value:

In thousands of Naira
31 December 2021

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value

Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks 28,031,201 - 28,031,201 - 28,031,201

- Cash in hand 713,005 - 713,005 - 713,005
- Balances with central banks other than mandatory 
reserve deposits 1,202,256 - 1,202,256 - 1,202,256
- Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks 26,115,940 - 26,115,940 - 26,115,940

Loans to banks 106,889,623 - 106,889,623 - 106,889,623

- Current balances with banks within Nigeria 53,462,820 - 53,462,820 - 53,462,820
- Currrent balances with banks outside Nigeria 2,547,815 - 2,547,815 - 2,547,815
- Placements with banks and discount houses 50,878,988 - 50,878,988 - 50,878,988

Loans and advances to customers 63,431,542 - 63,431,542 63,431,542

- Overdrafts 5,521,452 - - 5,521,452 5,521,452
- Term loans 57,833,539 - - 57,833,539 57,833,539
- Staff loans 76,551 - - 76,551 76,551

Asset pledged as collateral 16,262,048 16,262,048 - - 16,262,048

Other assets 22,055,663 - - 22,055,663 22,055,663

Investment securities 14,719,847 3,426,145 - - 3,426,145

- Measured at amortised cost 14,719,847 3,426,145 - - 3,426,145

Total financial assets 251,389,924 19,688,193 134,920,824 85,487,205 240,096,222

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 182,382,857 - - 182,382,857 182,382,857

- Current 61,295,457 - - 61,295,457 61,295,457
- Savings 2,102,559 - - 2,102,559 2,102,559
- Term 107,429,039 - - 107,429,039 107,429,039
- Domiciliary 11,555,802 - - 11,555,802 11,555,802

Deposits from Banks - - - - -
Items in the course of collection - - - - -

Other liabilities 27,266,884 - 27,266,884 - 27,266,884

Total financial liabilities 209,649,741 - 27,266,884 182,382,857 235,125,492

Financial guarantee contracts 25,475,751 - 25,475,751 - 25,475,751

Performance bonds and guarantees 5,188,550 - 5,188,550 - 5,188,550

Unconfirmed and unfunded Letters of Credit 20,287,201 - 20,287,201 - 20,287,201
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In thousands of Naira
31 December 2020

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value

Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks 25,508,748 - 25,508,748 - 25,508,748

- Cash in hand 303,324 - 303,324 - 303,324
- Balances with central banks other than mandatory 
reserve deposits 2,683,719 - 2,683,719 - 2,683,719
- Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks 22,521,705 - 22,521,705 - 22,521,705

Loans to banks 47,262,177 - 47,262,177 - 47,262,177

- Current balances with banks within Nigeria 23,635,296 - 23,635,296 - 23,635,296
- Currrent balances with banks outside Nigeria 3,760,390 - 3,760,390 - 3,760,390
- Placements with banks and discount houses 19,866,491 - 19,866,491 - 19,866,491

Loans and advances to customers 38,742,372 - - 38,742,372 38,742,372

4,079,187 - - 4,079,187 4,079,187
- Term loans 34,635,685 - - 34,635,685 34,635,685

27,500 - - 27,500 27,500

Asset pledged as collateral 10,609,415 10,609,415 - - 10,609,415

Other assets 5,635,019 - 5,635,019 - 5,635,019

Investment securities 3,381,547 3,426,145 - 38,742,372 3,426,145

- Measured at amortised cost 3,381,547 3,426,145 - - 3,426,145

Total financial assets 131,139,278 14,060,432 78,405,944 38,742,372 127,782,603

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 85,970,588 - - 85,970,588 85,970,588

- Current 32,862,541 - - 32,862,541 32,862,541
- Savings 878,881 - - 878,881 878,881
- Term 50,238,344 - - 50,238,344 50,238,344
- Domiciliary 1,990,822 - - 1,990,822 1,990,822

Other liabilities 11,025,349 - 11,025,349 - 11,025,349

Total financial liabilities 96,995,937 - 40,578,564 115,523,803 126,549,152

Financial guarantee contracts 29,553,215 - 29,553,215 29,553,215 29,553,215

Performance bonds and guarantees 4,925,254 - - 4,925,254 4,925,254

24,627,961 - - 24,627,961 24,627,961
 

11,025,349

10,634,28710,634,287

Total financial assets 131,139,278 14,060,432 78,405,944 38,742,372 127,782,603
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3.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
(cont’d)

i. Cash and balances with central banks include 
cash and restricted and non - restricted 
deposits with Central Bank of Nigeria. The 
carrying amount of balances with other banks is 
a reasonable approximation of fair value which 
is the amount receivable on demand.

ii. (ii) Loans to banks includes balances with other 
banks within and outside Nigeria and short term 
placements.

• The carrying amount of balances with other 
banks is a reasonable approximation of fair value 
which is the amount receivable on demand.

• The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing 
placement is based on discounted cash flows 
using prevailing money-market interest rates for 
the debts. The carrying amount represents the 
fair value which is receivable on maturity.

iii. Loans and advances to customers are net of 
charges for impairment. The estimated fair value 
of loans and advances represents the market 
value of the loans, arrived at by recalculating 
the carrying amount of the loans using the 
estimated market rate for the various loan types

iv. Deposits from banks and customers

• The estimated fair value of deposits, with no 
stated maturity, is the amount repayable on 
demand.

• The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing 
deposits not quoted in an active market is based 
on discounted cash flows using interest rates 
for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

v. Carrying amounts of all other financial assets 
and liabilities are reasonable approximation of 
their fair values which are payable on demand.

vi. Off-balance sheet financial instruments

vii. The estimated fair values of the off-balance 
sheet financial instruments are based on 
markets prices for similar facilities. When 
this information is not available, fair value is 
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis.

3.6 Capital management

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, 

which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the 
face of statement of financial position, are:

(a) To comply with the capital requirements set by 
the regulators of the banking markets where the 
entities within the Bank operate;

(b) To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as 
a going concern so that it can continue to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and;

(c) To maintain a strong capital base to support the 
development of its business.

Titan Trust Bank maintains capital as a cushion 
towards the risk of loss in value of exposure, 
businesses, etc., to protect the interest of stake 
holders, more particularly, depositors. The Bank 
has a comprehensive system in place for assessing 
capital requirements based on current and future 
business activities and monitoring same on an 
ongoing basis. Beyond supervisory concern and 
disclosure issues, the Bank considers that capital 
availability is the central theme in the whole 
process, thus its computation is applied to policy, 
strategy and business level composition.
In line with Central Bank of Nigeria guidelines, 
the bank has adopted the following approaches 
for implementation of Base II Capital Adequacy 
Framework:

4. The Bank has adopted Standardized Approach for 
credit risk. Under this approach, the Bank applies 
the risk weights issued by the CBN for the various 
categories of exposures.

5. The market risk capital charge arises from interest 
rate risk in the trading book and foreign exchange 
risk. The Bank has adopted the standardized 
approach for the computation of Market Risk capital 
charge.

6. The Bank adopted the Basic Indicator Approach 
for determining capital charge for operational risk. 
This was estimated as 15% of average gross annual 
income for the previous three financial years.

The CBN requires each bank to: (a) hold the minimum 
level of the regulatory capital of N25 billion and (b) 
maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-
weighted asset at or above the minimum of 10%. 
In addition, those individual banking subsidiaries 
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or similar financial institutions not incorporated in 
Nigeria are directly regulated and supervised by 
their local banking supervisor, which may differ 
from country to country.

The Bank’s regulatory capital as managed by its 
Financial Control and Treasury units is divided into 
two tiers:

 • Tier 1 capital: share capital, retained earnings 
and reserves created by appropriations of 
retained earnings. The book value of goodwill 
and deferred tax is deducted in arriving at Tier 
1 capital; and

 • Tier 2 capital: preference shares, qualifying 
debt stock, fair value reserves, fixed assets 
revaluation reserves, foreign currency 
revaluation reserves, hybrid instruments, 
convertible bonds and subordinated debts with 
original tenor of 5 years and above.

Credit risk exposures

Credit risk expsoure comprises on-balance sheet, 
off balance sheet and regulatory risk exposures and 
is calculated by applying the required regulatory 
risk weighting adjustment on the on-balance sheet 
and off-balance sheet exposures. The regulatory 
risk reserve is deducted from the sum of the risk-
adjusted on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet 
exposures to arrive at the total on balance sheet 
and off balance sheet exposures for the purpose of 
capital adequacy computation.

Strategy Risk

Strategy risk is the risk of current or prospective 
impact on the Bank’s earnings, capital, reputation 
or standing arising from the changes in the 
operating environment and from adverse strategic 
decisions, improper implementation of decisions, 
or lack of responsiveness to industry, economic 
or technological changes. It is a function of 
the compatibility of the Bank’s strategic goals, 
strategies developed to achieve these goals, the 
resources deployed to meet these goals, and the 
quality of the implementation of the strategic plan.
The Bank strategic risk management focus is to 
proactively identify, understand, promptly analyse 
and appropriately manage strategic risks that could 
affect the achievement of the Bank’s strategic 

intent. In the process the Bank:

(a) Ensures that exposures reflect strategic 
goals that are not overly aggressive and are also 
compatible with developed business strategies.

(b) Avoids products, markets and business for 
which it cannot objectively measure and manage 
their associated risk; and

(c) Strives to maintain a balance between risk/
opportunities and revenue consideration within the 
Bank’s risk appetite. Thus, risk- related issues are 
considered in all business decisions.

The Board of directors has the ultimate 
responsibility for establishing and approving the 
Bank’s strategy in an integrated manner that aligns 
strategies, goals, tactics and resources. The Board 
members participate in the Bank’s Annual Strategy 
Session towards the review of the Strategic Plan. 
When approved, such plans are cascaded to the 
various business units/subsidiaries for creating 
business unit/subsidiary plans and budgets. It is 
the responsibilities of the Executive Management 
Committee to assist the Board in developing and 
formulating strategies to meet the Bank’s strategic 
goals and objectives, and ensuring adequate 
implementation of the Bank’s strategic plan as 
approved by the Board.

The Bank Audit and Risk Committee is responsible 
for establishing a suitable reporting system which 
will ensure timely monitoring of strategic risk 
exposures, and undertaking measures for the 
elimination of any possible problems pertaining to 
internal and external factors. The strategic planning 
group has the primary responsibility for supporting 
the Board and Senior Management in managing 
the Bank’s strategic risk and facilitating change 
in corporate strategic plan that contribute to the 
Bank’s organizational development and continuous 
improvement.
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Operational risk exposure

The Bank determines its operational risk exposure 
using the basic indicator approach. The basic 
indicator approach for operational risk entails holding 
capital for operational risk equal to a 3-year average 
of a fixed percentage of gross annual operating 
income. The Bank adopts a fixed percentage of 15 
in calculating its operational risk exposure.

The table below summarises the composition of 
regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank for the 
year ended 31 December 2021. During those years, 
the Bank complied with the externally imposed 
capital requirements.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and 
systems or from external events.

Operational risk arise from the execution of an 
organization’s business functions.

Operational risk is the risk that occurs as a result of 
doing business and includes: technology failures, 
breaches in internal controls, frauds, unforeseen 
catastrophes, or other operational problems which 
may result in unexpected losses.

Operational risks exist in all products and business 
activities.

Business units and support functions in the Bank 
have primary responsibility and accountability for 
the management of operational risks in their units. 
The various units and functions are supported by an 
Risk Management Unit which reports to the Board 
Audit and Risk Committee through the Head of Risk 
Management, while Internal Audit a performs an 
independent assessment of the implementation of 
the Bank’s operational risk management framework.

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Tier 1 capital
Share capital 30 29,204,987 29,204,987
Share premium 31 - -
Statutory reserves 31 2,385,147 1,063,874
SMEIS reserve 31 - -
Other reserve 31 (69,247) 607,923
Retained earnings 31 4,868,868 2,062,751

Qualifying Tier 1 Capital 36,389,755 32,939,535

Less: intangible assets 22 (876,371) (1,026,821)
           deferred tax assets 13 (50,472) (50,472)

Total qualifying Tier 1 capital 35,462,912 31,862,242

Tier 2 capital
Other comprehensive income 31 (954,018) 109,059
Total qualifying Tier 2 capital (954,018) 109,059

Total regulatory capital 34,508,894 31,971,301

Risk-weighted assets:
Credit Risk
      On-balance sheet 82,669,024 54,504,671
      Off-balance sheet 6,666,981 9,850,846
      Regulatory risk reserves - -

Total on balance sheet assets and off balance 
sheet exposures 89,336,005 64,355,517

Operational risk exposures 8,894,704 8,894,704
Market risk exposures 1,227,310 532,949

Total risk-weighted assets 99,458,019 73,783,170

Risk-weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 34.70% 43.33%
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4  Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management 
has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of the Bank’s accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptons are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised 
prospectively.

Critical accounting judgments in applying the 
Bank’s accounting policies
There were no critical accounting judgments made 
in applying the Bank’s accounting policies.
Assumptions and estimation uncertainty 
Management discusses with the Board of Directors 
the development, selection and disclosure 
of the Bank’s critical accounting policies and 
their application, as well as assumptions made 
relating to estimation uncertainties. Information 
about assumptions, estimation and estimation 
uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment within the next financial year 
and about critical judgment in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statement is 
disclosed below:

(a) Impairment losses on loans and advances

(i) Determination of default prior to the 
measurement of expected credit loss
The Bank considers an objective evidence of 
default for the purpose of determining its stage 
classification for impairment assessment. It 
considers all default event terms no matter if it is 
obligatory or facultative to constitute objective 
evidence of impairment in accordance to IFRS 9.
All financial assets with objective evidence of 
impairment will be further referred to as defaulted (or 
in default status). Exposure is considered defaulted, 
if the obligatory payments on the exposure have 
been passed due for at least 90 days.

An exposure is considered to be individually 
significant if the total amount exceeds a significance 
threshold expressed in percentage as of reporting 
date.

Significant thresholds are established and reviewed 
at regular intervals. Significant threshold can be 
determined separately for each risk portfolio or for 

groups of porfolios. However exposures considered 
by the Bank as having specific risk, are deemed as 
individually significant exposures and have to be 
assessed individually.

An exposure is comprised of the following 
components as at the reporting date:

i) Overdue principal receivable
ii) Undue principal receivable
iii) Overdue contract interest receivable
iv) Undue accrued interest
v) Other outstanding exposure
vi) Unconditional and conditional off-balance sheet 
exposure, in particular available limit
vii) Unamortized discount or premium.

(ii) Measurement of the expected credit loss 
allowance for financial assets
The measurement of the expected credit loss 
allowance for financial assets measured at amortised 
cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of 
complex models and significant assumptions about 
future economic conditions and credit behaviour 
(e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the 
resulting losses).

Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and 
estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is 
further detailed in note 3.2.4 to 3.2.10.

A number of significant judgements are also 
required in applying the accounting requirements 
for measuring ECL, such as:

 • Determining criteria for significant increase in 
credit risk;

 • Determining the credit risk grades;

 • Generating the term structure of the probability 
of default;

 • Determining whether credit risk has increased 
significantly;

 • Incorporation of forward-looking information 
into the measurement of ECL;

 • Establishing groups of similar financial assets 
for the purposes of measuring ECL

 • Selection and approval of models used to 
measure ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and 
estimates made by the Bank in the above areas is 
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set out in note 3.2.4 to 3.2.10.

(iii) Uncertainty over income tax treatments
The Finance Act 2021 was signed into law on 31 
December 2021 and took effect from 1 January 
2022. It introduces changes to the Capital gains 
tax, education tax and a intoduction of a science 
and engineering levy of 0.25% of Profit before 
tax. It also introduces aan imposition of excise duty 
at N10 per litre on Noalcoholic, carbonated and 
sweetedned beverages.

The Finance Act, 2021 clarifies the application of 
the amendment of the minimum tax rate from 0.5% 
to 0.25% of company turnover which was earlier 
introduced in the finance act 2020. The reduction 
will apply to any two accounting periods between 
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2021 as may 
be chosen by the taxpayer, and companies with 
turnover of less than NGN25 million in a year of 

assessment will be exempted from the minimum 
tax. Also, in the latest ammendment of the Act, 
there was a reduction of the timeline for payment of 
Tertiary Education Tax (TET) from 60 to 30 days and 
an increase in the rate from 2% to 2.5%

The Directors have assessed that there is no 
uncertainty over income tax treatments arising from 
the Finance Act 2021.

5. Classification of financial assets and financial 
liabilities

See accounting policies in Note 2.5(c)

The table below provides a reconciliation between 
line items in the statement of financial position and 
categories of financial instrument
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6.  Interest income

7.  Interest expense

Total Interest Income on stage 3 loans is nil.

Total interest expense reported above relate to financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss and are 
calculated using effective interest method.

8.  Impairment loss/(write back) on financial and 
non-financial instruments

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Interest income

Interest income calculated using effective 
interest method:

Loans and advances to customers 4,348,637 1,629,512
Loans to banks 917,923 552,688
Investments securities
 - Asset pledged as collateral 1,018,616 -
 - At amortised cost 926,382 1,763,894
 - At FVOCI 1,782,513 1,001,058

Other Interest income:
 - At FVTPL 378,611 -

Total interest income 9,372,682 4,947,152
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Impairment charge on financial assets

Loans and advances (see note 18.1) 156,214 209,546
Allowance for impairment on other assets - -
Loans to banks 27,602 6,038

Investments securities
 - FVOCI 78,611 (15,899)
 - Amortised Cost 13,770 (539)
Assets pledged as collateral 26,326 (855)

Other financial assets - -

Total impairment charge on financial 
instruments 302,523 198,291

Impairment charge on non-financial assets
Off balance sheet impairment (89,844) 137,301

Total impairment charge 212,679 335,592
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Deposit from customers 2,020,786 1,273,487
Deposit from banks 133,016 81,667
Borrowings 1,795,020 96,051
Interest on capitalized lease liability 12,869 47,199

Total interest expense 3,961,691 1,498,404
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9.  Net fee and commission income

10.  Net trading income

(a) Fee and commission expense

11.  Personnel expenses

(a) Contributions to defined contribution plans 
include the Bank’s contribution of 10% of each 
employee’s basic salary, rent and transport 
allowances to the employee’s defined contribution 
plans during the period in line with the Pension 
Reforms Act 2014. As at the reporting date, the Bank 

had settled all liabilities from employees’ defined 
contribution scheme.

(b) Other personnel benefits include monthly 
amortisation of Prepaid staff benefit.

The net fee and commission income above does not include any amounts included in determining the effective interest rate 
on financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss

Net trading income on foreign exchange and financial assets held for trading includes the gains and losses arising both on the 
purchase and sale of trading instruments and from changes in fair value

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Service fee and charges 312,234 31,890
Card fees and charges 655 1,818
Letters of credit commission 1,632,721 878,396
Account maintenance fee 216,587 78,814
Funds transfer commission 134,802 19,306
Short term processing fees 97,551 15,862

Total fee and commission income 2,394,550 1,026,086

Fee and commission expense (see (a) below) (193,771) (51,775)

Net fee and commission income 2,200,779 974,311
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Card expense 190,767 51,775
ATM fees 1,834 -
Bank charges 1,114 -
Other fee expenses 56 -

Total fee and commission expense 193,771 51,775
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Foreign exchange income 1,014,512 482,350
Fair value gain/(loss) (589,151) (58,233)
Financial assets FVPTL 1,432,339 2,160,895

Net trading income 1,857,700 2,585,012

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Wages and salaries 1,297,082 1,018,185
Contributions to defined contribution plans (see (a) below) 28,029 26,827
Other personnel benefits (see (b) below) 3,969 5,788

1,329,080 1,050,800
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12.  Other operating expenses

13.  Taxation

** This amount comprise regulatory charge of N500 million for police equipment fund 
and N79.8 million for police station renovation.

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

General administrative expenses 122,153 478,474
Advertising and promotion expenses 25,419 28,738
Contributions and Donations 25,350 50,250
I.T.F levy 11,848 10,492
Medical expenses 1,321 963
Office stationery and supplies 23,214 17,519
Service staff salary 57,687 43,893
Information technology 452,203 395,281
Insurance expense 61,745 39,101
Motor vehicle running expenses 13,064 7,583
Training, research & development 35,951 15,138
NDIC premium 302,662 32,284
Consultancy 112,694 291,040
Bank charges 560,700 401,769
Transport 10,111 4,224
Legal charges 5,388 14,741
Security and power 61,834 40,400
Professional fees 1,554 1,566
Subscription 91,686 111,424
Directors fees and emoluments 57,840 46,703
Auditor’s remuneration 17,000 12,000
Other expenses** 583,528 -

2,634,952 2,043,583
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Current income tax expense
Corporate income tax - -
Tertiary education tax 12,683 -
Nigerian Police Trust Fund levy 224 147
NITDA levy 44,730 29,018
NASENI levy 11,183 -

68,820 29,165

Deferred tax expense
Deferred tax credit - -
Total income tax 68,820 29,165

Total tax expense 68,820 29,165

The movement in the current income tax 
liability is as follows:

Balance, beginning of period 29,195 5,972
Tax paid (29,019) (5,942)
Current income tax expense 68,820 29,165

Balance, end of period 68,996 29,195
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate

14.  Cash and balances with central banks

15.  Financial assets at FVTPL

16. Assets pledged as collateral

The assets are pledged to third parties as collateral 
for which the counterparty has received the right 
to sell or de-pledge assets if the Bank defaults 

on agreed terms. These assets are measured at 
amortized cost. The nature and carrying amounts of 
the assets pledged as collaterals are as follows:

In thousands of Naira 31 December 
2021

31 December 
2020

Profit before income tax 4,473,057 - 2,930,768
Adjustment for NITDA levy (44,730) - (29,018)

4,428,327 - 2,901,750

Income tax using the domestic corporation tax rate 30% 1,328,498 30% 870,525
Non-deductible expenses 4% 161,928 1% 26,473
NITDA levy 1% 44,730 1% 29,018
Nigerian police trust fund levy - 221 -% 147
NASENI Levy - 11,183 -% -
Tertiary Education Tax - 12,683 -% -
Tax exempt income -32% (1,411,522) -51% (1,477,578)
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences -2% (78,901) 20% 580,580

1% 68,820 1% 29,165
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Corporate Euro bond 1,916,091 2,200,240

Financial Assets at FVTPL 1,916,091 2,200,240

Derivative Asset 14,678 10,037

1,930,769 2,210,277

Current 14,678 10,037
Non-current 1,916,091 2,200,240

1,930,769 2,210,277
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Cash on hand 713,005 303,324
Balances with the Central Bank other than mandatory deposits 191,385 2,683,719
Short term promissory notes 1,010,871 -

Total balance for cash flow statements (Note 33) 1,915,261 2,987,043

Mandatory reserve deposits with the Central Bank (See note 
(a) below) 26,115,940 22,521,705

Total cash and balances with the Central Bank 28,031,201 25,508,748
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17.  Loans to banks

18.  Loans and advances to customers

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Current balances with banks outside Nigeria 2,547,815 3,760,390
Placements with banks and discount houses outside Nigeria 50,915,005 19,874,906

53,462,820 23,635,296

Current balances with banks within Nigeria 2,043 953
Placements with banks and discount house within Nigeria 7,701,562 2,000,000

7,703,605 2,000,953

Impairment allowance (36,017) (8,415)

61,130,408 25,627,834

Current 61,130,408 25,627,834
Non-current - -

61,130,408 25,627,834
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Treasury bills 1,688,766 4,517,142
FGN Bonds 14,599,608 6,092,273
Impairment Allowance (26,326) -

16,262,048 10,609,415

Current 1,688,766 10,609,415
Non-current 14,573,282 -

16,262,048 10,609,415
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Overdrafts 5,521,452 4,176,204
Term loans 57,833,539 34,748,419
Staff loans 76,551 27,513

Gross loans and advances to customers 63,431,542 38,952,136

Less: Allowance for impairment (365,978) (209,764)

63,065,564 38,742,372

Current 24,014,931 4,176,204
Non-current 39,050,633 34,566,168

63,065,564 38,742,372
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18.1  Reconciliation of impairment allowance on loans and advances to customers:

19.  Investment securities

(a) ECL allowance on loans and advances to customers are analysed as follows:

In thousands of Naira Gross amount ECL allowance Carrying amount

Overdrafts 5,521,452 (72,253) 5,449,199
Term loans 57,833,539 (288,005) 57,545,534
Staff loans 76,551 (5,720) 70,831

63,431,542 (365,978) 63,065,564
 

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

(a) Investment securities at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

Debt securities
Treasury bills 5,955,489 2,616,515
Government bonds 27,805,146 10,776,330
Promisory Notes 369,904 7,140,607

34,130,539 20,533,452

Impairment allowance - -

Net debt securities at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 34,130,539 20,533,452
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(b) Investment securities at amortised cost

(c) Movement in investment securities

(d) Movement in investment securities

The amount of ECL on investments measured at FVOCI is N78,611,000 
for the year ended 31 December 2021, hence, the fair value changes 

including the ECL amount reporting in the statement of other 
comprehensive income is N954,018,000

The amount of ECL on investments measured at FVOCI is N15,899,000 
for the year ended 31 December 2020, hence, the fair value changes 

including the ECL amount reporting in the statement of other 
comprehensive income is N109,059,000.

In thousands of Naira Debt Securities at fair 
value through other 

comprehensive income

Debt securities at
amortised cost

Total

At 1 January 2021 (Gross) 20,533,452 3,381,547 23,914,999
Additions 44,258,600 14,364,783 58,623,383
Disposals/Redemptions (32,331,839) (3,445,908) (35,777,747)
(Gains)/loss from changes in fair value 
recognised in other comprehensive income 1,032,629 - 1,032,629
Interest accrued 637,697 433,912 1,071,609

At 31 December 2021 (Gross) 34,130,539 14,734,334 48,864,873

ECL allowance - (14,487) (14,487)

At 31 December 2021 (Net) 34,130,539 14,719,847 48,850,386
 

In thousands of Naira Debt Securities at fair 
value through other 

comprehensive income

Debt securities at
amortised cost

Total

At 1 January 2020 (Gross) 19,792,081 6,268,556 26,060,637
Additions 16,946,279 3,355,094 20,301,373
Disposals/Redemptions (16,453,497) (6,447,336) (22,900,833)
(Gains)/loss from changes in fair value 
recognised in other comprehensive income (124,958) - (124,958)
Interest accrued 373,547 205,951 579,498

At 31 December 2020 (Gross) 20,533,452 3,382,265 23,915,717

ECL allowance - (718) (718)

At 31 December 2020 (Net) 20,533,452 3,381,547 23,914,999
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

(b) Investment securities at amortised cost
Treasury bills 352,652 762,667
Government bonds 6,255,223 2,619,598
Promisory Notes 8,126,459 -

14,734,334 3,382,265

Impairment allowance (14,487) (718)
Net debt securities at amortised cost 14,719,847 3,381,547

Total investment securities 48,850,386 23,914,999

Current 21,045,240 13,138,669
Non-current 27,805,146 10,776,330

48,850,386 23,914,999
 



TITAN TRUST BANK LTD |  ANNUAL REPORT |  2021 145

In
 th

ou
sa

nd
s 

of
 N

ai
ra

 
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1 
Le

as
eh

ol
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Fu
rn

itu
re

an
d 

fit
tin

gs
O

ffi
ce

eq
ui

pm
en

t
Co

m
pu

te
r

eq
ui

pm
en

t
M

ot
or

ve
hi

cl
es

Ca
pi

ta
l

w
or

k 
in

pr
og

re
ss

Le
as

eh
ol

d
La

nd
 a

nd
Bu

ild
in

g

To
ta

l

Co
st

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
21

82
9,

41
9

89
,7

61
33

1,8
14

18
4,

95
0

46
5,

39
3

82
5,

72
0

-
2,

72
7,0

57
Ad

di
tio

ns
19

4,
99

4
65

,5
45

32
2,

56
0

59
,4

55
14

2,
23

3
14

4,
75

9
10

5,
37

8
1,0

34
,9

24
Re

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n
-

-
72

0
-

-
(1

95
,7

20
)

19
5,

00
0

-
W

rit
te

n 
O

ff
-

-
(9

1)
-

-
-

-
(9

1)
Di

sp
os

al
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1
1,0

24
,4

13
15

5,
30

6
65

5,
00

4
24

4,
40

5
60

7,6
26

77
4,

75
9

30
0,

37
8

3,
76

1,
89

0

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
21

11
3,

23
5

16
,6

36
51

,9
34

56
,7

76
11

7,8
88

-
-

35
6,

46
9

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d

12
2,

81
5

22
,5

73
90

,11
6

57
,6

89
10

6,
88

2
-

3,
45

4
40

3,
52

9
Di

sp
os

al
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
W

rit
te

n 
O

ff
-

-
(3

6)
-

-
-

-
(3

6)

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1
23

6,
05

0
39

,2
09

14
2,

01
7

11
4,

46
5

22
4,

77
0

-
3,

45
4

75
9,

96
2

N
et

 B
oo

k 
Va

lu
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1
78

8,
36

3
11

6,
09

7
51

2,
98

7
12

9,
94

0
38

2,
85

6
77

4,
75

9
29

6,
92

4
3,

00
1,9

26

N
et

 B
oo

k 
Va

lu
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

0
71

6,
18

4
73

,12
5

27
9,

88
0

12
8,

17
4

34
7,5

05
82

5,
72

0
-

2,
37

0,
58

8

In
 th

ou
sa

nd
s 

of
 N

ai
ra

 
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

0 
Le

as
eh

ol
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Fu
rn

itu
re

an
d 

fit
tin

gs
O

ffi
ce

eq
ui

pm
en

t
Co

m
pu

te
r

eq
ui

pm
en

t
M

ot
or

ve
hi

cl
es

Ca
pi

ta
l

w
or

k 
in

pr
og

re
ss

Le
as

eh
ol

d
La

nd
 a

nd
Bu

ild
in

g

To
ta

l

Co
st

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
20

39
5,

87
5

34
,8

67
12

5,
58

3
17

1,3
50

31
8,

63
3

11
7,7

00
-

1,1
64

,0
08

Ad
di

tio
ns

43
3,

54
4

58
,3

34
20

6,
05

6
13

,9
65

18
0,

36
0

82
5,

72
0

-
1,7

17
,9

79
Re

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
to

 R
O

U
-

-
17

5
-

-
(1

17
,7

00
)

-
(1

17
,5

25
)

As
se

t D
is

po
sa

ls
-

(3
,4

41
)

-
(3

64
)

(3
3,

60
0)

-
-

(3
7,4

05
)

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

0
82

9,
41

9
89

,7
61

33
1,

81
4

18
4,

95
0

46
5,

39
3

82
5,

72
0

-
2,

72
7,0

57

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
20

18
,8

54
4,

42
4

13
,3

76
12

,4
01

37
,5

16
-

-
86

,5
71

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d

94
,3

81
12

,6
71

38
,5

58
44

,4
43

85
,4

11
-

-
27

5,
46

4
Di

sp
os

al
-

(4
59

)
-

(6
8)

(5
,0

40
)

-
-

(5
,5

67
)

Ba
la

nc
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

0
11

3,
23

5
16

,6
36

51
,9

34
56

,7
76

11
7,8

88
-

-
35

6,
46

8

N
et

 B
oo

k 
Va

lu
e 

at
 3

1 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

0
71

6,
18

4
73

,12
5

27
9,

88
0

12
8,

17
4

34
7,5

05
82

5,
72

0
-

2,
37

0,
58

8

20 Property and equipment

a. Reconciliation of carrying amount
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21.  Right of Use Asset

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets relate to leased office premises and is classified as a non-current asset.

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Cost
Balance at beginning 719,342 515,612
Additions 187,315 86,030
Reclassification from PPE - 117,700
Disposals - -

Balance as at reporting date 906,657 719,342

Depreciation
Balance at beginning 212,931 94,529
Charge for the period 151,831 118,402
Disposals - -

Balance as at reporting date 364,762 212,931

Carrying amounts 541,895 506,411
 

b. All property and equipment are non-current.

c. None of the Bank’s assets were financed from 
borrowings, consequently no borrowing costs 
have been capitalized as part of assets (31 
December 2020: Nil).

d. There were no impairment losses on any class 
of property and equipment during the period, 
(31 December 2020: Nil).

e. There are no liens or encumbrances on the 
Bank’s assets as at year end (31 December 

2020: Nil)

f. The Bank does not depreciate Land in line with 
the applicable standard

g. There were no contractual commitments for the 
acquisition of property and equipment as at 31 
December 2021, (31 December 2020: Nil)
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22.  Intangible assets

Assets under construction represent the software 
acquired by the Bank, which are still under the 
implementation stage.

These are not amortised until the implementation is 
completed and the asset is available for use.

All intangible assets are non-current. All intangible 
assets of the Bank have finite useful life and are 
amortised over five years.

The Bank does not have internally generated assets.

23 Deferred taxation

(a) Deferred income taxes are calculated on all 
temporary differences under the balance sheet 
method using an effective tax rate of 30%. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to 
the following items:

(b) Reconciliation for recognized deferred tax 
assets

In thousands of Naira
2021

Software Work in Progress Total

(a) Computer Software

Cost
Beginning of the year 1,300,563 - 1,300,563
Additions 71,236 42,654 113,890
Disposal - - -
Reclassification - - -

Balance at reporting date 1,371,799 42,654 1,414,453

Amortisation and impairment losses
Beginning of the year 273,743 - 273,743
Amortisation for the year 264,340 - 264,340
Disposals - - -

Balance at reporting date 538,083 - 538,083

Carrying amounts 833,716 42,654 876,370
 

In thousands of Naira
2020

Software Work in Progress Total

Cost
Beginning of the year 1,192,666 8,429 1,201,095
Additions 99,468 - 99,468
Disposal - - -
Reclassification 8,429 (8,429) -

Balance at reporting date 1,300,563 - 1,300,563

Amortisation and impairment losses
Beginning of the year 20,280 - 20,280
Amortisation for the year 253,462 - 253,462
Disposals - - -

Balance at reporting date 273,742 - 273,742

Carrying amounts 1,026,821 - 1,026,821
 

31 December 2021
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(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets of N50.47 
million was based on the Directors’ assessment, 
which indicates that it is probable that the Bank will
have future taxable profits against which these 
assets can be utilised. The directors are of the 
opinion that the assumptions underlying the 
preparation of the forecast, are reasonable and 
achievable.

The Bank had unrecognized deferred tax assets 
arising from unrelieved losses, ECL impairment on 
financial instruments and Property & equipment 
as at year end. The deferred tax asset was not 
recognized during the year because the availability 
of future taxable profit against which the deferred 
tax can be utilized could not be ascertained as at 
the reporting date. The analysis of unrecognized 
deferred tax asset is as follows:

Tax losses carried forward
In line with the applicable tax law, tax losses are 
to be carried forward indefinitely, therefore the 

required disclosure on expiration date of unutilized 
tax losses does not apply.

24 Other assets

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Deferred tax asset (net) at the beginning of the period 50,472 50,472

Origination/(reversal) of temporary differences
ECL allowance on financial assets (7,957) 61,048
Leases 7,641 (4,834)
Property and equipment - (34,879)
Intangible assets 316 (17,974)
Unrelieved tax losses - (3,361)

Closing balance 50,472 50,472
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25. Deposits from customers

(ii) Account receivable analysis

(i) Other Investments relate to remmittances to 
the CBN’s Agric / SME Investment Scheme. CBN 
Circular to all banks dated 5 April 2017, requires all 
Deposit Money Banks to set aside and remit to the 
designated account domiciled in the Central Bank 
of Nigeria (CBN), 5% of their annual Profit After 

Tax for Equity investment in permissible activities 
stipulated in the scheme’s guidelines.

Movement in allowance for impairment on other 
assets

(a) Account receivable NIP warehouses receivables 
due from inward transactions on the NIBSS Instant 
Payment (NIP) platform

(b) Included in account receivable others is N18.86 

billion representing security deposit in an escrow 
account with an offshore bank in respect of the 
planned acquisition of Union Bank. See note 26 (ii) 
(c).

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Balance, beginning of the period - -
Net measurement of loss allowance (see Note ) - -

Balance, end of the period - -

Current 22,317,290 5,742,902
Non-current 177,312 32,232

22,494,602 5,775,134
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Account receivable NIP (see note a below) - 5,365,360
Account receivable FX bid 2,644,825 68,678
Acoount receivable others (see note b below) 19,410,838 200,981

22,055,663 5,635,019
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Demand deposits 61,295,457 32,862,541
Term deposits 107,429,039 50,238,344
Savings deposits 2,102,559 878,881
Domiciliary deposits 11,555,802 1,990,822

182,382,857 85,970,588

Current 182,382,857 85,970,588
Non-current - -

Total balance as at 31 December 182,382,857 85,970,588
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In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Account payable NIP (see note (a) below) 258,261 7,142,046
Prepaid LC accounts - 685,889
Collection Account 470,086 199,590
Account Payable Others 2,686,837 88,775

3,415,184 8,116,300
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Margin Trading Account (see note (a) below) - 1,683,245
Trops Suspense Account (see note (b) below) 2,419,388 467,468
Refinanced LCs 152,642 -
Deposit for shares (see note (c) below) 18,859,544 -

21,431,574 2,150,713
 

(i) This provision relates to ECL on financial 
gurantee contracts such as performance bonds 
and guarantees, and letters of credits.

(ii) Account Payable analysis

(a) Account Payable NIP warehouses payable due to 
outward transactions on the NIBSS Instant Payment 
(NIP) platform.

(iii) Other current liabilities analysis

(a). Margin trading accouunt is used to warehouse 
cash collaterals provided by the Bank’s customers 
for the processing of Non-deliverable forward (NDF) 
contracts with CBN.

(b). Trops suspense account is a transit account that 
warehouses amounts due to the Bank’s customers 
from FX bid transactions. This is either for funds 

which have been taken from customers, awaiting 
bid or refunds due to customers for excess bids.

(c). Deposit for shares account warehouses the 
funds deposited by the shareholders of Titan Trust 
Bank Limited in respect of the planned acquisition 
of majority stake in Union Bank Plc. See note 24(ii) 
(b).

26. Other liabilities

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Customers deposit for Letters of Credit 1,591,388 551,624
OBB takings 607,182 -
Accounts payable (see table (ii) below) 3,415,184 8,116,299
Accruals 131,444 48,092
Other liabilities (see table (iii) below) 21,431,574 2,150,713
Deferred Income 42,451 21,214
Unclaimed Items 202 106
Provison for off balance sheet impairment (see table (i) below) 47,459 137,301

27,266,884 11,025,349

Current 27,266,884 11,025,349
Non-current - -

Total balance as at 31 December 27,266,884 11,025,349
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In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Derivative liabilities comprise:
Currency swaps 97,054 -

97,054 -

Current 97,054 -
Non-current - -

97,054 -
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Authorised
80 billion ordinary shares of 50k each 40,000,000 40,000,000

Issued and fully paid
58.4 billion ordinary shares of 50k each 29,204,987 29,204,987
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Lease liability at 31 December 30,096 347,582

30,096 347,582
 

27.  Lease Liability

28.  Borrowings

29.  Derivative Liability

30.  Share Capital

The derivative liability is a currency swap for risk managemnt purposes with a nominal 
amount of N4.24 billion ($10 million).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to 
receive dividends as declared from time to time and 
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of 

the Bank. All shares rank equally with regard to the 
Bank’s residual assets.

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Borrowing comprise:
Short term borrowing (see (i) below) - 6,030,822

- 6,030,822

Current - 6,030,822
Non-current - -

6,030,822

At the start of the year 6,030,822 -
Proceeds from new borrowings - 6,000,000
Interest expense 15,103 30,822
Repayment of borrowings (6,000,000) -
Interest paid (45,925) -

At the end of the year - 6,030,822
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Statutory reserve: Nigerian banking regulations 
require the Bank to make an annual appropriation to 
a statutory reserve. As stipulated by section 15(1) 
of the Bank and Other Financial Institutions Act of 
2020, an appropriation of 30% of profit after tax is 
made if the statutory reserve is less than the paid-
up share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the 
statutory reserve is greater than the paid-up share 
capital.

Fair value reserve: The fair value reserve includes 

the net cumulative change in the fair value of 
financial assets classified as fair value through 
other comprehensive income until the investment 
is derecognised or impaired.

Regulatory risk reserve: This represents the 
difference between the allowance for impairment 
losses on balance on loans and advances based 
on Central Bank of Nigeria prudential guidelines 
compared with the expected loss model used in 
calculating the impairment under IFRSs.

31. Reserves

Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the carried 
forward recognised income net of expenses plus 
current period profit attributable to shareholders.

(a). Earnings per share
The calculations of basic earnings per share has 
been based on the following profit attributable to 
shareholders and the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Movement in share capital during the period:
Balance, beginning of period 29,204,987 29,204,987
New issues during the period - -

Balance, end of period 29,204,987 29,204,987
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Profit after income tax a 4,404,237 2,901,603
Weighted average number of shares in issue b 58,409,974 58,409,974

Earnings per share (Basic/Diluted) (kobo) (a/b*100) 7.54 4.97
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Movement in retained earnings during the period:
Balance, beginning of period 2,062,751 415,164
Profit for the period 4,404,237 2,901,603
Transfer to statutory reserves (1,321,272) (870,481)
Transfer to regulatory risk reserve (276,848) (383,535)

Balance, end of period 4,868,868 2,062,751
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In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 18 38,742,372 3,037,052
Impairment on loans and advances to customers 8 (156,214) (209,546)
Interest income 6 4,348,637 1,629,512
Interest received (3,919,224) (1,101,110)
Closing balance for the period 18 (63,065,564) (38,742,372)

Total changes in loans and advances to customers (24,049,993) (35,386,464)
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 24 5,775,134 395,432
Impairment of other assets 8 - -
Interest income 6 917,923 -
Impairment on Loans to banks 8 (27,602) -
Closing balance for the period 24 (22,494,602) (5,775,134)

Total changes in loans and advances to customers (15,829,147) (5,379,702)
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 25 (85,970,588) (9,390,033)
Interest expense 7 (2,020,786) (1,273,487)
Interest paid 1,804,187 -
Closing balance for the period 25 182,382,857 85,970,588

Total changes in deposits from customers 96,195,670 76,185,269
 

(ii) Net changes in loans and advances to customers

32. Reconciliation notes to the statement of cashflows

(i) Net changes in financial assets at FVTPL

(iii) Net changes in other assets

(iv) Net changes in deposits from customers

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 15 2,200,240 241,806
Interest income 6 378,611 -
Foreign exchange income 10 1,014,512 -
Fair value changes on FVTPL 10 (589,151) (68,270)
Closing balance for the period 15 (1,916,091) (2,200,240)

Total changes in financial assets at FVTPL 1,088,121 (2,026,704)
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(viii) Net changes on other liabilities

(vi) Net changes in assets pledged as collateral

(vii) Net changes in mandatory reserve deposits

(v) Net changes in investment securities

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 19 20,533,452 19,792,081
Fair value changes on FVOCI 19(b)(c) (1,032,629) 124,958
Impairment allowance 8 (78,611) -
Interest income 6 1,782,513 1,001,058
Closing balance for the period 19 (34,130,539) (20,533,452)

Total changes in FVOCI instruments (12,925,814) 384,645

Opening balance for the period 3,381,547 6,267,299

Amortised cost - -

Interest Income 6 926,382 -
Impairment allowance on Instruments at amortised cost 8 (13,770) -
Closing balance for the period 19 (14,719,847) (3,381,547)

Net closing balance for the period (13,807,235) (3,381,547)

Total changes in instruments at amortised cost (10,425,688) 2,885,752

Net purchase of investment securities recognised in 
statement of cashflows (23,351,502) 3,270,397
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 16 10,609,415 1,959,478
Impairment Allowance (26,326) -
Interest income 1,018,616 -
Closing balance for the period 16 (16,262,048) (10,609,415)

Total changes in assets pledged as collateral (4,660,343) (8,649,937)
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 14 22,521,705 164,496
Closing balance for the period 14 (26,115,940) (22,521,705)

Total changes in mandatory reserve deposits (3,594,235) (22,357,209)
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(ix) Cash payment on Right-of-Use asset

(x) Net changes in borrowings

(xi)  Net changes in derivative assets

(xii)  Net changes in derivative Liabilities

(xiii)  Net changes in lease liability

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 15 10,037 -
Closing balance for the period 15 (14,678) (10,037)

Total changes in derivative assets (4,641) (10,037)
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 29 - -
Closing balance for the period 29 97,054 -

Total changes in derivative 97,054 -
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance of ROU asset 21 (506,411) (421,083)
Lease liability capitalised during the year - -
Reclassification to ROU asset 21 - (117,700)
Depreciation on ROU asset 21 151,831 118,402
Closing balance of ROU asset 21 541,895 506,411

Cash paid on ROU asset 187,315 86,030
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 29 6,030,822 -
Additions - - 6,000,000
Interest expense 7 1,795,020 96,051
Repayments 28 (6,000,000) -
Closing balance for the period 29 - (6,030,822)

Net changes in borrowings 29 1,825,842 65,229
 

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Opening balance for the period 27 (347,582) (300,383)
Interest expense 7 (12,869) (47,199)
Closing balance for the period 27 30,096 347,582

Total changes in lease liability (330,355) 47,199
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33. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, 
cash and cash equivalents include cash and non-

restricted balances with central banks, amounts due 
from other banks and investment securities with a 
maturity date of 3 months or less upon acquisition.

34. Contingent liabilities and commitments

34.1 Claims and litigations

The Bank, in its ordinary course of business, is 
presently not involved in any litigation cases. 
Therefore, there is no potential significant liability 
arising for which a provision is to be made in the 
financial statements.

34.2 Credit related commitments

In the normal course of business, the Bank is party 
to financial instruments with off-balance sheet 
risk. The instruments are used to meet the credit 
and other financial requirements of customers. 
The contractual amounts of the off-balance sheet 
financial instruments are:

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Cash and balances with central banks (less mandatory reserves) 14 1,915,261 2,987,043
Balances with other banks 17 61,130,408 25,627,834

63,045,669 28,614,877
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35. Related party transactions

The Bank’s key management personnel, 
and persons connected with them, are also 
considered to be related parties. The definition 
of key management includes the close members 
of family of key personnel and any entity over 
which key management exercise control. The key 
management personnel have been identified as the 
executive and non-executive directors of the Bank.

Close members of family are those family members 
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced 
by that individual in their dealings with Titan Trust 
Bank Ltd, see Note 36 for the compensations to 
key management personnel.

Parties related to the Bank engaged in the following 
transactions with the Bank during the period:

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Loans and advances to entities related to key management personnel 8,010,576 5,077,905
Deposits 12,577,878 9,041,952
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36. Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration paid to the Bank’s directors was:

Fees and other emoluments disclosed above include amounts paid to:

The number of directors who received fees and other emoluments (excluding 
pension contributions and certain benefit) in the following ranges was:

Loans to key management personnel represent mortgage loans which are 
given under terms that are no more favourable than those given to other
staff.

37. Employees

The average number of persons employed during the period was as follows:

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Directors’ Fees 22,000 25,750
Sitting allowances 18,900 18,265

Short term employee benefits
- Executive compensation 218,955 218,955
- Other allowances 34,506 34,506
- Post-employment benefits 5,265 5,265

299,626 302,741
 

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Below N1,600,000 - -
Between N1,600,000 - N3,400,000 - -
N3,400,000 and above 2 2

2 2
 

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Executive directors 2 2
Management 34 32
Non-management 146 76

182 110
 

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Chairman 9,250 9,250
Highest paid director 140,800 140,800
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The number of employees of the Bank, other than directors, who received 
emoluments in the following ranges (excluding pension contributions and other 
benefits) were:

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

N300,000 - N2,000,000 82 36
N2,000,001 - N2,800,000 7 5
N2,800,001 - N3,500,000 - -
N3,500,001 - N4,000,000 3 1
N4,000,001 - N5,500,000 18 10
N5,500,001 - N6,500,000 - -
N6,500,000 - N7,800,000 12 11
N7,800,001 - N9,000,000 - -
N9,000,001 and above 60 47

182 110
 

38. Statement of Prudential Adjustments

In thousands of Naira Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Loans and advances to customers
Collective impairment allowance on loans to customers 18.1 - -
12-month ECL 18.1 (365,978) (209,764)
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired 18.1 - -

Total impairment allowance on loans to customers (a) (365,978) (209,764)

Other financial assets:
12 month ECL - -
Lifetime ECL - -
Impairment allowance on investment in associates - -
Specific impairment allowance on other assets 24 - -

Total impairment allowance on other financial assets (b) - -

Investment securities
12-month ECL (159,495) (13,186)

(c) (159,495) (13,186)
Off-balance sheet exposures
12-month ECL (47,459) (137,301)

(d) (47,459) (137,301)

Total impairment allowance (e) (572,932) (360,251)

Total impairment based on prudential guidelines (f) (1,269,401) (779,874)

Difference (g) = e - f 696,469 419,623
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39. Compliance with banking regulations

During the year, the Bank did not pay penalties to 
any regulatory body.

40. Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting date which 
could have a material effect on the financial position 
of the Bank as at 31 December 2021 which have not 
been adequately provided for or disclosed in these 
financial statements.

41. Significant Transactions

Titan Trust Bank, on December 18, 2021, executed 
a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) with 
the majority shareholders of Union Bank of Nigeria 
Plc to acquire 89.39% of the shares of Union Bank 
of Nigeria Plc subject to regulatory approvals. The 
Bank is currently seeking all necessary regulatory 

approvals to consummate the transaction, which 
will lead to a merger of the two financial institutions.

However, the bank has not applied the provisions 
of IFRS 3- Business Combination, as the date of 
completion and final acquisition value were still 
been finalised as at the year-end.

42. Financial Reporting Council’s Certification 
Requirement for Professionals Engaged in 
Financial Reporting Process

In line with Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 
certification requirement for professionals engaged 
in financial reporting process: External Auditors, 
Officers of reporting entities and other professionals 
providing assurance to reporting entities. Below are 
the list of professionals engaged in the financial 
reporting process relating to financial statements 
for the period ended 31 December 2021.

In thousands of Naira 31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Agreed upon procedeurs in line with CBN code of corporate governance 4,000 3,000
Independent limited assurance review in line with risk based supervisory 
framework 1,500 3,000
Risk based supervisory review 4,000 -
Stamp duties Audit 7,000 -

16,500 6,000
 

S/N Name of Professional FRC number Role

1 Babatunde Olakunle Lemo FRC/2016/ICAN/00000014753 Chairman
2 Mudassir Mohammed Amray FRC/2019/002/00000020256 MD/CEO
3 Mark Oguh FRC/2016/ICAN/00000001563 CFO
 

43.  Provision of Non Audit Services

The details of services provided by the auditor 
(Messrs KPMG Professional Services) during 
the year, other than statutory audit of financial 
statements, and the fees earned are as follows:
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O T H E R  N AT I O N A L 
D I C L O S U R E S
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Value added statement

For the period ended 31 December
In thousands of Naira

31 December 2021 % 31 December 2020 %

Gross earnings 13,624,932 8,558,250
Interest expense (3,961,691) (1,498,404)

9,663,241 7,059,846

Net impairment loss on financial assets (212,679) (335,592)
Bought-in-materials and services (local) (2,828,723) (2,095,358)

Value added 6,621,839 100 4,628,896 100

Distribution of Value Added % %
To Employees:
Employee costs 1,329,080 20 1,050,800 23

To Government:
Government as taxes 68,820 1 29,165 1

Retained in business:
- For replacement of property and equipment 555,361 8 393,866 9
- For replacement of intangible assets 264,340 4 253,462 5
- To augment reserves 4,404,237 67 2,901,603 63

6,621,838 100 4,628,896 100
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Financial Summary

For the period ended 31 December
In thousands of Naira

31 December 2021 31 December 2020 3 months to 31
December 2019

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 28,031,201 25,508,748 234,728
Financial assets FVTPL 1,916,091 2,200,240 241,806
Derivatives 14,678 10,037 -
Loans to banks 61,130,408 25,627,834 5,043,725
Loans and advances to customers 63,065,564 38,742,372 3,037,052

Investment securities
- FVOCI 34,130,539 20,533,452 19,792,081
- Amortised cost 14,719,847 3,381,547 6,267,299
Assets pledged as collateral 16,262,048 10,609,415 1,959,478
Property and equipment 3,001,926 2,370,588 1,077,437
Right of use asset 541,895 506,411 421,083
Intangible assets 876,371 1,026,821 1,180,815
Deferred taxation 50,472 50,472 50,472
Other assets 22,494,602 5,775,134 395,432

Total assets 246,235,642 136,343,071 39,701,408

Liabilities
Deposits from banks - - -
Deposits from customers 182,382,857 85,970,588 9,390,033
Current income tax liability 68,996 29,195 5,972
Deferred tax liabilities 97,054 - -
Other liabilities 27,266,884 11,025,349 76,147
Capitalized lease liability 30,096 347,582 300,383
Borrowings - 6,030,822 -

Total liabilities 209,845,887 103,403,536 9,772,535

Equity
Share capital 29,204,987 29,204,987 29,204,987
Share premium - - -
Retained earnings 4,868,868 2,062,751 415,164
Other components of equity 2,315,900 1,671,797 308,722

Total equity 36,389,755 32,939,535 29,928,873

Total liabilities and equity 246,235,642 136,343,071 39,701,408

Commitments and contingents 25,475,751 29,553,215 4,255,464

Financial summary 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
3 months to 31

December 2019

Gross earnings 13,624,932 8,558,250 2,527,387

Profit/(loss) before taxation 4,473,057 2,930,771 600,143

Profit for the period 4,404,237 2,901,606 644,643

Other comprehensive income (954,018) 109,059 79,243

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,450,219 3,010,665 723,886

 

**The Bank is in its third year of operation.






